
Wednesday, February 16, 2022
1:00 PM

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

REFER TO COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE

NVTA Board of Directors

******************************************COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE*****************************************

PUBLIC MEETING GUIDELINES FOR PARTICIPATING VIA PHONE/VIDEO CONFERENCING

Consistent with California Assembly Bill 361 and Government Code Section 54953, due to the 

COVID-19 State of Emergency and the recommendations for physical distancing, the Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board meeting will be held virtually. To maximize public safety while 

still maintaining transparency, members of the public may observe and participate in the meeting from 

home. The public is invited to participate telephonically or electronically via the methods below:

1) To join the meeting via Zoom video conference from your PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android: go to 

https://zoom.us/join and enter meeting ID 997 5007 2830

2) To join the Zoom meeting by phone: dial 1-669-900-6833, enter meeting ID: 997 5007 2830 If asked 

for the participant ID or code, press #.

3) Watch live on YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCrpjLcW9uRmA0EE6w-eKZyw?

app=desktop

Public Comments:  Members of the public may comment on matters within the subject matter of 

the Board’s jurisdiction that are not on the meeting agenda during the general public comment item at 

the beginning of the meeting.  Comments related to a specific item on the agenda must be reserved until 

the time the agenda item is considered and the Chair invites public comment. (Members of the public 

are welcome to address the Board, however, under the Brown Act Board members may not 

deliberate or take action on items not on the agenda, and generally may only listen.)

Instructions for submitting a Public Comment are on the next page.

Agenda - Final



Members of the public may submit a public comment in writing by emailing info@nvta .ca.gov by 10:00 

a.m. on the day of the meeting with PUBLIC COMMENT as the subject line (for comments related to an 

agenda item, please include the item number). All written comments should be 350 words or less, which 

corresponds to approximately 3 minutes or less of speaking time. Public comments emailed to 

info@nvta.ca.gov after 10 a.m. the day of the meeting will be entered into the record but not read out 

loud.  If authors of the written correspondence would like to speak, they are free to do so and should

raise their hand and the Chair will call upon them at the appropriate time.

1. To comment during a virtual meeting (Zoom), click the “Raise Your Hand” button (click on the 

“Participants” tab) to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the Agenda item.  You 

must unmute yourself when it is your turn to make your comment for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted 

time, you will then be re-muted.  Instructions for how to “Raise Your Hand” is available at 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129-Raise-Hand-In-Webinar.

2. To comment by phone, press “*9” to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the 

Agenda item.  You must unmute yourself by pressing “*6” when it is your turn to make your comment, 

for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted time, you will be re-muted.

I n s t r u c t i o n s  o n  h o w  t o  j o i n  a  v i d e o  c o n f e r e n c e  a r e  a v a i l a b l e  a t : 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting

Ins t ruc t ions  on  how to  jo in  a  meet ing  by  phone a re  ava i lab le  a t : 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone

Note: The methods of observing, listening, or providing public comment to the meeting may be altered 

due to technical difficulties or the meeting may be cancelled, if needed.    

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the NVTA Board of 

Directors are posted on the NVTA website 72 hours prior to the meeting at : 

https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx  or by emailing  info@nvta.ca.gov to request a copy of the 

agenda. 

Materials distributed to the members of the Board present at the meeting will be available for public 

inspection after the meeting. Availability of materials related to agenda items for public inspection does 

not include materials which are exempt from public disclosure under Government Code sections 6253.5, 

6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate 

formats to persons with a disability.  Persons requesting a disability -related modification or 

accommodation should contact Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8633 during 

regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the time of the meeting.

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only, and may be shorter or longer as needed.

Acceso y el Titulo VI: La NVTA puede proveer asistencia/facilitar la comunicación a las personas 

discapacitadas y los individuos con conocimiento limitado del ingl és quienes quieran dirigirse a la 

Autoridad.  Para solicitar asistencia, por favor llame al número (707) 259-8633.  Requerimos que solicite 

asistencia con tres días hábiles de anticipación para poderle proveer asistencia.

Ang Accessibility at Title VI: Ang NVTA ay nagkakaloob ng mga serbisyo/akomodasyon kung hilingin 

ang mga ito, ng mga taong may kapansanan at mga indibiduwal na may limitadong kaalaman sa wikang 

Ingles, na nais na matugunan ang mga bagay-bagay na may kinalaman sa NVTA Board.  Para sa mga 

tulong sa akomodasyon o pagsasalin-wika, mangyari lang tumawag sa (707) 259-8633.  Kakailanganin 

namin ng paunang abiso na tatlong araw na may pasok sa trabaho para matugunan ang inyong 

kahilingan.



February 16, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Adoption of the Agenda

5. Public Comment

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's,

and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

7. Director's Update

Note: Where times are indicated for the agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only and may be shorter or longer as needed.

8. PRESENTATIONS

8.1 MTC Transit Mapping and Wayfinding Project

Information only. Shauna Callow, MTC will make the presentation.Recommendation:

1:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS

9.1 Public Hearing and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 

5310 Grant Application to the California Department of 

Transportation (Caltrans) (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 12-17)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board:

(1) Hold a Public Hearing; and

(2) Approve Resolution No. 22-04 (Attachment 1) authorizing the Executive 

Director or designee to submit a FTA Section 5310 grant application to 

Caltrans seeking grant funding for ADA paratransit replacement vehicles.

Recommendation:

1:30 p.m.Time Certain:

Public Hearing & Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 3 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 2/9/2022

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0afdc679-b391-486e-aaa3-414430a4bcba.pdf


February 16, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

10.1 Meeting Minutes of January 19, 2022 (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 

18-21)

Board action will approve the January 19, 2022 meeting minutes.Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Draft MinutesAttachments:

10.2 Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointments (Laura 

Sanderlin) (Pages 22-24)

Board action will appoint Patricia Lynch, Hans Korve and Jean Vincent 

Deale to the CAC for a renewed two (2) year term.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.3 Resolution No. 22-05 Approving the Amended and Restated 

Grant of Easement and Easement Agreement and Authorization 

to Transfer an Easement Interest in Real Property Identified as 

Assessor Parcel Number 007-082-004 by Quitclaim Deed to the 

City of Napa (Kate Miller) (Pages 25-43)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution No. 22-05 (Attachment 1) approving the Amended and 

Restated Grant of Easement and Easement Agreement and Authorization 

to Transfer an Easement Interest in Real Property Identified as Assessor 

Parcel Number (APN) 007-082-004 by Quitclaim Deed to the City of Napa 

and authorize the Executive Director to execute and take all actions 

necessary to quitclaim the deed portions of APN 007-082-004 to the City 

of Napa.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 2/9/2022

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=703d9507-307b-4062-b663-b9a1a258fafd.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3e36a21a-6404-47c6-b45f-589c72b4e42c.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=31cbe28f-dcae-45c3-8219-cf822a56b7ef.pdf


February 16, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10.4 Resolution No. 22-06 Adopting the Transportation Fund for Clean 

Air (TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan for Fiscal Year 

End (FYE) 2023 (Diana Meehan) (Pages 44-50)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution No. 22-06 adopting the Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2023 

Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure 

Plan.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.5 AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings (DeeAnne 

Gillick) (Pages 51-56)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution 22-07 making findings and declaring it intent to continue remote 

teleconference meetings in accordance with Government Code section 

54953(e) due to the Governor’s COVID-19 State of Emergency 

Proclamation. 

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11.1 11. QUARTERLY PROJECT UPDATE

Soscol Junction Project

Vine Trail St. Helena to Calistoga

Bus Maintenance Facility

Imola Park and Ride

SR 29 American Canyon Project Initiation Document 

Napa Valley Forward SR 29 Up Valley Intersection 

Improvements SR 37

1:50 p.m.Estimated Time:

Page 5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 2/9/2022

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e381c49b-36d5-43d6-9e38-c4df1de2b5bc.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=88938346-8baf-42c4-814d-4a4bd7efe818.pdf


February 16, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

12. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

12.1 Vine Transit Update (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 57-64)

That the NVTA Board receive the second quarter FY 2021-22 Vine Transit 

update.  

Recommendation:

2:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

12.2 Napa Valley Forward - Award of Right of Way Acquisition 

Services Agreement (Alberto Esqueda) (Pages 65-88)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the 

Executive Director to enter into and make minor modifications to 

Agreement No. 22-01 with Overland, Pacific & Cutler, LLC (OPC) 

(Attachment 1) for the Right of Way Acquisition Services in an amount not 

to exceed $150,000. 

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

12.3 State Route 29 Multimodal Improvements through American 

Canyon Alternative 3 (Danielle Schmitz) (Pages 89-94)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board eliminate 

Alternative 3 (six lanes) and a Pedestrian Underpass from the State Route 

(SR) 29 Multimodal Improvements through American Canyon Project 

Initiation Document (PID). 

Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 6 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 2/9/2022

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4541fa8f-a024-4d88-83b9-5745963c9feb.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2111869e-94c8-4eba-b5d1-e80d66bbea07.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4eea13b1-6452-48c4-a64c-d55801038cbf.pdf


February 16, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

12.4 Amending Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 Salary Range for Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority (NVTA) Job Classification of 

Program Manager-Engineering (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 95-104)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution No. 22-08 amending the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 Salary 

Range for position of Program Manager - Engineering.

Recommendation:

2:40 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

12.5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) Annual Financial 

Statement with Independent Auditor’s Report for the Years 

Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and Single Audit Report of 

Uniform Guidance (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 105-205)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board:

(1) Accept and file the Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s 

Report for Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2021 and 2020 and the 

NVTA Single Audit Report of the Uniform Guidance (formerly 

Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133) for the 

Year Ended June 30, 2021: and 

(2) Return an allocation surplus of $617,772 to the Local Transportation 

Fund (LTF) Trust Fund

Recommendation:

2:50 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

12.6 Napa Valley Transportation Authority's (NVTA) Fiscal Year (FY) 

2021-22 Mid-Year Review and Delegated Authority Matrix 

(Roxanna Moradi) (Pages 206-213)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the 

FY 2021-22 Mid-Year Review and Delegated Authority Matrix.

Recommendation:

3:05 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 7 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 2/9/2022

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cb3d2668-0e87-4e7d-9f19-c0ff9810541e.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d652298d-5b06-4e55-8c80-9cafb61c929c.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4f49847f-fdc0-4a78-baed-018c98addba5.pdf


February 16, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

12.7 Swainson Hawk Foraging Land Habitat for Soscol Junction 

(Danielle Schmitz) (pages 214-293)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the 

Executive Director, or designee, to execute and make minor modifications 

to the Muzzy Ranch  Conservation Bank contract (Attachments 1) to 

acquire 17.34 acres of Swainson Hawk foraging habitat credits in order to 

fulfill mitigation requirements by the California Department of Fish and 

Wildlife (CDFW) for the construction of Soscol Junction.

Recommendation:

3:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

12.8 Federal and State Legislative Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 294-310)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the 

Federal Legislative update prepared by K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors 

(Attachment 1) and the State Legislative update prepared by Platinum 

Advisors (Attachment 2) and the State Bill Matrix (Attachment 3).

Recommendation:

3:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

14. CLOSED SESSION

14.1

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government 

Code Section 54957(b)(1))

Title: Executive Director

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government Code 

Section 54957.6))

Authority Designated Representative: Authority Chair 

Unrepresented Employee: Executive Director

3:40 p.m.Estimated Time:

15. ADJOURNMENT

Page 8 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 2/9/2022

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=82eff868-8353-4587-a037-978353fc7991.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ccba5b99-4405-4d84-a6a4-ccea391cab83.pdf


February 16, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

16.1  Approval of Next Regular Meeting Date of March 16, 2022 and Adjournment

I hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location freely

accessible to members of the public at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA by

5:00 p.m. by Friday, February 11th.

____________________________________

Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 9 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 2/9/2022



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 01/22 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 
ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 

ACFR Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

ADA American with Disabilities Act 

APA American Planning Association 

ATAC Active Transportation Advisory Committee 
ATP Active Transportation Program 
BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BAB  Build America Bureau 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BIL Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (IIJA) 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

CAC Citizen Advisory Committee 
CAP Climate Action Plan  
CAPTI Climate Action Plan for Transportation 

Infrastructure  
Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CASA Committee to House the Bay Area 

CBTP Community Based Transportation Plan 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA Congestion Management Agency 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CalSTA California State Transportation Agency 

CTA California Transit Association 
CTP Countywide Transportation Plan  
CTC California Transportation Commission 

CY Calendar Year 

DAA Design Alternative Analyst 

DBB Design-Bid-Build 

DBE Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

DBF Design-Build-Finance 

DBFOM Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain 

DED Draft Environmental Document  

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EJ Environmental Justice 

EPC Equity Priority Communities  

ETID Electronic Transit Information Displays 

FAS Federal Aid Secondary  
FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GGRF Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund 
GTFS General Transit Feed Specification 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  
HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program  
HTF  Highway Trust Fund  
HUTA Highway Users Tax Account 

HVIP  Hybrid & Zero-Emission Truck and Bus 
Voucher Incentive Program 

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

ITOC Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  
LCTOP Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 

LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

LS&R Local Streets & Roads 

LTF  Local Transportation Fund  

MaaS Mobility as a Service 

MAP 21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st 
Century Act 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

ND Negative Declaration   

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOAH Natural Occurring Affordable Housing  
NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 01/22 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

NVTA-TA Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 
Agency 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PA&ED Project Approval Environmental Document 

P3 or PPP Public-Private Partnership 

PCC Paratransit Coordination Council 
PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PCA Priority Conservation Area 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PID Project Initiation Document  
PIR Project Initiation Report 

PMS Pavement Management System  
Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 

gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RAISE Rebuilding American Infrastructure with 
Sustainability and Equity 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  
RM 2 Regional Measure 2 Bridge Toll 

RM 3 Regional Measure 3 Bridge Toll 

RMRP Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Program 

ROW (R/W) Right of Way  

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SB 375 Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act 2008 

SB 1 The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHA State Highway Account 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SNTDM Solano Napa Travel Demand Model  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIC Small Transit Intensive Cities 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 
TCM Transportation Control Measure 

TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 
 Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TIFIA Transportation Infrastructure Finance and 
Innovation Act  

TIRCP Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation and Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOAH Transit Oriented Affordable Housing  
TOC Transit Oriented Communities 

TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPA Transit Priority Area  
TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Public Hearing and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Grant Application 
to the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board: 

(1) Hold a Public Hearing; and
(2) Approve Resolution No. 22-04 (Attachment 1) authorizing the Executive Director or
designee to submit a FTA Section 5310 grant application to Caltrans seeking grant
funding.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Caltrans released a Call for Projects in January, 2022 for the FTA Section 5310 Enhanced 
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program.  Approximately $18 million 
dollars is available for small urban and rural areas statewide with applications due to 
Caltrans by March 2, 2022. Eligible project sponsors are non-profit organizations and 
under certain circumstances, government agencies. Eligible projects include capital 
projects, including vehicle and other dispatch equipment, and mobility management 
services for elderly and disabled populations.  The purpose of the public hearing is to 
ascertain that there are no eligible non-profit organizations that can provide ADA transit 
services currently provided by NVTA in Napa Valley. 

NVTA is requesting FTA Section 5310 funds to replace six (6) Vine Go ADA paratransit 
vehicles that have outlived their useful lives with new vehicles.   If successful, the grant 
will provide up to $368,500 in new funding. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes, the estimated cost to replace six (6) paratransit vehicles 
can be as high as $670,000.  If successful, the grant will provide funding of $368,500.  
Transportation Development Act Funds will be used to fund the balance. 

12



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenk, Program Manager – Public Transit 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT:   Public Hearing and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
  Section 5310 Grant Application to the California Department of 

 Transportation (Caltrans) 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board: 

(1) Hold a Public Hearing; and

(2) Approve Resolution No. 22-04 (Attachment 1) authorizing the Executive Director or
designee to submit an FTA Section 5310 grant application to Caltrans seeking grant
funding for ADA paratransit replacement vehicles.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND 

The FTA Section 5310 competitive grant program provides funding for capital and mobility 
management projects to non-profit agencies for transportation services, seniors, and 
persons with disabilities.  These funds are available to non-profit organizations serving 
the elderly and/or people with disabilities. 

When no non-profit agencies are willing, able or eligible to provide the proposed grant 
funded services, in this case, complementary paratransit services, a public agency may 
seek funding.  NVTA has been the recipient of FTA Section 5310 funds in the past, most 
recently for the purchase of three (3) paratransit vehicles back in 2018.   

13

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 9.1 
February 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Shortly after Caltrans announced the notice of funding availability, NVTA presented the 
information at its January 6, 2022 Paratransit Coordinating Council meeting and sent 
email communication to local non-profits and social services agency with instructions on 
how to file an application directly to Caltrans.   

The NVTA Board shall hold a public hearing to accept and authorize the Executive 
Director or designee to submit a FTA Section 5310 grant application to Caltrans to fund 
vehicles that will replace paratransit vehicles that have outlived their useful lives. Caltrans 
Collabria Care, a local non-profit organization in Napa County, is also applying for 
vehicles to serve its own clients and respective programs from the FTA Section 5310 
program. 

The public has 30 days to comment on the FTA Section 5310 grant submittal from the 
time NVTA posts the public hearing notification.  

ALTERNATIVES 

Option #1: That the Board approve a reduced request that does not require a local match. 

Option #2: That the Board forego the submission to replace six paratransit vehicles and 
seek other funding to replace the vehicles. This may result in not identifying funding and 
therefore the agency would not meet the agency’s replacement schedule as published in 
its Short Range Transit Plan.  

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 2 - Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users - the 
replacement of transit vehicles after they have outlived their useful lives is called out in 
the Short Range Transit Plan. 

Goal 3 - Use taxpayer dollars efficiently – since there is no match requirement, local 
funds can be used on other projects. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

Attachments:  (1) Resolution No. 22-04 
(2) Public Hearing Notice

14



RESOLUTION No. 22-04 

A RESOLUTION OF THE NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 
AUTHORIZING THE FEDERAL FUNDING UNDER FTA SECTION 5310 (49 U.S.C. 

SECTION 5310) WITH CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  

WHEREAS, the U. S. Department of Transportation is authorized to make grants 
to states through the Federal Transit Administration to support capital projects for non-
urbanized public transportation systems under Section 5310 of the Federal Transit Act 
(FTA C 9070.1G); and 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation (Department) has been 
designated by the Governor of the State of California to administer Section 5310 grants 
for transportation projects for seniors and individuals with disabilities; and 

WHEREAS, the NVTA desires to apply for Section 5310 financial assistance t to 
support its paratransit service in Napa County; and 

WHEREAS, the NVTA has, to the maximum extent feasible, coordinated with other 
transportation providers and users in the region (including social service agencies); and. 

WHEREAS, the NVTA, to the maximum extent feasible, coordinated with other 
transportation providers and users in the region (including social services agencies). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the NVTA does 
hereby  

1) Authorize Executive Director or designated representative, to file and execute
applications on behalf of the NVTA with the Department to aid in the financing
of capital projects pursuant to Section 5310 of the Federal Transit Act (FTA C
9070.1G), as amended.

2) That Executive Director or designated representative is authorized to execute
and file all certification of assurances, contracts or agreements or any other
document required by the Department.

3) That Executive Director or designated representative is authorized to provide
additional information as the Department may require in connection with the
application for the Section 5310 projects.

4) That Executive Director or designated representative is authorized to submit
and approve request for reimbursement of funds from the Department for the
Section 5310 project/s.

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.1 

February 16, 2022 

15



Resolution No. 22-04 
Page 2 of 2 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by the 
Board of Directors of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, at a regular meeting 
held on February 16, 2022, by the following vote:  

_____________________   Ayes: 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair 

Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_____________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

16



ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 9.1 

FEBRUARY 16, 2022 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION SECTION 5310 

GRANT APPLICATION 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that on February 16, 2022 at 1:00 pm a public hearing will be conducted by the Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority (NVTA) to consider the matter described below.  Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board meeting will be held virtually. To maximize public safety while 

still maintaining transparency, members of the public may observe and participate in the meeting from 

home. The public is invited to participate telephonically or electronically via the methods below: 

1) To join the meeting via Zoom video conference from your PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android: go to 

https://zoom.us/join and enter meeting ID 997 5007 2830 

2) To join the Zoom meeting by phone: dial 1-669-900-6833, enter meeting ID: 997 5007 2830 If  asked for the

participant ID or code, press #. 

3) Watch live on YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCrpjLcW9uRmA0EE6w-eKZyw?

app=desktop

NVTA is applying for a grant from the State pursuant to Title 49 U.S.C. Section 5310(a)(2) for the purpose of funding up to 

six (6) replacement Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) paratransit compliant vehicles. Title 49 U.S.C. Section 5310(a)(2) 

provides that the State may allocate grant funds to a local governmental authority that: (1) is approved by the State to 

coordinate services for elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities; or (2) has certified that there are no non-profit 

organizations readily available in the area to provide complementary paratransit service. 

All interested persons are invited to attend the hearing and comment on the proposal. Any questions regarding this 

hearing and the Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 program may be directed to Rebecca Schenck, Program 

Manager – Public Transit at 707-259-8636 or NVTA at 625 Burnell Street Napa, California.  

Dated: February 1, 2022  

Rebecca Schenck, Program Manager – Public Transit 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Publish Dates:  February 4, 2022 
February 6, 2022 

17



Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/26/2022 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA 94559 

Meeting Minutes 
NVTA Board of Directors 

REFER TO COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE 
Wednesday, January 19, 2022 1:00 PM 

1. Call to Order

Chair Pedroza called the meeting to order at 1:01pm. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by Director Kraus. 

3. Roll Call
Leon Garcia 
Chris Canning 
Board Member Alfredo Pedroza 
Paul Dohring 
Mark Joseph 
Belia Ramos 
Geoff Ellsworth 
Board Member Liz Alessio 
Gary Kraus 
Scott Sedgley 
Eric Knight 
Absent: 
Doug Weir 
John F. Dunbar 

3.1 AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings (DeeAnne Gillick) (Pages 9-13)  
Attachments: Staff Report 

Motion MOVED by SEDGLEY, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE Adoption of Resolution 22-02 
and recommend for AB 361 requirements to be placed on Consent Agenda for regularly  
scheduled meetings. Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 21 -  Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Ramos, Ellsworth, 
Alessio, Kraus, Sedgley, and Knight 

Absent: 3 -  Garcia, Weir, and Dunbar 

4. Adoption of the Agenda

Motion MOVED by ALESSIO, SECONDED by CANNING to APPROVE adoption of agenda with 
amendment to remove Closed Session Item 12.1. Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 21 -  Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Ramos, Ellsworth, 
Alessio, Kraus, Sedgley, and Knight 

18

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1e366789%1e1fd5%1e4e46%1e84c7%1e955c83d79349.pdf


Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/26/2022 

Absent: 3 -  Garcia, Weir, and Dunbar 

5. Public Comment

Public comment made by Kara Vernor, Napa County Bicycle Coalition. 

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation
Commissioner's, and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

ABAG Update 
-none

MTC Commissioner's Update 
-update was provided by Chair Pedroza on recent MTC activities

7. Director's Update

Director Miller reported: 
-Imola Park and Ride construction update
-Calistoga to St. Helena Vine Trail construction project bid open
-Vine Bus Maintenance Facility groundbreaking scheduled February 18th
-Soscol Junction bid openings scheduled for February 1st
-Upcoming public meetings
-Staff update and recognition

Director Ellsworth announced recruitment for St. Helena City Manager. 

8. PRESENTATIONS

8.1 Recognition of Director Dorman  

8.2 Fare Coordination and Integration Study  

Information Only/No action taken 

Presentation by Bill Bacon of MTC and Mike Eiseman of BART. 

{Director Garcia joined at 1:45pm} 

9. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

Motion MOVED by CANNING, SECONDED by JOSEPH to approve Items 9.1 and 9.2. Motion 
carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 21 -  Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Ramos, Ellsworth, 
Alessio, Kraus, Sedgley, and Knight 

Absent: 3 -  Garcia, Weir, and Dunbar 

9.1 Meeting Minutes of November 17, 2021 (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 14-17)  
Attachments: Draft Minutes 

9.2 Resolution No. 22-01 State-Funded Transit Projects with California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 18-56) 

19

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3dd75f21%1ef188%1e4b76%1eabce%1e68f1f0200f4e.pdf


Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/26/2022 

Attachments: Staff Report 

10. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

10.1 Priority Development Area Investment and Growth Strategy 2021 Update (Diana 
Meehan) (Pages 57-88) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by ALESSIO to receive and file the Priority Development 
Investment and Growth Strategy 2021 update. Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 23 -  Garcia, Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, Kraus, Sedgley, and Knight 

Absent: 1 -  Weir, and Dunbar 

10.2 Swainson Hawk Nesting Tree Credits for Soscol Junction (Danielle Schmitz) (pages 
89-169)

Attachments: Staff Report

Director Garcia inquired about alternative options. 
Chair Pedroza commented about project funding.  

Motion MOVED by ALESSIO, SECONDED by JOSEPH to approve Item 10.2 authorizing the  
Executive Director to execute and make minor modifications to the Bullock Bend Mitigation 
Bank contract for Swainson Hawk nesting tree credit. Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 23 -  Garcia, Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, Kraus, Sedgley, and Knight 

Absent: 1 -  Weir, and Dunbar 

10.3 Transit Operations Services Agreement No. 21-12 with Transdev Services Inc. 
(Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 170-177) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

Director Joseph inquired about modifications to fixed routes and communication to the public. 

Director Dohring requested copy of the full contract once legal counsel has reviewed the 
agreement amendments. 

Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by DOHRING to APPROVE recommended amendment to 
Agreement 21-12, section 3. Motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 23 -  Garcia, Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, Kraus, Sedgley, and Knight 

Absent: 1 -  Weir, and Dunbar 

10.4 Federal and State Legislative Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 178-199)  
Attachments: Staff Report 

Information Only/No Action Taken 

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

-Report NVTA staff Initiatives on Regional Funding sources

20

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=60fac6bc%1e3c5d%1e4823%1ebfb1%1e8915e2f1f97e.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1ba86fc0%1ec20e%1e4d89%1ebb2a%1e977d35428784.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c3f40b8d%1e2b94%1e4bd3%1e83c1%1e14db490fcd2a.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=855181c6%1e908a%1e4928%1eb96a%1eb866087321fe.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=33b65507%1ebaff%1e45d1%1e93e5%1ef5512e669cde.pdf


Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/26/2022 

12. CLOSED SESSION

12.1 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government Code Section 54957.6)) 
Authority Designated Representative: Authority Chair 
Unrepresented Employee: Executive Director 
This Closed Session was withdrawn. 

13. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Pedroza adjourned the meeting at 2:32pm. 

13.1  Approval of Next Regular Meeting Date of February 16, 2022 and 
Adjournment 
____________________________________ 
Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

21



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointments 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the reappointments 
of Patricia Lynch, Hans Korve, and Jean Vincent Deale to the Citizen Advisory Committee 
for renewal of a two (2) year term. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Board action would re-appoint three members to serve on the CAC.  The CAC was formed 
by NVTA to replace a number of ad hoc committees that were convened to advise the 
NVTA Board and NVTA staff on specific modes, projects, and programs.  The CAC make-
up is intended to ensure representation from all aspects of the communities in Napa 
Valley and to retain members to foster expertise and institutional knowledge that was lost 
when committees convened for specific projects or purposes were disbanded.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

22



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda 10.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY:  Laura Sanderlin, Board Secretary (707) 259-8633 / Email: 

lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov 
SUBJECT: Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointments 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the reappointments 
of members Patricia Lynch, Hans Korve and Jean Vincent Deale to the Citizen Advisory 
Committee for another two (2) year term. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND 

The CAC by-laws approved by the NVTA Board state that the committee structure and 
representation should strive to represent a diverse cross-section of the community 
including members of underrepresented groups in Napa Valley.  

The CAC has 19 members and 6 of those seats are currently vacant.  NVTA staff is 
actively recruiting to fill vacant positions. These include members representing the City 
of St. Helena, the City of Calistoga, Agriculture, Environmental Interest, Vintner, and 
Active Transportation.  

City/Town/County members will be appointed by their respective Councils or Board of 
Supervisors whichever is applicable before being approved by the NVTA Board. If 
representation of a certain faction or jurisdiction cannot be filled after solicitation for that 
position, the vacancy may be filled with a member at-large.  

Three acting members have applied for reappointment, including members Patricia 
Lynch, Hans Korve, and Jean Vincent Deale.   

23

mailto:lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 10.2 
February 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board could decide not to approve these reappointments and the positions would 
become vacant at the end of the members’ terms.  

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 1 – Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability. 

The CAC is comprised of members from the community representing various interests in 
Napa Valley.  The purpose of the CAC is to advise the NVTA Board on projects and 
programs. 

ATTACHMENTS 

None 

24



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Resolution No. 22-05 Approving the Amended and Restated Grant of Easement and 
Easement Agreement and Authorization to Transfer an Easement Interest in Real 
Property Identified as Assessor Parcel Number 007-082-004 by Quitclaim Deed to the 
City of Napa 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-
05 Authorization to Convey Fee Simple Interest in Real Property Identified as Assessor 
Parcel Number (APN) 007-082-004 by Quitclaim Deed to the City of Napa and authorize 
the Executive Director to execute and take all actions necessary to quitclaim the deed 
portions of APN 007-082-004 to the City of Napa. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On January 20, 2016 the NVTA (Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency) 
Board approved an agreement and accepted a parcel from Michael D. Marino to construct 
the Solano Section of the Napa Valley Vine Trail.  Since that time, NVTA completed the 
project and staff is now proposing to transfer the parcel to the City of Napa.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

25



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Kate Miller, Executive Director 

(707) 259-8634/Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 22-05 Approving the Amended and Restated Grant of 
Easement and Easement Agreement and Authorization to Transfer an 
Easement Interest in Real Property Identified as Assessor Parcel 
Number 007-082-004 by Quitclaim Deed to the City of Napa 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-
05 (Attachment 1) approving the Amended and Restated Grant of Easement and 
Easement Agreement and Authorization to Transfer an Easement Interest in Real 
Property Identified as Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 007-082-004 by Quitclaim Deed to 
the City of Napa and authorize the Executive Director to execute and take all actions 
necessary to quitclaim the deed portions of APN 007-082-004 to the City of Napa. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

Not applicable 

BACKGROUND 

On January 20, 2016 the NVTA (Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency) 
Board approved an easement agreement and accepted a parcel from Michael D. Marino 
to construct the City of Napa to Yountville section of the Vine Trail.  The trail was 
completed and is being maintained by the City of Napa and the easement is to be 
transferred to the City of Napa consistent with the project plan.  In order for the City to 
accept the transfer of the easement, the City requested certain modifications to the 
easement.  NVTA obtained the approval of the Mr. Marino for the attached Amended and 
Restated Grant of Easement and Easement Agreement. Staff is requested that the Board 
approve the acceptance of the Amended and Restated Grant of Easement and Easement 
Agreement and authorize the transfer of the easement interest of the City of Napa.   

26

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority   Agenda Item 10.3 
February 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________  

The Quitclaim Deed has been reviewed by the City of Napa.  Once the NVTA Executive 
Director executes the Quitclaim Deed, the documents will be presented to the City Council 
of Napa for Approval.  City Council’s action will allow for NVTA to transfer the property to 
the City of Napa.  

The delay was caused by the City rejecting the original easement language.  The 
language was subsequently modified in coordination with the City and the Amended and 
Restated Grant of Easement and Easement Agreement has been signed by Michael D. 
Marino. 

Notice of the proposed transfer to the City was published in the Napa Valley Register on 
January 28, 2022.  A copy of the notification has been included as Attachment 4.  

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board could decide to delay or not transfer the easement to the City of Napa and, 
therefore, continue to incur costs and liability exposures to insure and maintain the parcel. 

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently – the Napa Valley Vine Trail meets all of the goals 
adopted by the NVTA Board but this specific action reduces NVTA’s legal liability 
exposure and maintenance costs by permanently transferring the parcel to the City of 
Napa. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachments:  (1) Resolution No. 22-05 
(2) Amended and Restated Grant of Easement and Easement

Agreement for APN 007-082-004
(3) Quitclaim Deed to City of Napa APN 007-082-004
(4) Public Notice

27



RESOLUTION No. 22-05 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE THE AMENDED AND RESTATED GRANT OF 
EASEMENT AND TRANSFER AN EASEMENT INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY 

IDENTIFIED AS ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER 007-082-004 BY 
QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE CITY OF NAPA 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is the owner of 
certain real property consisting of the Napa Valley Vine Trail easement identified as a 
portion of Assessor Parcel Number 007-082-004 in the City of Napa, County of Napa, 
State of California (Property); 

WHEREAS, NVTA desires to convey the easement to the City of Napa for the 
maintenance of the Napa Valley Vine Trail and thereafter the Property will no longer be 
required for NVTA but it will remain as part of the Napa Valley Vine Trail;  

WHEREAS, NVTA desires to approve the acceptance of the Amended and 
Restated Grant of Easement and Easement Agreement executed by the grantors on 
January 18, 2022, which provided revisions to the easement requested by the City of 
Napa prior to the transfer of the easement to the City of Napa;  

WHEREAS, NVTA has reviewed and determined that the conveyance of the 
Property as being categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) as the proposed 
project is merely the conveyance of title to real property and does not involve construction 
or development; therefore, no significant impact on the environment will occur; and 

WHEREAS, NVTA and the City of Napa concur that it would be in both parties best 
interest to transfer the Property to the City therefore; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors hereby 
adopts, based upon a review of the evidence and information presented on the matter, 
and has determined that the proposed conveyance is categorically exempt from CEQA 
pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b) (3) as there is no possibility that 
the activity in question will have a significant effect on the environment because it is only 
a transfer of title to real property and no further construction activities or development is 
to occur. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors finds that with this 
transfer the City of Napa will continue to maintain the Property as part of the Napa Valley 
Vine Trail and therefore the Property will no longer be required for NVTA use and the 
transfer of this easement is in the public interest.   

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

February 16, 2022 

28



Resolution No. 22-05 
Page 2 of 2 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors authorizes the 
acceptance of the Amended and Restated Grant of Easement and Easement Agreement 
attached as Exhibit “A” related to Assessor Parcel Numbers 007-082-004. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors authorizes the 
conveyance of the Easement by Quitclaim Deed to the City of Napa for the easement 
portion of the real property located in the City of Napa identified as a portion of Assessor 
Parcel Numbers 007-082-004 in the substantial form as Exhibit “A” attached hereto.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Executive Director, or designee, is 
authorized to execute any documents and take such action to complete this transaction. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the NVTA Board Secretary had given notice 
hereof as provided in Section 6061 of the Government Code. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by 
the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, at a regular meeting 
held on February 16, 2022, by the following vote: 

_______________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

29



EXHIBIT "A"

30



ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.3 
FEBRUARY 16, 2022

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



 
 
 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:    
    
NAME City of Napa 
Attn:  City Clerk 

   

P.O. Box 660    
Napa, CA  94559-0660    
 
 

  
 

 
 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

 

 
QUITCLAIM DEED 

 
 (portion of) A.P.N: 007-082-004  

 
This document is exempt from recording fees 
pursuant to Government Code § 27383 and 
exempt from Documentary Transfer Tax pursuant 
to Revenue and Taxation Code §11922 
 
 
FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the CITY 
OF NAPA, a municipal corporation, does hereby remise, release, and forever quitclaim 
to Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency, all right, title, and interest in the 
following described real property situate, lying and being in the County of Napa, State of 
California, more particularly described as follows: 

 

All that certain real property conveyed by the Grant Deed to Napa County Transportation and 
Planning Agency recorded February XX, 2022 as Instrument Number XX, Napa County 
Official Records, further described and shown in Exhibits A, attached hereto and by this 
reference incorporated herein. 
 

 

Dated     _________________ 
 

  

  
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 
 
By:_____________________________________ 
     Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Board Chair  
 
 
 

 

   

   

 
 

MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO: 
SAME AS ABOVE 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

February 16, 2022 

41



ALL PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who 
signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of 
that document.  

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
 )SS 

COUNTY OF NAPA   ) 

On ________________________________, before me,  ____         _____________, Notary Public, 
personally appeared _______________________________________, who proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and 
that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the 
person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

Signature  (Seal) 
Notary Public 

42



ATTACHMENT 4 
AGENDA ITEM 10.3 

FEBRUARY 16, 2022 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION  AUTHORITY 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONVEY FEE SIMPLE INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY 
TO THE CITY OF NAPA 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is the 
owner of certain real property consisting of the Napa Valley Vine Trail identified with 
Assessor Parcel Number 007-082-004 in the City of Napa, County of Napa, State of 
California (Property). NVTA desires to convey the Property to the City of Napa (City) for 
the maintenance of the Napa Valley Vine Trail and thereafter will no longer be required 
for NVTA use. NVTA and the City concur that it would be in both parties’ best interests 
to transfer the Property to the City. Therefore, the NVTA Board of Directors, in regular 
session on February 16, 2022 at 1:00 PM at 625 Burnell St Napa, CA 94559 intends to 
convey to the City the Property.  Due to the Pandemic and in accordance with Assembly 
Bill 361, in-person NVTA Board meetings have been suspended until further notice.  
Members of the public who wish to comment during the meeting, are encouraged to do 
so by participating on-line at:  https://countyofnapa.zoom.us/j/99750072830 or by phone 
at:   1-669-900 6833  Webinar ID: 997 5007 2830 

Contact: 

Kate Miller 

(707) 259-8634

625 Burnell St.

Napa, CA 94559

kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

PUBLISH: Must be published on or before January 28, 2022 

#### 

43

https://countyofnapa.zoom.us/j/99750072830


February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 

SUBJECT 

Resolution No. 22-06 Adopting the Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program 
Manager Expenditure Plan for Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2023 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-
06 (Attachment 1) adopting the Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2023 Transportation Fund for 
Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan (Attachment 1, Exhibit A). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NVTA annually allocates TFCA funds which are generated from a four-dollar vehicle 
license fee authorized under Assembly Bill 434 (AB 434) administered by the Bay Area 
Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). Of the total amount generated in Napa 
County, 40% are returned to NVTA for distribution to local projects.  Projects must be 
beneficial to air quality and meet the BAAQMD’s cost effectiveness criteria.  The 
remaining 60% is allocated by the BAAQMD on an air district-wide competitive basis.  The 
Program Expenditure Plan for the Program Managers’ Funds is due in March 2022. 

The BAAQMD TFCA policies only allow funds to be retained for two (2) years unless 
NVTA originally requests additional time or the project is making reasonable progress 
and is granted a one (1) year extension.  Bicycle Projects must be completed in 2 years 
and will not be granted a time extension beyond that limit. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$204,872 in TFCA Program Manager funds are available for program Administration 
and projects. 

44



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Diana Meehan, Senior Planner 

(707) 259-8327 / Email: dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 22-06 Adopting the Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
(TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan for Fiscal Year End (FYE) 
2023  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-
06 (Attachment 1) adopting the Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2023 Transportation Fund for 
Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan (Attachment 1, Exhibit A). 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

The Technical Advisory Committee recommended the NVTA Board approve the TFCA 
Program Manager Fund Expenditure Plan for FYE 2023 at its February 3rd meeting. 

BACKGROUND 

NVTA adopts a list of projects annually for the TFCA Program Manager funds.  NVTA 
receives roughly $190,000 each year in DMV revenues.  Six and one quarter percent 
(6.25%) of the revenues can be used for administration of the program.   

Beginning in 2018, NVTA staff recommended the TAC collectively plan the TFCA 
program manager funds over a three-year rolling period in order to use the funds more 
efficiently, especially for larger projects. Funds programmed in the first year of the three-
year cycle have a firm commitment under the annually adopted expenditure plan. Funds 
in years two and three are flexible, based on project status and actual available revenues 
generated by the program.  NVTA, as the program manager, reviews the program and 
trues up funding annually. A call for projects for FYE 2022 through FYE 2024 was issued 
in February 2021, but only two applications were received for FYE 2022. The full amount, 

45

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 10.4 
February 16, 2022 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
$207,140 was programmed in November 2021. Funds for program administration and 
projects for FYE 2023 are $204,872 and year three is estimated as shown in Table 1. 

Table 1: Three-year Cycle FYE 2022-2024 TFCA Program Manager Funds (Year 3 
Estimated) 

FYE 2022-2024 TFCA 
Expenditures 

Program 
Amount 

Year 1 (2022) 

Program 
Amount 

Year 2 (2023) 

Program 
Amount 

Year 3 (Est) 
Administration Costs for FYE 
2022-24 $12,946 $11,733 $12,000 

Program Manager Funds $194,194 $193,101 $180,000 

TOTAL $207,140 $ 204,872 $192,000 

The Program Expenditure Plan for FYE 2023 Program Manager Funds is due to the Air 
District by March 1, 2022. Funds not programmed annually run the risk of being 
programmed by the Air District to other counties.  The Air District is finalizing 2023 policy 
guidance and once it is issued, staff will bring the updated guidance back to the board to 
open a call for projects for Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024. 

TFCA Basic Eligibility 

1. Reduction of emissions
2. TFCA cost-effectiveness
3. Eligible recipients (Public agencies or public agencies applying on behalf of non-

public entities)
4. Consistent with existing plans and programs
5. Environmental clearance

TFCA Project Eligibility 

1. Bicycle Facility Improvements
2. Arterial Management
3. Transit or Vanpool Incentive Programs
4. Shuttle/Vanpool Feeder Program
5. Clean Air Pilot or demonstration projects

46



Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 10.4 
February 16, 2022 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board could choose not to approve the FYE 2023 Expenditure Plan, and program 
funds could be reallocated to projects in another county. 

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 1: Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, income 
or ability. 

The TFCA Program Manager Funds provide an opportunity to fund sustainable 
transportation projects, such as bicycle and pedestrian projects, clean vehicles and 
vehicle charging infrastructure or shuttle projects to serve a wide variety of local 
transportation needs. 

Goal 5: Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods 

The TFCA funded projects improve air quality and reduce traffic congestion by providing 
sustainable transportation options throughout the region. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

Attachment 1: Resolution No. 22-06 

47



ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

February 16, 2022 

RESOLUTION No. 22-06 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

ADOPTING THE TRANSPORTATION FUND FOR CLEAN AIR (TFCA) 
PROGRAM MANAGER EXPENDITURE PROGRAM FOR 

FISCAL YEAR END (FYE) 2023  

WHEREAS, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) has imposed 
a vehicle license fee as allowed under Assembly Bill 434 to implement actions that will help 
reduce harmful auto emissions; and 

WHEREAS, that program is known as the Transportation Fund for Clean Air Program 
Manager funds; and 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 434 calls for the designation of an overall program 
manager to receive forty percent of the fees generated in the county to be expended for the 
improvement of air quality; and 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) has been designated 
the overall program manager for Napa County; and 

WHEREAS, the TFCA Program requires at least one public meeting each year for 
the purpose of adopting criteria for the expenditure of funds consistent with BAAQMD’s 
Adopted TFCA County Program Manager Fund Policies; and  

WHEREAS, the NVTA held a public meeting on February 16, 2022, to adopt the 
criteria for the expenditure of TFCA funds.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors that 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

2. Staff is directed to finalize and submit the FYE 2023 Expenditure Plan for Napa
County, as shown in Exhibit A. 

48



 
Resolution No. 22-06 

Page 2 of 2 

3. The Executive Director or her designee is authorized to submit to or request all 
necessary information from other agencies on behalf of the NVTA, and to execute any other 
documents or certifications to gain and expend these funds.  
 
Passed and adopted this day of February 16, 2022. 
 
 
_______________________     Ayes 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
               Nays: 
 
 
 
               Absent: 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_________________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA General Counsel 

49



Revised 12/30/2021

County Program Manager Agency Name: Napa Valley Transportation Authority

Address: 625 Burnell St., Napa, CA 94559
PART A: NEW TFCA FUNDS Project Admin (default 6.25%)[1] Total (Project + Admin)

1. Estimated FYE 2023 DMV revenues (based on projected CY2021 revenues): Line 1 $191,625 12,775$  204,400$                       
2. Difference between prior-year estimate and actual revenue: Line 2 -$7,089 -$473 -$7,562

a. Actual FYE 2021 DMV revenues (based on CY2020): 2a $188,473 12,565$  201,038$  

b. Estimated FYE 2021 DMV revenues: 2b $195,563 13,038$  208,600$  
(‘a’ minus ‘b’ equals Line 2.)

3 Estimated New Allocation (Sum of Lines 1 and 2) : Line 3 $184,063 $12,300 $196,800

PART B: INTEREST FOR PROGRAMMING AND TFCA FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR REPROGRAMMING

4 Total available for programming/reprogramming to other projects. Line 4 $8,601 -$567 $8,034
a. Amount available from previously funded projects: 4a $0
b. Admin expended in FYE 2021: 4b 13132
c. Interest income earned on TFCA funds in CY 2021: 4c $8,601 $8,601

(Project equals ‘4a’ plus ‘4c’ equals Line 4. Admin equals '2a' minus '4b'.)

PART C: TOTAL AVAILABLE TFCA FUNDS
5 Total Available TFCA Funds (Sum of Lines 1, 2 and 4) Line 5 $192,664 $12,208 $204,872

Executive Director Signature Date

Summary Information
Directions: Please fill out the yellow highlights.

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the information contained in this application is complete and 
accurate.  

[1] The “Estimated TFCA funds budgeted for administration” amount is listed for informational purposes only.  Per California 
Health and Safety Code Section 44233, County Program Managers must limit their administrative costs to no more than 6.25% 
of the actual total revenue received from the Air District.

 EXHIBIT "A"

50



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5 

Continued From: January 19, 2022 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 22-07 
and holding the next NVTA meeting remotely should the existing emergency declaration 
continue, permitting remote meeting allowances in accordance with AB 361. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

AB 361 allows local legislative bodies to hold remote meetings during a proclaimed state 
of emergency, if state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures that 
warrant holding meetings remotely.   

On September 27, 2021 the Napa County Executive Officer and Public Health Officer 
issued a recommendation that all public boards and commissions that wish to continue 
meeting remotely to help minimize the spread and transmission of COVID-19 be 
permitted to do so.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

51



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5 

Continued From: January 19, 2022 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Laura Sanderlin, Office Manager/Board Secretary 

(707) 259-8633 / Email: lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 22-07 
making findings and declaring it intent to continue remote teleconference meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) due to the Governor’s COVID-19 
State of Emergency Proclamation.  

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None  

BACKGROUND 

AB 361 allows local legislative bodies to hold remote meetings during a proclaimed state 
of emergency, if state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures that 
warrant holding meetings remotely.   

On September 27, 2021 the Napa County Executive Officer and Public Health Officer 
issued a recommendation that all public boards and commissions that wish to continue 
meeting remotely to help minimize the spread and transmission of COVID-19 be 
permitted to do so.  

NVTA staff is monitoring the status of the Governor’s state of emergency proclamation, 
state and local orders related to social distancing, and health and safety conditions related 
to COVID-19, and confirm that said conditions continue to exist that warrant remote only 
meetings pursuant to the provisions of paragraph Government Code section 54953, 
subdivision (e)(3). Staff recommends the Board extend the time during which it may 
continue to meet by teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b) of section 54953 of the Brown Act.

52

mailto:lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 10.5 
February 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board could decide not to approve Resolution 22-07 which would put the NVTA 
Board of Director’s meeting out of government compliance.  

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1) Resolution 22-07

53



Attachment 1 
AGENDA ITEM 10.5 

FEBRUARY 16, 2022 

RESOLUTION No. 22-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

MAKING FINDINGS REAUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS 
AND DECLARING ITS INTENT TO CONTINUE REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 

MEETINGS PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953  

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is committed to 
preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board;  

WHEREAS, all legislative body meetings of NVTA are open and public, as required by 
the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the 
public may attend, participate, and observe the Commission conduct its business; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Newsom signed AB 361, amending the Brown Act, including 
Government Code section 54953(e), which makes provisions for remote teleconferencing 
participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance with the 
requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of certain 
conditions; and 

WHEREAS, a required condition of AB 361 is that a state of emergency is declared by 
the Governor pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of 
conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the 
state caused by conditions as described in Government Code section 8558; and  

WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the State, specifically, the Governor of the 
State of California proclaimed a state of emergency on March 4, 2020, related to the 
threat of COVID-19, which remains in effect and Executive order N-1-22; and 

WHEREAS, on September 27, 2021, the Napa County Executive Officer and Public 
Health Officer jointly recommended social distancing measures and that all boards and 
commissions continue meeting remotely, in whole or in part, in order to help minimize the 
spread and transmission of COVID-19 and its variants; and 

WHEREAS, due to the seriousness of the current pandemic situation, the Napa County 
Executive Officer and Public Health Officer has required that all unvaccinated persons 
wear facial coverings indoors, and recommend that all persons, regardless of vaccination 
status, wear facial coverings indoors; and 

WHEREAS, the Board  found on January 19, 2022 pursuant to Resolution 22-02 that 
the COVID-19 emergency has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to 
the safety of persons that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, 

54



 
Resolution No. 22-07 

Page 2 of 3 
 

equipment, and facilities of NVTA, and found that meeting in person for meetings of all 
NVTA legislative bodies would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, 
and thus the Board invoked the provisions of AB 361 to allow for remote teleconference 
meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that emergency conditions persist 

within the County of Napa due to the COVID-19 emergency, the state of emergency 
continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person, and the 
Governor’s state of emergency proclamation, state regulations and local 
recommendations related to social distancing continue.   

 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE NAPA VALLEY 
TRANSPORTATION BOARD DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER 
AS FOLLOWS:    
 

1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into this 
Resolution by this reference. 
 

 2. The Board hereby finds that meeting in person for meetings of all NVTA related 
legislative bodies subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act would present imminent risks to the 
health and safety of attendees.   

 
3.  Staff is hereby directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and 

purpose of this Resolution including, conducting open and public meetings of the Board 
and all NVTA legislative bodies in accordance with Government Code section 54953, 
subdivision (e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act for remote only 
teleconference meetings. 
 

4.  Staff is further directed to continue to monitor the health and safety conditions 
related to COVID-19, the status of the Governor’s state of emergency, the state 
regulations related to social distancing, and the local orders related to health and safety, 
and present to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting the related information 
and recommendations for remote only meetings pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 
Government Code section 54953, subdivision (e)(3), and to consider extending the time 
during which the Commission may continue to meet by teleconference without 
compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by 

the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, at a regular meeting 
held on February 16, 2022, by the following vote: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair      Ayes: 
 

55



Resolution No. 22-07 
Page 3 of 3 

      Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

56



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Vine Transit Update 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the NVTA Board receive the second quarter FY 2021-22 Vine Transit update.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report summarizes the Vine’s operational performance during the second quarter for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22, covering the period of October 1 to December 31, 2021, and 
provides an update on service changes in response to the COVID-19 pandemic impact 
on the number of available drivers. The board memo compares the second quarter of FY 
2022 (October – December) to both the second quarter of FY 2021 and to the previous 
quarter (July – September) to highlight the differences between the same time period last 
year and to recent months of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

57



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.1 

Continued From: New  
Action Requested: INFORMATION 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Program Manager – Public Transit 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Vine Transit Update 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the NVTA Board receive the second quarter FY 2021-22 Vine Transit update.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Summary of Early Pandemic-Related Operational Changes (2020 – 2021) 
 
In March 2020, NVTA made a number of service changes in response to reduced 
ridership demand associated with the coronavirus pandemic and public health orders 
issued by the State and County of Napa. Specifically, service hours were reduced, fare 
payment was suspended, seat spacing was introduced, and buses began using rear door 
only boarding whenever feasible to ensure the safety of riders and drivers.  
 
In mid-March of 2020, weekday service hours on Routes 10 and 11 were reduced to a 
Saturday schedule. Routes 10X and 11X were suspended – after already showing mixed 
ridership performance in the months preceding the pandemic. On April 27, 2020, local 
fixed route services in the City of Napa (A-H) were suspended and transitioned to Stop to 
Stop On-Demand service for local trips. On May 13, 2020, following the County of Napa’s 
revised Shelter at Home order, NVTA posted notices requiring the use of face coverings 
by passengers and staff. All of these service changes remained in effect until August 15, 
2021. 
 

58

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 12.1 
February 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, NVTA supported auxiliary Emergency Operation 
Center (EOC) functions that included meal delivery to residents in isolation and 
quarantine sites, food bank distribution when distribution centers were closed to the 
public, and related transportation. These operations ceased on August 15, 2021.   NVTA 
returned to higher level of service and Napa County EOC operations slowed down.  

On May 9, 2021, the Vine returned to a weekday schedule on the Routes 10 and 11 (had 
been running on Saturday schedules since March 2020); implemented a fixed-route/on-
demand hybrid which introduced two new fixed routes (Routes N and S), and maintained 
the existing on-demand service in the City of Napa. The Yountville Trolley and Calistoga 
Shuttle also extended hours on Friday and Saturday nights. 

On August 15, 2021 the Vine reintroduced the Route 11X in response to the Vallejo 
Ferry’s new service in July; and added Routes E and W in the City of Napa. Vine also 
reinstated a second shuttle in Calistoga and American Canyon and fixed route school 
trippers in St. Helena and American Canyon.   

In response to bus driver shortages, the Vine made additional service changes on 
November 21, 2021. These changes included extending run times to 45 minutes 
(previously 30 minutes) on Routes W and S. The Vine also limited on-demand services 
in the City of Napa to operate only where a fixed route is not available, and removed low 
performing trips on Routes 21, 11 and 11X.  Also, in response to a request from Rohllfs 
Manor, the Route N was extended to provide fixed route service to Rohllfs Manor and the 
Napa Senior Center 

Emergency Service Reductions (2022) 

Vine Transit operations have not been immune from the current increase in COVID cases 
in the community. A number of bus drivers are currently out due to COVID-19 illness or 
exposure. Due to this short-term reduction in the number of available bus drivers, NVTA 
took steps to reduce service to minimize missed trips. NVTA announced the changes via 
press release, social media and signs to allow riders to plan ahead to take different trips 
to reach their destinations over the next two weeks. 

Vine Transit instituted reduced services on its fixed route system and community shuttles 
on January 22. Service changes include: 

• Regional Service on the Route 10 Monday-Saturday has been reduced to
Saturday Service.  Route 10 Sunday service is on the normal Sunday Schedule.

• Sunday Service on the Yountville Trolley has been temporarily discontinued.
Service remains the same for all other days of the week.

• All Service on the 11X has been temporarily discontinued.

59



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 12.1 
February 16, 2022 
Page 3 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

• Two trips on the Napa BART Express will not run; Route 29 will not go to the El 
Cerrito Del Norte BART station at 6:00 am or return to the Redwood Park and 
Ride on the 7:20 am. 
 

NVTA hopes to have enough available drivers to return to the regular schedule on 
February 6. Staff is assessing the situation daily to evaluate whether further changes are 
warranted.   
 
Vine Transit continues to follow recommended health and sanitation requirements. As 
mandated by the Transportation Security Administration, face masks are required on Vine 
vehicles, at bus stops, and all facilities through March 18, 2022. Vine buses are 
thoroughly sterilized each day and frequently touched areas, such as handrails, are 
cleaned several times daily. 
 
Vine Transit Performance 
The first four tables compare ridership across different services in the second quarter of 
FY 2021-22 (October to December) to the same period in the prior fiscal year. Table 1 
shows a 102.19% increase in ridership from 12,654 to 25,585 in the City of Napa from 
the second quarter of FY 2020-21 to the current fiscal year. This increase is most likely 
due to the re-introduction of fixed routes (N, S, W & E) in the City of Napa. In the prior 
fiscal year, there was only on-demand service. One of the purposes of re-introducing 
those fixed routes was to increase ridership and ease rider demand pressure on the on-
demand services by transferring riders to fixed routes.  
 
 
Table 1: City of Napa– Comparing Q2 of FY21 & FY22 

  FY 20/21 FY 21/22 % 
Difference 

Numerical 
Difference 

Napa Local On-Demand 12,654 6,316 -50.09% -6,338 
Route N N/A 9,365 N/A 9,365 
Route S N/A 3,084 N/A 3,084 
Route W N/A 5,955 N/A 5,955 
Route E N/A 865 N/A 865 
Total Rides 12,654 25,585 102.19% 12,931 

 
Table 2 indicates an overall increase in ridership on the regional and express routes (10, 
11, 11X, 21 and 29). The increase in the second quarter between fiscal years 2020-21 
and 2021-22 was 22.31% percent. Route 10 showed the largest percentage increase in 
ridership (29.80%) of all of the regional and express routes.  
 
 
 
 

60



Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 12.1 
February 16, 2022 
Page 4 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Table 2: Routes 10, 11, 11X, 21 and 29 Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY21 & FY22 
FY 

20/21 
FY 

21/22 
% 

Difference 
Numerical 
Difference 

Route 10 21,121 27,415 29.80% 6,294 
Route 11 21,660 25,482 17.65% 3,822 
Route 11X * N/A 1,524 - 1,524 
Route 21 3,641 4,185 14.95% 544 
Route 29 8,193 8,194 0.01% 1 
Total 54,615 66,800 22.31% 12,185 

*Route 11X was reinstated on August 15, 2021

Table 3 shows the ridership patterns on the four community shuttles. The combined 
ridership is up significantly at 111.60% compared to the same quarter in the prior fiscal 
year. Ridership substantially increased across all the community shuttles in the second 
quarter of the current fiscal year.  

Table 3: Community Shuttles– Comparing Q2 of FY21 & FY22 
FY 

20/21 
FY 

21/22 
% 

Difference 
Numerical 
Difference 

Calistoga Shuttle 1,403 3,324 136.92% 1,921 
St. Helena Shuttle 704 1,181 67.76% 477 
Yountville Trolley 763 984 28.96% 221 
American Canyon 
Transit 1,450 3,652 151.86% 2,202 

Total 4,320 9,141 111.60% 4,821 

VineGo ridership is also rebounding (57.21%) compared to the same time last year as 
shown in Table 4. NVTA still has a reduced number of vehicles serving VineGo as 
ridership remains well below pre-COVID levels. Many of the customers who use VineGo 
travel for programs that remain suspended during the pandemic such as Collabria Day 
Program, Napa Senior Center events, and Clinic Olé classes.  

Table 4: VineGo Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY21 & FY22 
FY 

20/21 
FY 

21/22 
% 

Difference 
Numerical 
Difference 

VineGo 846 1,330 57.21% 484 

Tables 5, 6 and 7, compare the first quarter of FY 2021-22 (July – September) to the 
second quarter of FY 2021-22 (October – December) to provide additional context on 
ridership changes. Table 5 shows an overall slight decrease in ridership (-1.03%) in the 
City of Napa. The overall decrease is due to the significant drop in on-demand ridership 
particularly in December 2021 as COVID cases rose and new on-demand restrictions 

61



Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 12.1 
February 16, 2022 
Page 5 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

were put in place to decrease wait times. All the fixed routes increased their ridership. 
Routes W and S began their service in the middle of Q1 of FY22, compared to a full 
quarter’s worth of Q2 data on those routes.    

Table 5 City of Napa Ridership – Comparing Q1 of FY22 & Q2 of FY22 

Q1 FY 22 Q2 FY 22 % Difference Numerical 
Difference 

Napa Local On-Demand 12,654 6,316 -50.09% -6,338
Route N 6,114 9,365 53.17% 3,251 
Route S 2,932 3,084 5.18% 152 
Route W (started Aug 15th) 3,693 5,955 61.25% 2,262 
Route E (started Aug 15th) 458 865 88.86% 407 
Total 25,851 25,585 -1.03% -266

Ridership decreased over the prior quarter on the regional routes by 9.41% as seen in 
Table 6.  Route 11X is the only route where ridership went up. It should be noted that the 
service was re-introduced on August 15, 2021, in the middle of Q1 of FY 22, so the 1,418 
ridership figure doesn’t cover the entire quarter. These drops in ridership across the 
regional routes could be caused by typical seasonal declines in ridership during the 
months of November and December as the weather cools down and there are more 
holidays and less demand for regional service.  

Table 6: Routes 10, 11, 21 & 29 Ridership – Comparing Q1 of FY22 & Q2 of FY22 
Q1 FY 

22 
Q2 FY 

22 
% 

Difference 
Numerical 
Difference 

Route 10 31,806 27,415 -13.81% -4,391
Route 11 26,945 25,482 -5.43% -1,463
Route 11X (started on 
Aug 15) 1,418 1,524 7.48% 106 

Route 21 4,909 4,185 -14.75% -724
Route 29 8,663 8,194 -5.41% -469
Total 73,741 66,800 -9.41% -6,941

For the community shuttles, ridership decreased on almost all services compared to the 
first quarter of the current fiscal year as seen in Table 7. The decreases in ridership is 
most prevalent in Calistoga where ridership tends to peak in September when tourists are 
abundant and school begins  and then fall in December when only one shuttle is operating 
because there are fewer tourists and a long school vacation. The increase in ridership on 
American Canyon Transit is most likely due to students attending school for in-person 
learning for all three months of the second quarter. 

62



Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 12.1 
February 16, 2022 
Page 6 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Table 7: Community Shuttles– Comparing Q1 of FY22 & Q2 of FY22 
Q1 

FY 22 
Q2 

FY 22 
% 

Difference 
Numerical 
Difference 

Calistoga Shuttle 3,777 3,324 -11.99% -453
St. Helena Shuttle 1,215 1,181 -2.80% -34
Yountville Trolley 1,021 984 -3.62% -37
American Canyon Transit 3,079 3,652 18.61% 573 
Total 9,092 9,141 0.54% 49 

Another contributing factor across local and regional fixed route and community shuttles 
was the high number of missed trips due to driver shortages starting in September 2021. 
NVTA went from under 20 missed trips per month from January to August 2021, to 
between 80 and 110 missed trips from September to December 2021 across all services. 

VineGo ridership remained almost identical when compared to the previous quarter of the 
current fiscal year as seen in Table 8. NVTA has recently seen an uptick in VineGo 
applications and renewals, therefore VineGo ridership is expected to rise as more people 
become eligible. However, with the current spike in COVID cases we expect to see the 
demand drop in the short-term since many VineGo riders are considered higher-risk 
individuals.  

Table 8: VineGo Ridership – Comparing Q1 of FY22 & Q2 of FY22 
Q1 

FY 22 
Q2 

FY 22 
% 

Difference 
Numerical 
Difference 

VineGo 1,346 1,330 -1.19% -16

In prior reports, staff also provided a table showing on-time performance for the nine fixed 
route services that NVTA operates. But because of the transition between the old Avail 
Computer Aided Dispatch/Automatic Vehicle Locator (CAD/AVL) system to the new GMV 
CAD/AVL system the data is incomplete.   In the third quarter for FY 21-22, all Vine buses 
will all be on the GMV system and staff will have a full picture of on-time performance and 
staff will provide a comprehensive report to the Board.  

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 1: Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, income 
or ability 

Goal 2: Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users 

Transit service continue to provide essential transportation for access to services and 
employment. Additional steps are being taken to improve safety for passengers and staff. 

63



Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 12.1 
February 16, 2022 
Page 7 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

None 

64



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Napa Valley Forward – Award of Right of Way Acquisition Services Agreement 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to enter into and make minor modifications to Agreement No. 22-01 with 
Overland, Pacific & Cutler, LLC (OPC) (Attachment 1) for the Right of Way Acquisition 
Services in an amount not to exceed $150,000.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) has partnered with the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) to deliver improvements along an up valley portion of 
State Route 29 (SR 29) called the Napa Valley Forward Project.  Napa Valley Forward 
(NVF) will make multi-modal improvements at three intersections:   SR 29 and Madison 
Street in the Town of Yountville, SR 29 and Oakville Cross Road, and SR 29 and 
Rutherford Road (SR 128) in unincorporated Napa County  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
$150,000; NVTA has entered into an agreement with the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission in the amount of $150,000 that will cover the cost of this contract. 

65



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Alberto Esqueda, Senior Planner 

(707) 259-5976 / Email: aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT:  Napa Valley Forward – Award of Right of Way Acquisition Services 
Agreement 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to enter into and make minor modifications to Agreement No. 22-01 with 
Overland, Pacific & Cutler, LLC (OPC) (Attachment 1) for the Right of Way Acquisition 
Services in an amount not to exceed $150,000.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is partnering with the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) to deliver improvements along an up valley portion 
of State Route 29 (SR 29) called the Napa Valley Forward Project.  Napa Valley 
Forward (NVF) project will make multi-modal improvements at three intersections:   SR 
29 and Madison Street in the Town of Yountville, SR 29 and Oakville Cross Road, and 
SR 29 and Rutherford Road (SR 128) in unincorporated Napa County. 
   
Intersection Improvements would greatly improve traffic operations, slow traffic to allow 
for cross traffic to safely turn left onto SR 29 and improve bicycle and pedestrian 
movements.  Improvements at Oakville Cross Road and Rutherford Road would reduce 
speeds and enhance safety. Currently, high speeds and unprotected movements are 
particularly hazardous for bicyclists and pedestrians.  The project would address safety 
by introducing facilities that reduce auto speeds and provide safer bicycle and 

66

mailto:aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov


pedestrian crossings.   The project would also reduce wait times for vehicles on cross 
streets.  
 
The Napa Forward project was awarded $6 million under MTC’s Safe and Seamless 
Mobility Quick Strike Program.  This is in addition to $2 million in MTC capital funds for 
the Napa Valley Forward project; of which $1 million is for Napa Forward Commute 
Program.   
 
MTC hired GHD to complete the project preliminary engineering and environmental 
phases. Because NVTA staff have a greater familiarity with the project location and 
community, it was decided that NVTA should take the lead on the right of way (ROW) 
phase.  This contract would supplement MTC’s consultant team with a right-of-way agent 
to assist in parcel appraisal, negotiations and acquisitions. 
 
NVTA released the Request for Proposals (RFP) to its on-call consultants on November 
3, 2021. Bids were due on November 29, 2021. A total of two (2) bids were received and 
Overland, Pacific, and Cutler (OPC), LLC provided the lowest responsible bid.   
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could decide not to award OPC a contract to provide right-of-way agent 
services for the Napa Forward Project but this would result in project delays and 
potentially compromise the Safe and Seamless Mobility Quick Strike funding.  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1 – Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability.  
 
The project serves multimodal transportation needs for Napa County’s residents, visitors 
and workers. The projects would better serve bicyclists and pedestrians. 
 
Goal 2 – Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users 
 
The project improve multimodal connectivity and operations for all modes. Roundabouts 
have been shown to reduce fatalities by over 90% as compared to traditional 
intersections. 
 
 
Goal 4 – Support Napa County’s economic vitality. 
 
The project will improve a key goods movement route and improve access to employment 
centers up valley.   
 

67



ATTACHMENT 
 
(1) NVF ROW Agreement No. 22-01 

68



NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

AGREEMENT NO. C22-01

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this ____ day 
of________________, 2022, by and between the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, 
a joint powers agency under the laws of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as 
“NVTA”, and Overland Pacific & Cutler, LLC, OPC, a registered Corporation in the State 
of California, whose mailing address is 980 9th Street, Suite 1600, Sacramento, CA 
95814, hereinafter referred to as “CONTRACTOR”; 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, NVTA wishes to obtain specialized right of way acquisition services 
in support of the Napa Valley Forward project; and  

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is willing and has been determined to be qualified to 
provide such specialized services to NVTA under the terms and conditions set forth 
herein; 

TERMS 

NOW, THEREFORE, NVTA hereby engages the services of CONTRACTOR, and 
CONTRACTOR agrees to serve NVTA in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth herein: 

1. Term of the Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date
first above written and shall expire on June 30, 2023,  unless earlier terminated as
provided herein, except that the obligations of the parties under “Insurance” and
“Indemnification” shall continue in full force and effect after said expiration date or early
termination in relation to acts or omissions occurring prior to such dates during the term
of the Agreement, and the obligations of CONTRACTOR to NVTA shall also continue
after said expiration date or early termination in relation to the obligations prescribed by
“Confidentiality,” “Taxes,” and  “Access to Records/Retention)”.

2. Scope of Services.  CONTRACTOR shall provide NVTA those services set forth
in CONTRACTOR’s proposal (EXHIBIT “A”), attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.  EXHIBIT A is provided solely to describe the services to be provided.
Any terms contained in EXHIBIT A that add to, vary or conflict with the terms of this
Agreement are null and void.

D R A F T
ATTACHMENT 1
AGENDA ITEM 12.2
FEBRUARY 16, 2022

69



3. Compensation.
(a) Rates.  In consideration of CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of the promised

work, NVTA shall pay CONTRACTOR at the rate set forth in EXHIBIT “B”, attached hereto 
and incorporated by reference herein. 

(b) Expenses.  Unless explicitly agreed in writing, no direct expenses, including
travel or other expenses, will be reimbursed by NVTA. 

(c) Maximum Amount.  Notwithstanding subparagraphs (a) and (b), the 
maximum payments under this Agreement shall be a total of $234,562.50 for professional 
services and expenses; provided, however, that such amounts shall not be construed as 
guaranteed sums, and compensation shall be based upon services actually rendered. 

4. Method of Payment.
(a) Invoices. All payments for compensation shall be made only upon

presentation by CONTRACTOR to NVTA of an itemized billing invoice in a form 
acceptable to the NVTA Manager of Finance which indicates, at a minimum, 
CONTRACTOR's name, address, Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number, 
itemization of the hours worked or, where compensation is on a per-task basis, a 
description of the tasks completed during the billing period, the person(s) actually 
performing the services and the position(s) held by such person(s), and the approved 
hourly or task rate. CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices not more often than every 30 
days to NVTA Accounts Payable at 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA 94559 or electronically 
to ap@nvta.ca.gov, who after review and approval as to form and content, shall submit 
the invoice to the NVTA Director Administration, Finance and Policy no later than fifteen 
(15) calendar days following receipt.

(b) Legal Status. So that NVTA may properly comply with its reporting
obligations under federal and state laws pertaining to taxation, if CONTRACTOR is or 
becomes a corporation during the term of this Agreement, proof that such status is 
currently recognized by and complies with the laws of both the state of incorporation or 
organization and the State of California, if different, shall be maintained on file with the 
Secretary of  NVTA’s Board of Directors at all times during the term of this Agreement in 
a form satisfactory to the NVTA Manager of Finance.  Such proof shall include, but need 
not be limited to, a copy of any annual or other periodic filings or registrations required by 
the state of origin or California, the current address for service of process on the 
corporation or limited liability partnership, and the name of any agent designated for 
service of process by CONTRACTOR within the State of California. 

5. Independent Contractor.  CONTRACTOR shall perform this Agreement as an
independent contractor.  CONTRACTOR and the officers, agents and employees of
CONTRACTOR are not, and shall not be deemed, NVTA employees for any purpose,
including workers' compensation and employee benefits.  CONTRACTOR shall, at
CONTRACTOR’s own risk and expense, determine the method and manner by which
duties imposed on CONTRACTOR by this Agreement shall be performed; provided,
however, that NVTA may monitor the work performed by CONTRACTOR.  NVTA shall

70

mailto:ap@nvta.ca.gov


not deduct or withhold any amounts whatsoever from the compensation paid to 
CONTRACTOR, including, but not limited to amounts required to be withheld for state 
and federal taxes.  As between the parties to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall be 
solely responsible for all such payments. 

6. Specific Performance.  It is agreed that CONTRACTOR, including the agents or
employees of CONTRACTOR, shall be the sole providers of the services required by this
Agreement.  Because the services to be performed by CONTRACTOR under the terms
of this Agreement are of a special, unique, unusual, extraordinary, and intellectual or time-
sensitive character which gives them a peculiar value, the loss of which cannot be
reasonably or adequately compensated in damages in an action of law, NVTA, in addition
to any other rights or remedies which NVTA may possess, shall be entitled to injunctive
and other equitable relief to prevent a breach of this Agreement by CONTRACTOR.

7. Insurance.  CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect
throughout the term of this Agreement, and thereafter as to matters occurring during the
term of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage:

(a) Workers' Compensation Insurance.  CONTRACTOR will provide workers'
compensation insurance as required by law during the term of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR shall provide workers’ compensation insurance for the performance of 
any of the CONTRACTOR’s duties under this Agreement; including but not limited to, 
coverage for workers’ compensation and employer's liability and a waiver of subrogation, 
and shall provide NVTA with certification of all such coverage’s upon request by NVTA’s 
Risk Manager. 

(b) Liability Insurance. CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain in full force
and effect during the term of this Agreement the following liability insurance coverage’s, 
issued by a company licensed (admitted) to transact business in the State of California 
and/or having a A.M. Best rating of A VII or better: 

1. General Liability.  Commercial general liability [CGL] insurance
coverage (personal injury and property damage) of not less than ONE MILLION 
DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single limit per occurrence, covering liability or claims 
for any personal injury, including death, to any person and/or damage to the property of 
any person arising from the acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or any officer, agent, or 
employee of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement.  

2. Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions.  Professional 
liability/errors and omissions insurance for all activities of CONTRACTOR arising out of 
or in connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS 
($1,000,000) per claim. 

3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance.  Comprehensive
automobile liability insurance (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) on owned, hired, 
leased and non-owned vehicles used in conjunction with CONTRACTOR's business of 

71



not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single limit per 
occurrence. 
 
 (c) Certificates.  All insurance coverage’s referenced in 7(b), above, shall be 
evidenced by one or more certificates of coverage or, with the consent of NVTA's  Risk 
Manager, demonstrated by other evidence of coverage acceptable to NVTA's Risk 
Manager, which shall be filed by CONTRACTOR with NVTA’s Deputy Executive Director 
prior to commencement of performance of any of CONTRACTOR's duties;  shall be kept 
current during the term of this Agreement;  shall provide that NVTA shall be given no less 
than thirty (30) days prior written notice of any non-renewal, cancellation, other 
termination, or material change, except that only ten (10) days prior written notice shall 
be required where the cause of non-renewal or cancellation is non-payment of premium; 
and shall provide that the inclusion of more than one insured shall not operate to impair 
the rights of one insured against another insured, the coverage afforded applying as 
though separate policies had been issued to each insured, but the inclusion of more than 
one insured shall not operate to increase the limits of the company's liability.  For the 
commercial general liability insurance coverage referenced in 7(b)(1) and, where the 
vehicles are covered by a commercial policy rather than a personal policy, for the 
comprehensive automobile liability insurance coverage referenced in 7(b)(3) 
CONTRACTOR shall also file with the evidence of coverage an endorsement from the 
insurance provider naming NVTA, its officers, employees, agents and volunteers as 
additional insureds and waiving subrogation, and the certificate or other evidence of 
coverage shall provide that if the same policy applies to activities of CONTRACTOR not 
covered by this Agreement then the limits in the applicable certificate relating to the 
additional insured coverage of NVTA shall pertain only to liability for activities of 
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, and that the insurance provided is primary 
coverage to NVTA with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs maintained 
by NVTA.  The additional insured endorsements for the general liability coverage shall 
use Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form No. CG 20 09 11 85 or CG 20 10 11 85, or 
equivalent, including (if used together) CG 2010 10 01 and CG 2037 10 01; but shall not 
use the following forms:  CG 20 10 10 93 or 03 94.  Upon request by NVTA’s Risk 
Manager, CONTRACTOR shall provide or arrange for the insurer to provide within thirty 
(30) days of the request, certified copies of the actual insurance policies or relevant 
portions thereof. 
 
 (d) Deductibles/Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions shall be 
declared to, and be subject to approval by, NVTA’s Risk Manager, which approval shall 
not be denied unless the NVTA's Risk Manager determines that the deductibles or self-
insured retentions are unreasonably large in relation to compensation payable under this 
Agreement and the risks of liability associated with the activities required of 
CONTRACTOR by this Agreement.  At the option of and upon request by NVTA’s Risk 
Manager if it is determined that such deductibles or retentions are unreasonably high, 
either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insurance retentions 
as respects NVTA, its officers, employees, agents and volunteers or CONTRACTOR shall 
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claims 
administration and defense expenses. 

72



 
8. Hold Harmless/Defense/Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, defend at its own expense, and indemnify 
NVTA and the officers, agents, employees and volunteers of NVTA from and against any 
and all liability, claims, losses, damages or expenses, including reasonable attorney's 
fees, for personal injury (including death) or damage to property, arising from   pertaining 
to, or relating to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONTRACTOR or 
its officers, agents, employees, volunteers, contractors and subcontractors in rendering 
services under this Agreement, excluding, however, such liability, claims, losses, 
damages or expenses arising from the sole negligence or willful acts of NVTA or its 
officers, agents, employees, volunteers, or other contractors or their subcontractors.  
Each party shall notify the other party immediately in writing of any claim or damage 
related to activities performed under this Agreement.  The parties shall cooperate with 
each other in the investigation and disposition of any claim arising out of the activities 
under this Agreement. 
 
9. Employee Character and Fitness.  CONTRACTOR accepts responsibility for 
determining and approving the character and fitness of its employees (including 
volunteers, agents or representatives) to provide the services required of CONTRACTOR 
under this Agreement, including completion of a satisfactory criminal/background check 
and period rechecks to the extent permitted by law.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary in this Paragraph, CONTRACTOR, shall hold NVTA and its officers, agents and 
employees harmless from any liability for injuries or damages resulting from a breach of 
this provision or CONTRACTOR’s actions in this regard. 
 
10. Termination for Cause.  If either party shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper 
manner that party's obligations under this Agreement or otherwise breach this Agreement 
and fail to cure such failure or breach within 20 days of receipt of written notice from the 
other party describing the nature of the breach, the non-defaulting party may, in addition 
to any other remedies it may have, terminate this Agreement by giving 10 days written 
notice to the defaulting party in the manner set forth in Paragraph 13 (Notices).  NVTA 
hereby authorizes the NVTA Executive Director to make all decisions and take all actions 
required under this Paragraph to terminate the Agreement on behalf of NVTA for cause. 
 
11. Termination for Convenience.  This Agreement may be terminated by NVTA for 
any reason and at any time by giving no less than 30 days written notice of such 
termination   and specifying the effective date thereof.  NVTA hereby authorizes the NVTA 
Executive Director to make all decisions and take all actions required under this 
Paragraph to terminate the Agreement on behalf of NVTA. 
 
 
12. Disposition of, Title to and Payment for Work upon Expiration or 
 Termination. 
 (a) Upon expiration of this Agreement or earlier termination of Agreement, all 
finished or unfinished documents and other materials, if any, and all rights therein shall 
become, at the option of NVTA, the property of and shall be promptly returned to NVTA, 

73



although CONTRACTOR may retain a copy of such work for its personal records only.  
Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any copyrightable or patentable 
work created by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement shall be deemed a “work made 
for hire” for purposes of copyright or patent law and only NVTA shall be entitled to claim 
or apply for the copyright or patent thereof. 
 
 (b) CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to receive compensation for any 
satisfactory work completed prior to receipt of the notice of termination or commenced 
prior to receipt of the notice and completed satisfactorily prior to the effective date of the 
termination;  except that CONTRACTOR shall not be relieved of liability to NVTA for 
damages sustained by NVTA by virtue of any breach of the Agreement by 
CONTRACTOR whether or not the Agreement expired or was otherwise terminated, and 
NVTA may withhold any payments not yet made to CONTRACTOR for purpose of setoff 
until such time as the exact amount of damages due to NVTA from CONTRACTOR is 
determined.  
 
13. No Waiver.  The waiver by either party of any breach or violation of any 
requirement of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any such breach in 
the future, or of the breach of any other requirement of this Agreement.   
 
14. Notices.  All notices required or authorized by this Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be delivered in person or by deposit in the United States mail, by certified mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested.  Any mailed notice, demand, request, consent, 
approval or communication that either party desires to give the other party shall be 
addressed to the other party at the address set forth below. Either party may change its 
address by notifying the other party of the change of address.  Any notice sent by mail in 
the manner prescribed by this paragraph shall be deemed to have been received on the 
date noted on the return receipt or five days following the date of deposit, whichever is 
earlier. 
 
 NVTA     CONTRACTOR 
 Kate Miller    Victoria Cook 
 Executive Director   Program Director OPC 
 625 Burnell Street   980 9th Street, Suite 1600  
 Napa, CA. 94559   Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
15. Compliance with NVTA Policies on Waste, Harassment, Drug/Alcohol-Free 
Workplace, and Computer Use.  CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to comply, and require 
its employees and subcontractors to comply, with the following policies, copies of which 
are on file with the Board Secretary of NVTA and incorporated by reference herein.  
CONTRACTOR also agrees that it shall not engage in any activities, or permit its officers, 
agents and employees to do so, during the performance of any of the services required 
under this Agreement, which would interfere with compliance or induce violation of these 
policies by NVTA employees or contractors.  
 

74



 (a) NVTA Policy for Maintaining a Harassment Free Work Environment 
effective November 18, 2015. 
 
 (b) NVTA Drug and Alcohol Policy adopted by resolution of the Board of 
Directors on November 18, 2015. 
 
 (c) Napa County Information Technology Use and Security Policy adopted by 
resolution of the Napa County Board of Supervisors on April 4, 2005.  To this end, all 
employees and subcontractors of CONTRACTOR whose performance of services under 
this Agreement requires access to any portion of the NVTA computer network shall sign 
and have on file with NVTA prior to receiving such access the certification attached to 
said Policy. 
 
 (d) NVTA System Safety Program Plan adopted by resolution of the Board of 
Directors on November 18, 2015. 
 
16. Confidentiality.  Confidential information is defined as all information disclosed to 
CONTRACTOR which relates to NVTA's past, present, and future activities, as well as 
activities under this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR shall hold all such information as 
CONTRACTOR may receive, if any, in trust and confidence, except with the prior written 
approval of NVTA, expressed through its Executive Director.  Upon cancellation or 
expiration of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall return to NVTA all written and 
descriptive matter which contains any such confidential information, except that 
CONTRACTOR may retain for its files a copy of CONTRACTOR’s work product if such 
product has been made available to the public by NVTA. 
 
17. No Assignments or Subcontracts. 
 (a) A consideration of this Agreement is the personal reputation of 
CONTRACTOR; therefore, CONTRACTOR shall not assign any interest in this 
Agreement or subcontract any of the services CONTRACTOR is to perform hereunder 
without the prior written consent of NVTA, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The 
inability of the assignee to provide personnel equivalent in experience, expertise, and 
numbers to those provided by CONTRACTOR, or to perform any of the remaining 
services required under this Agreement within the same time frame required of 
CONTRACTOR shall be deemed to be reasonable grounds for NVTA to withhold its 
consent to assignment.  For purposes of this subparagraph, the consent of NVTA may be 
given by its Executive Director. 
 
 (b) Effect of Change in Status.   If CONTRACTOR changes its status during 
the term of this Agreement from or to that of a corporation, limited liability partnership, 
limited liability company, general partnership, or sole proprietorship, such change in 
organizational status shall be viewed as an attempted assignment of this Agreement by 
CONTRACTOR.  Failure of CONTRACTOR to obtain approval of such assignment under 
this Paragraph shall be viewed as a material breach of this Agreement. 
 

75



18. Amendment/Modification.  Except as specifically provided herein, this 
Agreement may be modified or amended only in writing signed by both Parties.  In 
particular, only NVTA, through its Board of Directors in the form of an amendment of this 
Agreement, may authorize extra and/or changed work beyond the scope of services 
prescribed by EXHIBIT “A”.  Failure of CONTRACTOR to secure such authorization in 
writing in advance of performing any of the extra or changed work shall constitute a waiver 
of any and all rights to adjustment in the contract price or contract time and no 
compensation shall be paid for such extra work. 
 
19. Interpretation; Venue.   
 (a) Interpretation.  The headings used herein are for reference only. The terms 
of the Agreement are set out in the text under the headings.  This Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to the choice of law or 
conflicts.   
 
 (b) Venue.  This Agreement is made in Napa County, California.  The venue 
for any legal action in state court filed by either party to this Agreement for the purpose of 
interpreting or enforcing any provision of this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of 
California, County of Napa, a unified court.  The venue for any legal action in federal court 
filed by either party to this Agreement for the purpose of interpreting or enforcing any 
provision of this Agreement lying within the jurisdiction of the federal courts shall be the 
Northern District of California.  The appropriate venue for arbitration, mediation or similar 
legal proceedings under this Agreement shall be Napa County, California; however, 
nothing in this sentence shall obligate either party to submit to mediation or arbitration 
any dispute arising under this Agreement. 
 
20. Compliance with Laws.  CONTRACTOR shall observe and comply with all 
currently applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, and codes, including but 
not limited to the Federal laws contained in Attachment 1, and as amended from time to 
time.  Such laws shall include, but not be limited to, the following, except where prohibited 
by law: 
 
 (a) Non-Discrimination.  During the performance of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR and its subcontractor’s shall not deny the benefits thereof to any person 
on the basis of sex, race, color, ancestry, religion or religious creed, national origin or 
ethnic group identification, sexual orientation, marital status, age (over 40), mental 
disability, physical disability or medical condition (including cancer, HIV and AIDS), nor 
shall they discriminate unlawfully against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religion or religious creed, national origin or ethnic 
group identification, sexual orientation, marital status, age (over 40), mental disability, 
physical disability or medical condition (including cancer, HIV and AIDS), or use of family 
care leave.  CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of employees 
and applicants for employment are free of such discrimination or harassment.  In addition 
to the foregoing general obligations, CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of 
the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code section 12900, et seq.), the 
regulations promulgated there under (Title 2, California Code of Regulations, section 

76



7285.0, et seq.), the provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the 
Government Code (sections 11135-11139.5) and any state or local regulations adopted 
to implement any of the foregoing, as such statutes and regulations may be amended 
from time to time.  To the extent this Agreement subcontracts to CONTRACTOR services 
or works required of NVTA by the State of California pursuant to Agreement between 
NVTA and the State, the applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing 
Commission implementing Government Code section 12990 (a) through (f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are expressly 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in 
full, and CONTRACTOR and any of its subcontractor’s shall give written notice of their 
obligations there under to labor organizations with which they have collective bargaining 
or other agreements. 
 
 (b) Documentation of Right to Work.  CONTRACTOR agrees to abide by the 
requirements of the Immigration and Control Reform Act pertaining to assuring that all 
newly-hired employees of CONTRACTOR performing any services under this Agreement 
have a legal right to work in the United States of America, that all required documentation 
of such right to work is inspected, and that INS Form 1-9 (as it may be amended from 
time to time) is completed and on file for each employee.  CONTRACTOR shall make the 
required documentation available upon request to NVTA for inspection. 
 
 (c) Inclusion in Subcontracts.  To the extent any of the services required of 
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement are subcontracted to a third party; CONTRACTOR 
shall include all of the provisions of this Section, and any applicable Federal provisions 
contained in Attachment 1 in all such subcontracts as obligations of the subcontractor. 
 
21. Taxes.  CONTRACTOR agrees to file federal and state tax returns or applicable  
withholding documents and to pay all applicable taxes or make all required withholdings 
on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable and responsible to 
make such withholdings and/or pay such taxes and other obligations including, without 
limitation, state and federal income and FICA taxes.  CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify 
and hold NVTA harmless from any liability it may incur to the United States or the State 
of California as a consequence of CONTRACTOR’s failure to pay or withhold, when due, 
all such taxes and obligations.  In the event that NVTA is audited for compliance regarding 
any withholding or other applicable taxes or amounts, CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish 
NVTA with proof of payment of taxes or withholdings on those earnings. 
 
22. Access to Records/Retention.  NVTA, any federal or state grantor agency 
funding all or part of the compensation payable hereunder, the State Controller, the 
Comptroller General of the United States, or the duly authorized representatives of any 
of the above, shall have access to any books, documents, papers and records of 
CONTRACTOR which are directly pertinent to the subject matter of this Agreement for 
the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions.  

Except where longer retention is required by any federal or state law, CONTRACTOR 
shall maintain all required records for at least three (3) years after NVTA makes final 

77



payment for any other work authorized hereunder and all pending matters are closed, 
whichever is later. 
 
23. Authority to Contract.  CONTRACTOR and NVTA each warrant hereby that they 
are legally permitted and otherwise have the authority to enter into and perform this 
Agreement. 
 
24. Conflict of Interest. 
 (a) Covenant of No Undisclosed Conflict. The parties to the Agreement 
acknowledge that they are aware of the provisions of Government Code section 1090, et 
seq., and section 87100, et seq., relating to conflict of interest of public officers and 
employees. CONTRACTOR hereby covenants that it presently has no interest not 
disclosed to NVTA and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would 
conflict in any material manner or degree with the performance of its services or 
confidentiality obligation hereunder, except as such as NVTA may consent to in writing 
prior to the acquisition by CONTRACTOR of such conflict.  CONTRACTOR further 
warrants that it is unaware of any financial or economic interest of any public officer or 
employee of NVTA relating to this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR agrees that if such 
financial interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, NVTA may terminate this 
Agreement immediately upon giving written notice without further obligation by NVTA to 
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement.   
 
 (b) Statements of Economic Interest.  CONTRACTOR acknowledges and 
understands that NVTA has developed and approved a Conflict of Interest Code as 
required by state law which requires CONTRACTOR to file with the Elections Division of 
the Napa County Assessor-Clerk Recorder “assuming office”, “annual”, and “leaving 
office” Statements of Economic Interest as a “consultant”, as defined in  section 
18701(a)(2) of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, unless the NVTA Executive 
Director has determined in writing that CONTRACTOR, although holding a “designated” 
position as a consultant, has been hired to perform a range of duties so limited in scope 
as to not be required to fully comply with such disclosure obligation. CONTRACTOR 
agrees to timely comply with all filing obligations for a consultant under NVTA’s Conflict 
of Interest Code unless such a determination is on file on the filing dates for each of the 
required Statements of Economic Interest. 
 
25. Non-Solicitation of Employees.  Each party agrees not to solicit for employment 
the employees of the other party who were directly involved in the performance of the 
services hereunder for the term of this Agreement and a period of six (6) months after 
termination of this Agreement except with the written permission of the other party, except 
that nothing in this Paragraph shall preclude NVTA from publishing or otherwise 
distributing applications and information regarding NVTA job openings where such 
publication or distribution is directed to the general public. 
 
26. Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be 
construed to create any rights in third parties and the parties do not intend to create such 
rights. 

78



 
27. Attorney's Fees.  In the event that either party commences legal action of any 
kind or character to either enforce the provisions of this Agreement or to obtain damages 
for breach thereof, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to all costs and 
reasonable attorney's fees incurred in connection with such action. 
 
28. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, is found 
by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or invalid for any reason, such 
provision shall be severable and shall not in any way impair the enforceability of any other 
provision of this Agreement. 
 
29. Entirety of Contract.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
the parties relating to the subject of this Agreement and supersedes all previous 
agreements, promises, representations, understandings and negotiations, whether 
written or oral, among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. 
 
30. Extensions Authorized.  The Executive Director is delegated authority to execute 
amendments to extend the term of this Agreement, if needed from time to time. 
 
31. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute an original, and all of which taken together shall constitute one and 
the same instrument. Documents executed, scanned, and transmitted electronically and 
electronic signatures shall be deemed original signatures for purposes of this Agreement 
and all matters related thereto, with such scanned and electronic signatures having the 
same legal effect as original signatures 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement was executed by the parties hereto as 
of the date first above written. 
 
 
“NVTA”      “CONTRACTOR” 
       Overland Pacific & Cutler, LLC 
 
 
By______________________   By________________________ 
Kate Miller, Executive Director   Victoria Cook, Program Director 
 

  

79



EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
   

 
 

I. GENERAL.   The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) in partnership with 
the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) created a program “Napa 
Valley Forward” (NVF), a program that strives to reduce congestion in the Napa 
Valley by delivering improvements along the rural portion of State Route 29 (SR 
29). The project (Project) will make multi-modal improvements at three (3) 
intersections: SR 29 and Madison Street in the Town of Yountville, SR 29 and 
Oakville Cross Road, and SR 29 and Rutherford Road (SR 128) in unincorporated 
Napa County. 

 

II. SCOPE OF WORK.  Contractor is to complete right of way identification, 
negotiation, acquisition and appraisals, if necessary, based upon the project limits 
at three (3) intersections along SR 29. SR 29/Rutherford Road, SR 29/Oakville 
Cross Road, SR 29/ Madison Street, that may potentially impact  up to 15 parcels 
adjacent to the  three (3) intersections. Appraisals may be needed for all properties. 
While uncertain, some property owners may proceed with an owner-initiated 
donation. 

 
Throughout the Project it is imperative that CONTRACTOR coordinate with NVTA, 
and the communities of Oakville, Rutherford and Yountville due to the working 
relationships with the property owners. 
 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all the requirements of local, state and federal 
requirements all of the following without limitation and shall apply any subsequent 
contract as though incorporated herein by reference: 

1) Federal laws; 
2) State laws; 
3) Local laws; 
4) Rules and regulations of governing utility districts; and 
5) Rules and regulations of other authorities with jurisdiction over     

the acquisition of real estate. 

CONTRACTOR shall provide, but are not limited to, the following services: 

TASK 1  Project Kick-off and Existing Documents Review 

   Meet with and attend an organization and scoping meeting with NVTA 

staff.  These meetings may be conducted either in person or virtually 

to  

a. Review Project objectives 
b. Review scope of services 
c. Establish a meeting schedule 
d. Establish communication channels 

 

80



 

 Review existing documentation with NVTA relating to previous 
investigations, studies, and design work including but not limited to: 

a. Existing maps, surveys, appraisals and Title Reports. 
 

TASK 2  Right of Way Identification  

  Verify existing plats and legal descriptions to meet Caltrans and/or 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) standards (Project Surveyor/ 
Right of Way Engineering Task).  

 Provide NVTA with support for the Caltrans  Right of Way Certification 
process. 

 Provide Caltrans Right of Way Certification preparation and support. 

 Perform services in conformance with current Caltrans standards and 
the Caltrans Right of Way Manual to ensure successful project 
certification. 

 Prepare a “draft” Right of Way Certification, including all applicable 
supporting documents, in accordance with the standards and manual 
for NVTA’s approval accordingly.  

 Assist Project Engineer and/or NVTA with obtaining all  necessary 
permits. 

Deliverables: 

a. Verify the permanent and temporary construction easements needed 
for construction (Project Surveyor/ Right of Way Engineering Task). 

b. Verify that existing plats and legal descriptions meeting Caltrans and/or 
Federal Highway Administration standards (Project Surveyor/ Right of 
Way      Engineering Task). 

c. Provide NVTA with support for the Caltrans Right of Way Certification 
process. Prepare a Draft Right of Way Certification for approval by 
NVTA. Supporting documentation to be submitted along with the Right 
of Way Certification, including: right of way contracts, orders for 
prejudgment possession, diary notes, Right of Way Sufficiency forms, 
Agreements for Possession and Use, deeds, etc. 

d. Assist Project Engineer and/or NVTA with obtaining all necessary permits. 

 

TASK 3  Right of Way Consulting/Coordination 

 Manage and coordinate all real estate functions, attend meetings, and 
work with the NVTA to resolve problems and recommend solutions.  

 Coordinate with   NVTA staff, design engineer, Caltrans Right of Way 
Staff, legal counsel, sub-consultants and other entities related to real 
estate issues, including project real estate requirements, scheduling 
and budgets. 

81



 Conduct regular internal meetings to review and discuss all projects 
and deliverable dates, ensure that milestones are being achieved, 
discuss progress and issues, and keep the NVTA informed through 
status reports. This summary report will address and update all 
critical milestones, status, scheduling and areas of concern on a 
parcel-specific basis. 

Deliverables: 

a. Preparation of right of way status report, including critical milestones, 
status, scheduling, areas of concern and general comments. 

b. Attendance at meetings 
c. Ongoing consultation with NVTA. , as needed, with a minimum of 

ten (10)  check-in meetings no longer than 30 minutes 
d. Liaison/coordination with Caltrans 
 

TASK 4  Acquisition Services 

 First priority is for acquisition through owner-initiated donation. When this 
is not possible, CONTRACTOR is responsible for “good faith 
negotiations” with property owners for the purchase of right of way  based 
on values established in the reviewed and approved appraisals.  NVTA    
presumes that some of the property owners may be willing to donate their 
property.  

 Adhere to all professional standards and the Caltrans Right of Way 
Manual and all applicable laws and regulations. 

 Prepare acquisition documents and conduct personal field contacts. 

 Contact owners and arrange meetings to facilitate settlements. In the 
event that a justified settlement is proposed, CONTRACTOR will provide 
NVTA with terms for review and authorization. 

 Establish a process of coordinating escrow closings and reviewing 
escrow instructions.  

 Make every reasonable effort to acquire property expeditiously through 
agreement with its owner and to avoid litigation. 

 Services will be in compliance with all state and federal  requirements, 
including the Uniform Act and the Caltrans Right of Way Manual. 
Assumes these services will be provided for up to 15 potentially impacted 
parcels. 

Acquisition Specialist Responsibilities under the Uniform Act: 

1) Ensure establishment of just compensation prior to initiation of 
negotiations. 

2)   Expeditious acquisition within 30 days of approved appraisal. 

3)   First Written Offer should be presented in person when possible. 
4) Caltrans requires that a copy of the appraisal report shall be    

provided to the owner with the First Written Offer; a 
Summary 

82



5) Statement (basis for the appraisal) is optional in this case. 

6) Owner to be given reasonable time to consider offer and present material 
relevant to value determination (i.e. 30 days and a minimum of 3 contacts). 

7)  Payment is required before taking possession unless date of   possession cause 

is used in contract. 

8) NVTA is responsible for payment of all incidental expenses (title, escrow surveys, 
prepayment penalties, etc.) 

9) Preparation of Administrative Settlements when it is reasonable and in the public 

interest. 
10)    Diary entries including confirmation of delivering Title VI information. 

 

Deliverables:  Responsible for: “good faith negotiations” with property owners for the 
purchase of right-of-way based on values established in the reviewed and approved 
appraisals; adherence to all professional standards and the Caltrans Right-of-Way 
Manual and all applicable laws and regulations; preparation of all written 
correspondence, applicable forms and Napa County’s standard easement agreement 
(provided if necessary); coordination with NVTA staff; performance of notary services 
related to the signing of acquisition documents; 
 

Escrow coordination with Napa County; completion of final close-out work per 
Caltrans requirements; and maintenance of all acquisition files including acquisition 
diaries. 

 

TASK 5  Acquisition/Escrow for Donation Parcels – For parcels to be acquired  through  
owner-initiated donation 

 Prepare documents for acquisition via donation, and arrange meetings for document 
execution. 

 Establish a process of coordinating escrow closings and reviewing escrow 
instructions. 

 Services will be in compliance with all state and federal requirements, including the 
Uniform Act and the Caltrans Right of Way Manual. 

 Services will be provided for up to 15 potentially impacted parcels. 

Deliverables:  Adherence to all professional standards and the Caltrans 
Right-of-Way Manual and all applicable laws and regulations; preparation of 
all written correspondence, applicable forms and coordination with NVTA 
staff; performance of notary services related to the signing of acquisition 
documents; 

83



Escrow coordination with Napa County; completion of final close-
out work per Caltrans requirements; and maintenance of all 
acquisition files including acquisition diaries. 

 

TASK 6  Real Property Appraiser 

 Prepare Summary Appraisal Reports to determine the fair market value 
of the rights to be acquired from each subject property and prepared in 
accordance to professional standards, Uniform Standards of 
Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP), and the Caltrans Right of Way 
Manual and all applicable laws and regulations. 

 Appraiser will invite owner or a designated representative to accompany  
him/her during the inspection of the property. 

 Appraisals will be for the “Fair Market Value” of the property as per 
California Code of Civil Procedure, Section 1263.320. 

 Appraiser will issue the necessary public acquisition informational 
brochure including Title VI information to all owners.  

 Services will be provided for up to 15 potentially impacted parcels. 

Real Property Appraiser Responsibilities under the Uniform Act: 

1) Property owner must be notified in writing of Agency’s decision 
to appraise. 

2) Property owner or designee must be given opportunity to 

accompany appraiser during property inspection. 

3) Responsibility of sending Title VI information. 

4) Diary entry of notifications and contacts. 
5)  Appraisal to contain minimum recognized standards for public 

acquisition (Zoning Property Rights to be acquired, Highest and 
Best Use Analysis, Verified Comparables, Improvements 
Acquired, Damages, Cost-to-Cure, etc.) 

6) All appraisals must contain Appraiser and Review Appraiser 
Certificates. 

 
Deliverables:  When the Consultant must prepare an appraisal for a subject 
property it will separately bound and prepared in a “stand-alone” format 
suitable for furnishing to the associated property owners per Caltrans’ 
requirements. The comparable sales analysis shall be in chart format with 
accompanying analysis in narrative form. Comparable data shall be verified 
with parties to the transaction. Consultant to prepare draft Notice of 
Decision to Appraise for NVTA approval. Appraisal will be submitted to 
appraisal review for review and approval. 

 

 

84



TASK 7  Appraisal Review Services  

 CONTRACTOR will contract with a qualified certified review 
appraiser. The review appraiser will prepare independent written 
reviews of the reports prepared by the CONTRACTOR’s real 
property appraisers. 

 All reviews will be conducted in accordance to professional 
standards, USPAP, and all applicable laws and regulations. 

 Review appraiser will prepare a summary  of the appraisal and 
provide comments regarding any omissions or problems with the 
reports.  

 Upon satisfactory completion of the appraisal reports, a review 
certificate report will be prepared, including an explanation of the 
basis for recommendation. 

 Services will be provided for up to 15 potentially impacted parcels. 

Deliverables:  When the Consultant must prepare an appraisal for a 
subject property, the report will be provided to a review appraiser (Sub- 
consultant) for review and approval. The review appraiser will prepare 
and review certificate report for each appraisal. 

 

 

TASK 8  Appraisals for State-Owned Property (if needed) 

In the event that the State agencies request that appraisals be prepared 
for the proposed acquisitions  from State-owned property, 
CONTRACTOR will prepare appraisals in accordance with California 
Eminent Domain Law; California Government Code Section 7260 et 
seq.; Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) 
requirements; and 49 CFR Part 24 and the Caltrans Right of Way 
Manual.  If needed, services will be provided for State-owned  (Public) 
property on up to 15 potentially impacted parcels. 

Deliverables:  If appraisals are requested for State-Owned property, 
Consultant to prepare an appraisal in a “stand-alone” format. The 
comparable sales analysis shall be in chart format with accompanying 
analysis in narrative form. Comparable data shall be verified with parties 
to the transaction 

 

Optional or outside of scope work to be performed by the CONTRACTOR 

and their associated costs must be approved by NVTA prior to 

performance. 

 

85



 
III. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 7550.  As required by 
Government Code section 7550, each document or report prepared by CONTRACTOR 
for or under the direction of NVTA pursuant to this Agreement shall contain the numbers 
and dollar amounts of the Agreement and all subcontracts under the Agreement relating 
to the preparation of the document or written report.  The Agreement and subcontract 
dollar amounts shall be contained in a separate section of the document or written report.  
If multiple documents or written reports are the subject of the Agreement or subcontracts, 
the disclosure section may also contain a statement indicating that the total contract 
amount represents compensation for multiple documents or written report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86



EXHIBIT B  
 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

 
                                                                            TOTAL NTE AMOUNT:      $234,562.50 
     

 Total amount shown under item 3 (c) of the Agreement shall not be construed as a 
guaranteed sum. 

 

 Subject to the Agreement under items 3 (a) and 4 (a), CONTRACTOR shall 
periodically invoice NVTA at the hourly rate for time/material and actual services 
performed on the project. 

 

 Optional or outside of scope work to be performed by the CONTRACTOR and their   
associated costs must be approved by NVTA prior to performance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Scope 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NTE Total 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Price per 
Parcel 

St
ev

e 
H

ar
ri

s,
 

P
ro

je
ct

 

M
an

ag
e

r 

 

V
ic

to
ri

a 
C

o
o

k,
 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

 

Se
an

 K
e

rr
, 

Se
n

io
r 

A
ge

n
t 

P
ro

je
ct

 

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

M
an

ag
er

 

 

A
ge

n
t 

/ 

A
n

al
ys

t 

D
e

b
b

ie
 

M
o

rg
an

, 

P
ro

je
ct

 
C

o
o

rd
in

at
o

r 

A
n

d
re

w
 P

. 

N
ie

re
n

b
er

g,
 

A
p

p
ra

is
al

 

M
an

ag
e

r 

St
ev

e 
P

ar
en

t,
 

A
p

p
ra

is
al

 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

$130.00 $200.00 $115.00 $130.00 $105.00 $115.00 $200.00 $250.00 

Preliminary assessment of 
parcel impact and the 
associated cost 

 

$ 6,375.00 

 

$ 425.00 
   

     

Pre-acquisition / pre- 
transfer R/W activities, 
such as engaging and 
negotiating with property 
and business owners 

 
 
 

$ 21,150.00 

 
 
 

$1,410.00 

 
 

 
     

R/W Data Sheet (PA/ED) 
with up to two (2) 
alternatives at each 
intersection 

 
 

$ 7,200.00 

 
 

$ 480.00 

  
  

 
   

Appraisal (at the 65% 
design phase) 

 
$ 74,175.00 

 
$4,945.00 

        

Appraisal Review $ 35,700.00 $2,380.00         

R/W Transfer/Acquisition (not 
to exceed price) 

 
$ 88,125.00 

         

R/W Fee Acquisition  $4,955.00         
R/W Donation 
Transfer 

  
$1,130.00 

        

Interagency Transfer  $6,680.00         

Right of Way Certification $ 1,837.50 $ 122.50  
    

 
  

Condemnation Support 
(only if needed) 

 
$ 0.00 

 
$ 820.00 

        

Relocation Assistance 
(only if needed) 

 
$ 0.00 

 
$4,775.00 

        

Labor hours per parcel  151.75 18.5 1.25 84 1.5 4 13.5 10 19 

Total not to exceed hours 2,276.25  277.5 18.75 1,260 22.5 60 202.5 150 285 

Total not to exceed price $234,562.50 
         

87



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

88



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.3 

 Continued From:  New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________

SUBJECT 

State Route 29 (SR 29) American Canyon Project Initiation Document (PID) Proposed 
Alternatives  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board eliminate Alternative 3 (the 
six-lane project alternative) and a Pedestrian Underpass from the State Route (SR) 29 
Multimodal Improvements in the American Canyon Project Initiation Document (PID).  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NVTA has partnered with the City of American Canyon and Caltrans on studying the SR 
29 corridor in American Canyon since 2012 as part of the SR 29 Gateway Study.  That 
study introduced the option of widening the highway from four (4) lanes to six (6) lanes 
from American Canyon Road to Airport Road/Jameson Canyon (SR 12).  Since that 
time, there has been a number of policy and regulatory considerations about capacity-
adding projects on the federal aid system because they have been shown to increase 
vehicle miles traveled (VMT).  These include Senate Bill 375, which requires regions to 
mitigate for projects that increase VMT and the State’s Climate Action Plan for 
Transportation Infrastructure (CAPTI) which is intended to reduce climate impacts 
caused by the auto sector.   

For these reasons, staff recommends that the NVTA board eliminate Alternative 3 from 
future study.    Alternative 1 (multimodal improvements) and Alternative 2 (roundabouts) 
would require only an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (ISMND) while 
Alternative 3 would require a full Environmental Impact Report (EIR) due to resulting 
increased vehicle miles traveled in the corridor.  Staff is also recommending eliminating 
the pedestrian undercrossing because of study and infrastructure costs. NVTA’s 
consultant team believes that eliminating these two elements will reduce the cost of the 
environmental study from roughly $2 million to $1 million.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

Not for this action but eliminating Alternative 3 will result in cost savings upwards of $1 
million dollars for future environmental studies.  

89



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Director, Capital Development & Planning 

(707) 259-5968 / Email: dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: State Route 29 Multimodal Improvements through American Canyon 
Alternative 3   

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board eliminate Alternative 3 (the 
six-lane project alternative) and a Pedestrian Underpass from the State Route (SR) 29 
Multimodal Improvements through American Canyon Project Initiation Document (PID).  

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND 

The PID builds off the work completed in the SR 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor 
Plan (CMCP) completed by NVTA in 2020.  The goal of the proposed improvements 
through American Canyon are to maximize efficiency and safety; achieve acceptable 
operating conditions relative to projected future demand; improve air quality, economic 
development, and social equity; be context sensitive in accordance with SR 29’s rural 
and scenic character; and minimize potential impacts to the natural environment. NVTA 
has completed the draft PID which includes 3 Alternatives:  

1) Alternative 1: the Multimodal Improvements alternative, would maintain four (4)
lanes on the corridor and incorporate transit, bicycle and pedestrian facilities. The
alternative includes Class I shared use paths on both sides of SR 29,
reconstruction of the roadway to provide consistent median width, 11-foot lanes,
10-foot shoulders on SR 29 allowing for part time bus on shoulder, pedestrian
refuge islands at intersections, and landscaped planting areas.

90

mailto:dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 12.3 
February 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

2) Alternative 2: the Roundabouts alternative, would maintain a 4-lane highway and
construct roundabouts at several of the intersections along the corridor to
improve operations.  At the roundabout intersections, the corridor will be widened
to 6 lanes approaching the intersections, allowing necessary circulation.
Locations with close intersection spacing will maintain 6 lanes along the corridor.
Roundabouts are proposed to increase overall circulation while providing traffic
calming and enhanced intersection safety for all users.

3) Alternative 3: Expand SR 29 to 6 lanes and construct bicycle and pedestrian
facilities similar to those in Alternative 1. A paved median island will be
constructed along SR 29 to better separate traffic and provide pedestrian refuges
for staged crossings. Due to overall roadway widths, certain transit improvements
may not be feasible with this alternative, as six lanes already exceed the
available right of way and further widening will encroach on existing private
infrastructure, including buildings.

All three alternatives include class 1 bicycle and pedestrian paths on both the east and 
west sides of the highway, aesthetic improvements along the corridor and a pedestrian 
underpass.  Staff is also recommending the eliminating the pedestrian underpass due to 
costs associated with future study and construction. Instead, enhanced at-grade 
pedestrian crossings would be included in Alternatives 1 and 2.  

There are a number of reasons that staff is recommending that Alternative 3 be 
eliminated now, before the PID is finalized, to accelerate the project and minimize costs.  
First, Alternative 3 is exponentially more expensive than the other two alternatives and 
would buy only short term traffic congestion relief for a significant cost.  There are also 
significant right of way needs and associated negative impacts to local businesses.  
Identifying funding and addressing the corresponding project complexities would 
significantly delay the project.   

There have also been a number of policy and statutory changes since the initial SR 29 
Gateway study that first identified widening the highway.  These include:   

1) The State’s Climate Action Plan for Transportation Infrastructure (CAPTI) which
was adopted last year and discourages projects that contribute to climate
change.  See Attachment 2, a letter from Caltrans District 4 Director Dina El-
Tawansy, expressing the agency’s concern about Alternative 3.

2) Senate Bill 375 requires regions to reduce greenhouse gas emissions as part of
the long range planning process and requires that regions mitigate for projects
that increase VMT. MTC has progressively discouraged capacity-increasing
projects in successive long range plans.

91



Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 12.3 
February 16, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

ALTERNATIVES 

1) The Board could decide to retain Alternative 3 as a listed alternative in the final
PID and it would be carried through to the environmental process.  This will trigger
a full EIR and cost time and financial resources.

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal1: Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, income, 
or ability.  

The project will provide multimodal options for all users.  

Goals 2: Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users. 

The project will enhance safety by providing separated bicycle and pedestrian facilities 
on the SR 29 corridor including safe routes to transit/schools.  

Goal 5: Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods. 

By providing multimodal facilities and reducing congestion along the corridor the project 
will reduce greenhouse gas emissions.  

ATTACHMENT(S) 

(1) Draft SR 29 Multimodal Improvements through American Canyon PSR-PDS
https://www.nvta.ca.gov/sites/default/files/Am%20Can%20PSR_PDS_draft_clean.pdf
(2) Caltrans December 21, 2021 Letter on Alternative 3

92

https://www.nvta.ca.gov/sites/default/files/Am%20Can%20PSR_PDS_draft_clean.pdf


ATTACHMENT 2
AGENDA ITEM 12.3
FEBRUARY 16, 2022

93



94



February 16, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Amending Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 Salary Range for Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority (NVTA) Job Classification of Program Manager-Engineering 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-
08 (Attachment 2) amending the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 Salary Range for position of 
Program Manager – Engineering. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

At the July 21, 2021 meeting, the Board approved Resolution No. 21-19 (Attachment 1) 
setting the FY 2021-22 Salary Ranges for all NVTA job classifications. 

Recruiting qualified candidates for open positions over the last several years has been 
challenging.  More recently, it has been impossible to recruit qualified candidates for the 
two engineering/project manager positions.  Not only are employees demanding higher 
salaries, the Napa Consumer Price Index is proportionately higher than a number of other 
Bay Area communities and housing prices are soaring which is compounding the 
agency’s ability to attract good candidates.  Commuting into Napa from other locations 
also deters prospective candidates.  In order to retain staff and draw more quality 
candidates, the agency needs provide compensation packages that are commiserate with 
other transportation agencies in the Bay Area.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact?  Not for this action.  Board action will result in changing the 
salary ranges only.  Individual offers of employment are based on the candidate’s 
qualifications and experience. Nevertheless, based on recent recruitment results, a salary 
increase is highly likely. 

95



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Laura Sanderlin, Office Manager/Board Secretary 

(707) 259-8633/ Email: lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Amending Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 Salary Range for Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority (NVTA) Job Classification of Program 
Manager-Engineer 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-
08 (Attachment 2) amending the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 Salary Range for position of 
Program Manager – Engineering. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND 

At the July 21, 2021 meeting, the Board approved Resolution No. 21-19 (Attachment 1) 
setting the FY 2021-22 Salary Ranges for all NVTA job classifications. To remain 
competitive with other agencies, the following was approved: 

• Adjust the bottom range of each classification by 2% (Bay Area CPI).
• Adjust the top range to be consistent with the average salary amount by

classification in the compensation study.
• Impose a salary cap of no more than 120% of the NVTA existing classification

range.
• Maintain parity between existing comparable salary ranges.

The adjustment applied to the salary range only and did not imply that employees receive 
a raise.  Actual employee salary adjustments are based on each individual employee’s 
performance and awarded at the time of their annual performance evaluation. 

96

mailto:lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 12.4 
February 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
 
 
The recent recruitment for two engineering positions has not resulted in recruiting 
qualified applicants.  Given that the agency is currently involved in delivering almost $100 
million in capital projects, it is critical that these positions be filled quickly with highly 
qualified candidates.  In order to accomplish this, the salaries and benefits for these 
positions must be commensurate with other similar agencies in the Bay Area. 
 
Staff conducted a focused salary comparison study in January 2022 specific to the 
position of Program Manager – Engineering.  The goal of this compensation review was 
to assist NVTA in developing a competitive pay and benefit plan, which is based upon 
current market data, and to ensure that the plan is fiscally responsible but which meets 
NVTA’s employee recruitment and retention objectives. 
 
Analysis was conducted with partnering agencies within the Agency’s labor market. The 
findings showed NVTA Program Manager – Engineering position to be lacking 
competitiveness in such labor market. The following agencies with a comparable position 
were surveyed:  
 
Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
San Francisco County Transportation Authority 
Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority 
 
Table 1 – Salary Range Labor Market Comparison for Engineer classification 
 

FY 2021-22 Monthly Salary Range 
Agency Minimum Maximum 

Contra Costa Transportation Authority $13,027 $17,591 

Alameda County Transportation Commission $12,694 $16,502 

San Francisco County Transportation Authority $11,342 $15,652 

Valley Transportation Authority $11,526 $14,011 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority $9,607 $11,547 

 
The NVTA Board is being asked to approve an amendment in salary range to the Program 
Manager – Engineer position. The proposed minimum and maximum amendments for the 
Program Manager – Engineer would be the same as the currently adopted monthly salary 
ranges for NVTA’s Director of Administration, Finance and Policy and Director of Capital  

97



Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 12.4 
February 16, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 

Development and Planning classification of $11,547-$14,943. Additionally, in light of the 
recruitment challenges, the Board is being asked to authorize staff to offer a hiring 
incentive payment of up to $20,000 with incremental payments structured over a one year 
period for this position. The hiring incentive payment is hoped to encourage more qualified 
candidates to apply. This salary amendment and additional hiring incentive payment 
would place the compensation package more competitively in the current labor market. 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board could decide not approve the proposed salary range and maintain the current 
range. This will result in delays filling the vacant position with a qualified candidate or 
result in not filling the position.  

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goals 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently  

ATTACHMENTS 

(1) Resolution No. 21-19 FY 2021-22 Salary Ranges
(2) Resolution No. 22-08 Proposed FY 2021-2022 Salary Ranges

98



ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 12.4 
FEBRUARY 16, 2022

99



100



101



 
 

RESOLUTION No 22-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

AMENDING FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2021-22 SALARY RANGES FOR 
NVTA JOB CLASSIFICATIONS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the NVTA policy is to establish and maintain a general compensation 
and classification structure for NVTA employees that is externally competitive and internally 
aligned; and 

 
WHEREAS, the compensation plan, including salary ranges, should be reviewed and 

updated as necessary based on marketplace survey data, internal relationships, and NVTA 
financial constraints; and 

 
WHEREAS, a comprehensive compensation study for all NVTA job classifications 

was conducted in July 2010 by Cooperative Personnel Services Human Resources 
Consulting; and  
 

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2011, the Board approved an updated compensation plan 
based on the findings of such study; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 19, 2011, the Board approved Resolution No. 11-25 
establishing compensation ranges for NVTA job classifications; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 19, 2014, the Board revised Section 2.10 Performance 

Evaluation of the NVTA Policies, Practices, and Procedures Personnel policies which 
established that pay grade ranges will be adjusted annually and indexed to the average 
of County of Napa, Sonoma County Transportation Authority, and Solano Transportation 
Authority increases for a given year or Bay Area Consumer Price Index (CPI) for all labor 
within Napa County, whichever is greater; and 

 
WHEREAS, the average increase in the 2020 indexes for the County of Napa 

(0%), Sonoma County Transportation Authority (0%) and Solano Transportation Authority 
(0%) equals 0%, and the Bay Area CPI Index ending December 2020 is 2.0%. 
 

WHEREAS, a compensation study concluded by NVTA staff in May 2021 analyzed 
salary schedules at the following agencies: Alameda County Transportation Commission, 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority, Transportation Authority of Marin, San Francisco 
County Transportation Authority, Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority, Solano 
Transportation Authority, Sonoma County Transportation Authority, City of Napa, County 
of Napa, Fairfield and Suisun Transit, Petaluma Transit, Santa Rosa City Bus, Vacaville 
City Bus and Soltrans; and 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.4 

February 16, 2022 
 

102



Resolution No. 22-08 
Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, on July 21, 2021 the FY 2021-22 minimum salary ranges for NVTA 
Job Classifications, which reflected the Bay Area Consumer Price Index (CPI) of 2.0% 
and FY 2021-22 maximum salary ranges for NVTA Job Classifications, which reflected 
the competitive marketplace data founded in the recent compensation study, were 
adopted by the Napa Valley Transportation Authority Board of Directors; 

WHEREAS, a compensation study of salary schedules was completed in January 
2022 from Alameda County Transportation Commission, Contra Costa Transportation 
Authority, San Francisco County Transportation Authority, and Santa Clara Valley 
Transportation Authority, comparable to the NVTA position of Program Manager - 
Engineering; and 

WHEREAS, the findings of the compensation comparison reflected lack of 
competitiveness within the labor market for that classification; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority that the FY 2021-22 minimum and maximum salary range for 
NVTA Job Classification of Program Manager - Engineering, which reflects the 
competitive marketplace data and meets but does not exceed the Director classification 
salary range, are hereby adopted as set forth in Exhibit “A”, which includes approval of 
an hiring incentive payment due to the Authority’s current project needs and competitive 
marketplace.  

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by 
the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, at a regular meeting 
held on February 16, 2022, by the following vote: 

______________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair  Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED:  
_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

103



Resolution No. 22-08 
Page 3 of 3 

EXHIBIT “A” 

FY 2021-22 Monthly Salary Range 
Job Title Minimum Maximum 

Executive Director Separate Contract 

Director - Administration, Finance and Policy $11,547 $14,943 

Director - Capital Development and Planning $11,547 $14,943 

Program Manager – Engineering and Projects* $11,547 $14,943 

Program Manager - Public Transit $9,607 $11,547 

Principle Program Planner/Administrator $8,769 $12,349 

Senior Program Planner/Administrator $7,971 $10,686 

Associate Program Planner/Administrator $6,969 $8,905 

Assistant Program Planner/Administrator $6,027 $7,542 

Transportation Program Planner and Policy Analyst $6,027 $9,835 

Communications Officer $6,969 $9,835 

Senior Financial Analyst $6,969 $9,398 

Accounting Technician $5,753 $7,336 

Senior Administrative Technician $5,753 $7,336 

Administration Technician (Office Coordinator) $5,003 $6,377 

• In addition to the approved salary range, a hiring incentive payment of up to
$20,000 structured as incremental payments over a one-year period may be paid
as salary.

104



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) Annual Financial Statement with 
Independent Auditor’s Report for the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and Single 
Audit Report of Uniform Guidance 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board: 

(1) Accept and file the Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report for
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Attachment 2) and the NVTA
Single Audit Report of the Uniform Guidance (formerly Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133) for the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(Attachment 3); and

(2) Return an allocation surplus of $617,772 to the Local Transportation Fund (LTF)
Trust Fund

. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The certified public accountants firm, Brown Armstrong Incorporated, completed NVTA’s 
annual financial audit for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and federal Single 
Audit Report of Uniform Guidance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. This report 
summarizes NVTA’s financial position at the end of the fiscal year. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$617,772 will be returned to the Local Transportation Fund for reallocation, which will be 
made available for future allocation to NVTA when requested. 

105



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director - Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) Annual Financial 
Statement with Independent Auditor’s Report for the Years Ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 and Single Audit Report of Uniform Guidance 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board: 

(1) Accept and file the Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report for
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Attachment 2) and the NVTA
Single Audit Report of the Uniform Guidance (formerly Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133) for the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(Attachment 3); and

(2) Return an allocation surplus of $617,772 to the Local Transportation Fund (LTF)
Trust Fund

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND 

NVTA Financial Activities 

NVTA financial activities are separated into three (3) fund types: 

1. Governmental Fund: This fund type accounts for all of the non-trust, non-transit, non-
capital activities of NVTA, also known as the General Fund.  It includes agency
administration, salaries, pass through activities, and planning costs.

106

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 12.5 
February 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________  

The Governmental activities Net Position decreased by $536,907 from $2,486,459 in 
FY2019-20to $1,949,552 in FY2020-21.  The reason was the usage of planning funds 
that were accumulated over the previous fiscal year.  

2. Proprietary Fund (or Enterprise Fund): This fund accounts for the financial activity
of all public transit service programs.  At the end of FY 2020-21, the enterprise fund
net position decreased by $153,771 from $378,657 to $532,428.

In addition, the enterprise fund decreased assets by $2,037,354. The reason for the
decrease was mainly transactional with accumulated depreciation increasing by
$2,576,209.  Depreciation is a non-cash bookkeeping item which recognizes NVTA’s
assets losing value over time.  By removing this “charge”, the Transit Fund would have
realized a small surplus.

NVTA will also return an allocation surplus back to the Local Transportation Fund
(LTF) trust account of $617,772.  These funds were allocated as stop-gap solutions
to federal appropriations and grant approval delays and are no longer needed for
expenses incurred in the fiscal year.  These dedicated funds will be available for
reallocation in a future period should NVTA request the funds.  This amount is
significantly lower than in previous years - $2,486,395 and $1,107,126 due to federal
stimulus funds augmenting LTF funding for transit operations.

3. Fiduciary Funds:  This fund type accounts for the Bay Area Air Quality Management’s
(BAAQMD) Transportation for Clean Air Fund.  The funds pass through NVTA to other
governments.  NVTA collects an administration fee from the BAAQMD program up to
five percent (5%).  At the end of FY 2020-21, the Fiduciary Fund Type shows net
assets of $649,389 due to the carryover of projects into later years.

Farebox Ratio 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, transit agencies statewide, including Vine Transit, have 
experienced significant declines in local and farebox revenues.  In response, the State of 
California has provided statutory and administrative/regulatory relief for public 
transportation agencies.  Assembly Bill No. 90 (AB 90) was approved by the Governor on 
June 29, 2020.  AB 90 temporarily suspends the financial penalties associated with the 
TDA’s requirements that transit agencies obtain specified fixed percentages of their 
operating budgets from passenger fares for the 2020-2021 to 2023-2024 budget 
years.  Many transit agencies, including NVTA, have seen a decline in ridership due to 
COVID-19 - AB90 prevents transit agencies from being penalized due to the ongoing 
public health crisis. As such, for the year ended June 30, 2021, the farebox recovery 
ratios were suspended due to the effects of the COVID-19 health pandemic. 

107



Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 12.5 
February 16, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________  

Single Audit Report of Uniform Guidance (formerly Office of Management and 
Budget Announcement 133 OMB A-133) 

NVTA is required to undergo a Single Audit, known as the Uniform Guidance for receiving 
funds in excess of $750,000.  A Single Audit encompasses an examination of the 
agency’s financial records, financial statements, federal award transactions and 
expenditures, general management of its operations, internal control systems, and federal 
assistance received during the audit period.  Findings during the audit period ending June 
30, 2021: 

Financial: There were no financial findings.   

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:  There were no findings. 

Material Weakness: No material weaknesses were noted. 

Recommendations: There were no recommendations noted. 

The complete audits are available on request and will be distributed to Board members 
at the meeting.  The financial audit and single audit are also available on NVTA’s website 
at http://www.nvta.ca.gov/fiscal-audits-single-audits. 

ATTACHMENTS 

 (1) Brown Armstrong CPA’s Letter to NVTA’s Board of Directors dated
December 22, 2021 (SAS 114)

(2) NVTA Audit Report for Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
(3) NVTA Single Audit Report for Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021

108

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Financial_statements
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Expenditure
http://www.nvta.ca.gov/fiscal-audits-single-audits


ATTACHMENT 1
AGENDA ITEM 12.5
FEBRUARY 16, 2022

109



110



111



112



NAPA VALLEY 

TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
WITH 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

ATTACHMENT 2

AGENDA ITEM 12.5
FEBRUARY 16, 2022

113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



ATTACHMENT 3
NVTA AGENDA ITEM 12.5
FEBRUARY 16, 2022

195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.6 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) FY 2021-22 Mid-Year Review and 
Delegated Authority Matrix 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the FY 2021-22 
Mid-Year Review and Delegated Authority Matrix. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report provides NVTA’s financial position as of end of December 2021 and delegated 
authority contracts signed thus far in the fiscal year.  Attachment 1 includes detailed 
financial information for the first two quarters of the current fiscal year assessing the 
agency’s performance to budget.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

None.   

206



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.6 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Roxanna Moradi, Senior Financial Analyst 

(707) 259-8781 / Email: rmoradi@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) FY 2021-22 Mid-Year 
Review and Delegated Authority Matrix 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the FY 2021-22 
Mid-Year Review and Delegated Authority Matrix. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND 

NVTA’s financial records are composed of three (3) funds; the Planning Fund also 
known as the Congestion Management Agency (CMA) or the General Fund, the Transit 
Fund, and a fiduciary fund - the Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA).  TFCA is a pass-
through fund and does not contribute to the agency financial performance.  

Attachment 1 summarizes the financial performance and includes detailed financial 
information assessing the agency’s performance to budget for the first half of the current 
fiscal year.   

In July 2021 and leading up to the start of the new fiscal year, the County of Napa 
implemented a new financial system called Tyler Technologies - Munis (Tyler Munis). 
Because NVTA’s Joint Powers Authority stipulates that the County Auditor-Controller 
and Treasurer-Tax Collector shall provide accounting functions for NVTA, NVTA 
participated in the implementation.  The implementation included delegating new 
responsibilities and tasks to NVTA staff.  Consequently, there have been delays in 
consolidating Q1 and Q2 information, nevertheless, staff expects to be caught up in 

207

mailto:rmoradi@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 12.6 
February 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________  

early 2022. The implementation is not fully complete yet, with payroll still to be added in 
July 2022.  At that time, staff will assess any changes and update the financial 
presentation documents presented to the Board.   

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE – Q2 FY 2021-22 

Congestion Management Agency - Budget vs. Actuals 

The General Fund or Planning Fund (CMA) recognized $3,484,806 in revenues, or 25% 
of budget by mid-year.  The main sources of revenue were for CMA grant 
reimbursements, Transportation Development Act (TDA) disbursements, Caltrans 
reimbursements for the Soscol Junction project, and salary charge backs to the Public 
Transit fund.  Recognized revenues are also trending below budget due to the delay 
inherent in funding that is paid on a reimbursement basis. We expect to meet budget by 
the end of the fiscal year for projects that are progressing as anticipated. 

Planning fund expenses totaled $2,657,984 by mid-year, or 19% of the expense budget. 
Again, this is a timing issue - expenses are expected to be close to budget by the end of 
the year.  Personnel costs were $1,073,394 by mid-year and 35% of salaries and 
benefits have been expended to date.  The salaries and benefits expenses are trending 
below budget due to vacancies.  Both the revenue and expense trends are consistent 
with the prior year. 

Consulting services accounted for $1,215,887 in expenses, or 12% of the line item’s 
budget at mid-year.  Most of the consultant costs were related to Soscol Junction, Vine 
trail design, SR29 Improvements, and TIFIA loan consulting services. Significant 
administration expenses included audit expenses, county services charges, legal 
services, software licenses, building maintenance costs, insurance premiums, and 
utilities.  Building and maintenance costs have increased due to additional costs 
associated with COVID-19 cleaning. Still, the overall low expenditure rate for 
administrative and consulting expenses is due to a carryover budget from the last fiscal 
year as well as timing issues associated with projects.  

Public Transit (Transit Fund) - Budget vs. Actuals 

Transit operating revenues were $6,620,105 by mid-year.  The fund has received about 
93% of the annual Transportation Development Act (TDA) operating advances for transit 
for the fiscal year.   Farebox at mid-year totaled $200,556 and includes fares collected 
through the Vine website, ticket office, and fareboxes on the buses.  Federal revenues 
totaled $3,888,720 and include drawdowns primarily from federal stimulus funding for 
transit operations.  Additionally, NVTA has received $223,578 in Regional Measure 2 
funds.  

208



Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 12.6 
February 16, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________  

Overall, operating expenses in the Public Transit fund totaled $4,924,320.  The primary 
expense categories were purchased transportation at $3,855,107 and fuel at $514,490.  
Total public transit expenditures to date amount to 42% of the fiscal year budget.   Even 
with the newly adopted contract amendment with Transdev, it is anticipated that 
Purchased Transportation costs will still be under budget by the end of the fiscal year with 
decreased services due to driver shortages. The second highest budgeted expense is 
fuel, which at the end of the second quarter is at 51% of budget. In total, the actuals for 
the transit system reflect the continued reduction in service hours due to staffing 
shortages. 

Capital Purchases 

Some consulting fees associated with the bus maintenance facility were incurred.  In 
addition, five zero emission buses will be delivered next quarter. The agency also 
acquired the new computer-aided dispatch/automatic vehicle locator (CAD/AVL) system 
and continues to fund the software needed to  

LTF-TDA Outlook 

NVTA regularly participates in sales tax meetings with HdL Companies to obtain sales 
tax projections for planning purposes for TDA as well as for Measure T.  The last meeting 
took place at the end of January, which included a review of receipts from the months of 
July through September 2021 (FY22 Q1).  Compared to Q1 FY 2021, Q1 FY 2022, sales 
tax was up by 23.6%, or closer to 27% once adjusted for economic data. Most of the 
growth is attributed to restaurants and hotels during high-activity months for tourism. 
While this is an optimistic data point, the forecast for sales tax receipts will be relatively 
flat. Continuing from the last report on this topic, TDA may be affected by some changes 
in how big retailers are reporting their sales taxes. One source of the LTF TDA is a 0.25% 
distribution of the Bradley-Burns tax, which is a 1.25% statewide tax on retail sales of 
goods within the State of California. Retail businesses typically allocate Bradley-Burns 
tax based on the point-of-sale.  NVTA staff recently learned that the California Department 
of Tax and Fee Administration may start auditing this tax; however, it is not anticipated to 
have a net effect of receipts at the state level.  

Executive Director Delegated Authority 

The Board authorizes the Executive Director up to $49,999 in delegated authority for any 
single purchase and up to $175,000 for construction expenses. Table 1 presents 
delegated authority expenditures.   

209



Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 12.6 
February 16, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________  

Table 1: Delegated Authority Matrix for FY 21-22. 

ALTERNATIVES 

None 

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently. 

The quarterly financial update is a way to monitor agency activities and evaluate 
consistency with the annual budget in order to give the public confidence about the 
agency’s fiduciary responsibilities.   

ATTACHMENT 

(1) FY 2021-22 Q1 and Q2 Financial Statements

210



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only.

Consolidated  Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals 

 Q3 

Projection   Q4 Projection   YTD Total   Budget vs Actual 

 Percent of 

Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax 7,920,741  ‐  7,920,741  2,266,504               1,552,588              270,874           ‐  3,819,092  4,101,649  48.22%

41410 Sales and Use Tax ‐ Capital ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  148,866           53,260  ‐  ‐  0.00%

43790 State‐Other Funding 4,759,532  ‐  4,759,532  578,908  275,782                  800,178           1,567,125              854,690  3,904,842  17.96%

43890 Federal‐Other Funding 8,214,787  ‐  8,214,787  1,002,690               3,844,030              2,000,000        2,852,674              4,846,720  3,368,067  59.00%

43910 County of Napa ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

43950 Other‐Governmental Agencies 2,292,440  ‐  2,292,440  ‐  227,292                  427,662           1,096,862              227,292  2,065,148  9.91%

45100 Interest 84,800  ‐  84,800  13,559  ‐  24,000             12,000  13,559  71,241  15.99%

46800 Charges for Services (Farebox) 2,316,700  ‐  2,316,700  132,333  100,763                  160,500           150,000  233,096  2,083,604  10.06%

46810 American Canyon Contribution ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

46820 Yountville Contribution ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

46825 St. Helena Contribution ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

46830 Calistoga & CTBID Contribution 55,000  ‐  55,000  12,500  7,500  12,500             7,500  20,000  35,000  36.36%

47150 Other Grants ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

47400 Insurance Settlement ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  100.00%

48100 Sale of Capital Assets ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

49900 Intrafund Revenue 200,000  ‐  200,000  ‐  91,629  45,000             45,000  91,629  108,371  45.81%

4* Total Revenues 25,844,000            ‐  25,844,000            4,006,494            6,099,584          3,889,580     5,784,421           10,106,078                  15,737,922            39.10%

Expenses

51100 Salaries and Wages 2,032,800  ‐  2,032,800  275,845  472,704                  480,000           600,000  748,550  1,284,250  36.82%

51110 Extra Help 200,000  ‐  200,000  21,051  13,602  ‐  ‐  34,653  165,347  0.00%

51115 Overtime ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

51200 401A Employer Contribution 24,500  ‐  24,500  ‐  ‐  ‐  24,500  ‐  24,500  0.00%

51205 Cell Phone Allowance 9,000  ‐  9,000  1,130  1,610  1,700                1,700  2,740  6,261  0.00%

51300 Medicare 42,300  ‐  42,300  4,215  6,935  7,000                7,000  11,150  31,150  26.36%

51400 Employee Insurance‐Premiums 325,000  ‐  325,000  80,412  81,585  81,000             81,000  161,996  163,004  49.85%

51405 Workers Compensation 7,900  ‐  7,900  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  7,900  0.00%

51410 Unemployment Compensation ‐  ‐  ‐  86  71  80  80  158  (158)  0.00%

51600 Retirement 353,800  ‐  353,800  73,504  40,644  60,000             200,000  114,148  239,652  32.26%

51605 Other Post Employment Benefits 42,000  ‐  42,000  ‐  ‐  ‐  42,000  ‐  42,000  0.00%

51990 Other Employee Benefits 53,700  ‐  53,700  ‐  ‐  ‐  53,700  ‐  53,700  0.00%

51* Total for: Salaries and Benefits 3,091,000               ‐  3,091,000               456,243                617,150               629,780         1,009,980           1,073,394  2,017,606               34.73%

52100 Administration Services 5,000  ‐  5,000  227  212  225  225  439  4,561  8.77%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 84,900  ‐  84,900  8,159  37,258  12,000             10,000  45,417  39,483  53.49%

52130 Information Technology Service 186,200  ‐  186,200  28,425  28,425  28,425             28,425  56,851  129,350  0.00%

52131 ITS‐Communication Services 25,800  ‐  25,800  5,314  5,314  5,314                5,314  10,627  15,173  41.19%

52140 Legal Services 101,000  ‐  101,000  23,820  29,045  20,000             20,000  52,864  48,136  52.34%

52150 Temporary/Contract Help ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

52310 Consulting Services 10,156,700                ‐  10,156,700                106,947  1,119,391              1,506,000        2,506,000              1,226,338  8,930,362  12.07%

52325 Waste Disposal Services 19,100  ‐  19,100  4,029  4,029  4,029                4,029  8,058  11,042  42.19%

52335 Security Services 19,700  ‐  19,700  3,389  11,192  9,500                9,500  14,581  5,119  74.02%

52340 Landscaping Services 13,500  ‐  13,500  975  7,124  975  975  8,099  5,401  59.99%

52360 Construction Services ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

52490 Purchased Transportation 9,548,700  ‐  9,548,700  747,960  3,107,147              2,573,140        2,593,140              3,855,107  5,693,593  40.37%

52500 Maintenance‐Equipment 120,000  ‐  120,000  56,249  166,618                  104,000           104,000  222,867  (102,867)  185.72%

52505 Maintenance‐Buildings/Improvem 100,000  ‐  100,000  14,078  36,473  31,400             20,700  50,551  49,449  50.55%

52510 Maintenance‐B&I‐PW Charges ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

52515 Maintenance‐Software 155,500  ‐  155,500  3,500  173,276                  ‐  ‐  176,776  (21,276)  113.68%

52520 Maintenance‐Vehicles 57,000  ‐  57,000  12,232  19,632  10,000             10,000  31,864  25,137  55.90%

52600 Rents and Leases ‐ Equipment 7,000  ‐  7,000  1,871  1,498  1,200                1,200  3,369  3,631  48.13%

52605 Rents and Leases ‐ Bldg/Land 8,000  ‐  8,000  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  8,000  0.00%

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums 460,300  ‐  460,300  3,584  6,358  4,500                404,800  9,942  450,358  2.16%

52800 Communications/Telephone 27,100  ‐  27,100  5,207  4,780  5,000                36,500  9,988  17,112  36.86%

52810 Advertising/Marketing 114,500  ‐  114,500  1,190  8,543  5,000                1,500  9,733  104,767  8.50%

52820 Printing & Binding 31,000  ‐  31,000  13,903  9,190  8,000                6,000  23,094  7,906  74.50%

52825 Bank Charges 18,700  ‐  18,700  124  3,214  1,300                1,300  3,337  15,363  17.85%

52830 Publications & Legal Notices 8,700  ‐  8,700  3,123  1,884  3,000                1,000  5,007  3,693  57.55%

52900 Training/Conference Expenses 25,000  ‐  25,000  6,630  11,131  6,000                ‐  17,761  7,239  71.05%

52905 Business Travel/Mileage 27,500  ‐  27,500  ‐  66  50  50  66  27,434  0.24%

53100 Office Supplies 65,100  ‐  65,100  2,621  6,321  10,000             5,000  8,942  56,158  13.74%

53110 Freight/Postage 3,000  ‐  3,000  1,656  266  800  800  1,922  1,078  64.06%

53115 Books/Media/Periodicals/Subscr 6,000  ‐  6,000  3,648  1,128  1,000                 1,000  4,777  1,223  79.61%

53120 Memberships/Certifications 50,000  ‐  50,000  5,567  1,545  275  3,500  7,112  42,888  14.22%

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric 31,000  ‐  31,000  4,334  26,032  5,900                4,600  30,366  634  97.95%

53220 Utilities ‐ Water 25,000  ‐  25,000  3,673  3,146  3,423                3,423  6,819  18,181  27.28%

53250 Fuel 1,001,000  ‐  1,001,000  205,444  309,163                  310,070           315,070  514,607  486,393  51.41%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 22,502,000            ‐  22,502,000            1,277,878            5,139,403          4,670,526     6,098,051           6,417,281  16,084,719            28.52%

54315 Interest on Debt ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

57900 Intrafund Expenditures 251,000  ‐  251,000  ‐  91,629  45,000             45,000  91,629  159,371  36.51%

>='54  Total for: Other Expenses 251,000  ‐  251,000  ‐  91,629                 45,000           45,000                 91,629  159,371  36.51%

5* Total Expenditures 25,844,000            ‐  25,844,000            1,734,121            5,848,182          5,345,306     7,153,031           7,582,304  18,261,696            29.34%

Net Surplus (Deficit) ‐  ‐  ‐  2,272,373            251,401               (1,455,726)    (1,368,610)         2,523,775 

54600 Depreciation Expense ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

Capital Revenues

41410 Sales and Use Tax ‐ Captial 7,156,733  ‐  7,156,733  ‐  ‐  ‐  1,033,438              ‐  7,156,733  0.00%

43790 State‐Other Funding 2,959,078  2,959,078  ‐  ‐  236,000           1,775,308              ‐  2,959,078 

43890 Federal-Other Funding 30,078,078                ‐  30,078,078                ‐  42,213  1,300,000        3,440,700              42,213  30,035,865                0.00%

43950 Other GA 9,889,811  ‐  9,889,811  ‐  ‐  400,000           453,811  ‐  9,889,811  0.00%

4* Total Revenues 50,083,700            ‐  50,083,700            ‐  42,213                 1,936,000     6,703,257           42,213  50,041,487            0.08%

Capital Expenses

55100 Land ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

55200 Construction in Progress 43,504,227                ‐  43,504,227                10,614  31,599  1,536,000        3,513,007              42,213  43,462,014                0.00%

55400 Equipment 6,579,473  ‐  6,579,473  ‐  ‐  400,000           3,190,250              ‐  6,579,473  0.00%

55900 Capital Outlay Offset ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

57900 Intrafund Expenditures ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

>='54  Total for: Other Expenses 50,083,700            ‐  50,083,700            10,614  31,599                 1,936,000     6,703,257           42,213  50,041,487            0.08%

5* Total Expenditures 50,083,700            ‐  50,083,700            10,614                   31,599                 1,936,000     6,703,257           42,213  50,041,487            0.08%

Net Surplus (Deficit) ‐  ‐  ‐  (10,614)                 10,614                 ‐                  ‐  (0) 

ATTACHMENT 1
AGENDA ITEM 12.6
FEBRUARY 16, 2022

211



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only.

Division: 83010 NVTA‐CMA  Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget  E  Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   YTD Total   Budget vs Actual 

 Percent of 

Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax 2,865,100  ‐  2,865,100  1,000,000  535,820  1,535,820  1,329,280  53.60%

41410 Sales and Use Tax ‐ Capital ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

43790 State‐Other Funding 3,070,000  ‐  3,070,000  578,908  275,782  854,690  2,215,310  27.84%

43890 Federal‐Other Funding 4,327,100  ‐  4,327,100  353,353  604,647  958,000  3,369,100  22.14%

43910 County of Napa ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

43950 Other‐Governmental Agencies 1,900,000  ‐  1,900,000  ‐  3,714  3,714  1,896,286  0.20%

45100 Interest 20,000  ‐  20,000  8,412  ‐  8,412  11,588  42.06%

46800 Charges for Services 1,750,000  ‐  1,750,000  26,676  5,864  32,540  1,717,460  0.00%

46810 Charges for Services‐Amcan ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

46820 Charges for Service‐Yountville ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

46825 Charges for Services‐St Helena ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

46830 Charges for Services‐Calistoga ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

47150 Other Grants ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

49900 Intrafund Revenue 200,000  ‐  200,000  ‐  91,629  91,629  108,371  45.81%

4* Total Revenues 14,132,200             ‐  14,132,200              1,967,349                1,517,456                3,484,805                 10,647,395              24.66%

Expenses

51100 Salaries and Wages 2,032,800  ‐  2,032,800  275,845  472,704  748,550  1,284,250  36.82%

51110 Extra Help 200,000  ‐  200,000  21,051  13,602  34,653  165,347  0.00%

51115 Overtime ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

51200 457(b) Employer Contribution 24,500  ‐  24,500  ‐  ‐  ‐  24,500  0.00%

51205 Cell Phone Allowance 9,000  ‐  9,000  1,130  1,610  2,740  6,261  30.44%

51300 Medicare 42,300  ‐  42,300  4,215  6,935  11,150  31,150  26.36%

51400 Employee Insurance‐Premiums 325,000  ‐  325,000  80,412  81,585  161,996  163,004  49.85%

51405 Workers Compensation 7,900  ‐  7,900  ‐  ‐  ‐  7,900  0.00%

51410 Unemployment Compensation ‐  ‐  ‐  86  71  158  (158)  0.00%

51600 Retirement 353,800  ‐  353,800  73,504  40,644  114,148  239,652  32.26%

51605 Other Post Employment Benefits 42,000  ‐  42,000  ‐  ‐  ‐  42,000  0.00%

51990 Other Employee Benefits 53,700  ‐  53,700  ‐  ‐  ‐  53,700  0.00%

51* Total for: Salaries and Benefits 3,091,000               ‐  3,091,000                456,243  617,150  1,073,394                  2,017,606                34.73%

52100 Administration Services 5,000  ‐  5,000  227  212  439  4,561  8.77%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 70,000  ‐  70,000  8,159  35,321  43,480  26,520  62.11%

52130 Information Technology Service 150,000  ‐  150,000  28,425  28,425  56,851  93,150  37.90%

52131 ITS‐Communication Services 25,800  ‐  25,800  5,314  5,314  10,627  15,173  0.00%

52140 Legal Services 100,000  ‐  100,000  23,820  29,045  52,864  47,136  52.86%

52310 Consulting Services 10,156,700                 ‐  10,156,700  104,782  1,111,105  1,215,887  8,940,813  11.97%

52325 Waste Disposal Services 4,100  ‐  4,100  837  837  1,674  2,426  0.00%

52335 Security Services 8,000  ‐  8,000  ‐  4,202  4,202  3,798  52.53%

52340 Landscaping Services 7,500  ‐  7,500  975  975  1,950  5,550  26.00%

52360 Construction Services ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

52490 Other Professional Services ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

52500 Maintenance‐Equipment 25,000  ‐  25,000  9,857  3,686  13,543  11,457  0.00%

52505 Maintenance‐Buildings/Improvem 75,000  ‐  75,000  14,078  35,774  49,852  25,148  66.47%

52510 Maintenance‐B&I‐PW Charges ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

52515 Maintenance‐Software 50,000  ‐  50,000  3,500  24,289  27,789  22,211  55.58%

52520 Maintenance‐Vehicles 2,000  ‐  2,000  9  9  1,991  0.45%

52600 Rents and Leases ‐ Equipment 7,000  ‐  7,000  1,871  1,498  3,369  3,631  48.13%

52700 Insurance ‐ Liability ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums 60,000  ‐  60,000  3,584  6,358  9,942  50,058  16.57%

52800 Communications/Telephone 15,000  ‐  15,000  1,490  1,386  2,877  12,123  19.18%

52810 Advertising/Marketing 40,000  ‐  40,000  1,190  8,119  9,309  30,691  23.27%

52820 Printing & Binding 15,000  ‐  15,000  1,557  3,519  5,077  9,923  33.84%

52825 Bank Charges 15,000  ‐  15,000  53  324  376  14,624  2.51%

52830 Publications & Legal Notices 8,000  ‐  8,000  3,123  1,073  4,196  3,804  52.45%

52900 Training/Conference Expenses 25,000  ‐  25,000  6,630  11,131  17,761  7,239  71.05%

52905 Business Travel/Mileage 15,000  ‐  15,000  66  66  14,934  0.44%

53100 Office Supplies 65,100  ‐  65,100  2,621  6,053  8,674  56,426  13.32%

53110 Freight/Postage 3,000  ‐  3,000  831  73  904  2,096  30.13%

53115 Books/Media/Periodicals/Subscr 6,000  ‐  6,000  3,648  1,128  4,777  1,223  79.61%

53120 Memberships/Certifications 50,000  ‐  50,000  5,567  1,545  7,112  42,888  14.22%

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric 25,000  ‐  25,000  2,333  23,960  26,293  (1,293)  105.17%

53220 Utilities ‐ Water 12,000  ‐  12,000  2,550  2,023  4,573  7,427  38.11%

53250 Fuel 1,000  ‐  1,000  51  66  117  883  11.71%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 11,041,200             ‐  11,041,200              237,072  1,347,518                1,584,590                  9,456,610                14.35%

57900 Allocated Labor ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

>='54  Total for: Other Expenses ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

5* Total Expenditures 14,132,200             ‐  14,132,200              693,316  1,964,668                2,657,984                 11,474,216              18.81%

Net Surplus (Deficit) ‐  ‐  ‐  1,274,034                (447,213)                  826,821 

54600 Depreciation Expense ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

212



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only.

Division: 83020 ‐ NVTA‐Public Transit
 Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   YTD Total   Budget vs Actual 

 Percent of 

Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax (TDA) 5,055,641  ‐  5,055,641  1,266,504  1,016,768  2,283,272  2,772,369  45.16%

41410 Sales and Use Tax ‐ Capital ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

43790 State‐Other Funding 1,689,532  ‐  1,689,532  ‐  ‐  ‐  1,689,532  0.00%

43890 Federal‐Other Funding 3,887,687  ‐  3,887,687  649,337  3,239,383  3,888,720  (1,033)  100.03%

43950 Other‐Governmental Agencies 392,440  ‐  392,440  ‐  223,578  223,578  168,862  56.97%

45100 Interest 64,800  ‐  64,800  3,979  ‐  3,979  60,821  6.14%

46800 Farebox Revenue 566,700  ‐  566,700  105,657  94,899  200,556  366,144  35.39%

46810 American Canyon Contribution ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

46820 Yountville Contribution ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

46825 St. Helena Contribution ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

46830 Calistoga & CTBID Contribution 55,000  ‐  55,000  12,500  7,500  20,000  35,000  36.36%

47400 Insurance Settlement ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

47900 Miscellaneous ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

48100 Sale of Capital Assets ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

49900 Intrafund Transfers‐In ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

4* Total Revenues 11,711,800                ‐  11,711,800                2,037,977  4,582,128                6,620,105  5,091,695                 56.53%

Expenses

51* Total for: Salaries and Benefits ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 14,900  ‐  14,900  ‐  1,937  1,937  12,963  13.00%

52130 Information Technology Service 36,200  ‐  36,200  ‐  ‐  ‐  36,200  0.00%

52140 Legal Services 1,000  ‐  1,000  ‐  ‐  ‐  1,000  0.00%

52150 Temporary/Contract Help ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

52310 Consulting Services ‐  ‐  ‐  2,165  8,286  10,451  (10,451)  0.00%

52325 Waste Disposal Services 15,000  ‐  15,000  3,192  3,192  6,384  8,616  42.56%

52335 Security Services 11,700  ‐  11,700  3,389  6,990  10,379  1,321  88.71%

52340 Landscaping Services 6,000  ‐  6,000  ‐  6,149  6,149  (149)  102.48%

52490 Purchase Transportation 9,548,700  ‐  9,548,700  747,960  3,107,147  3,855,107  5,693,593  40.37%

52500 Maintenance‐Equipment 95,000  ‐  95,000  46,392  162,932  209,324  (114,324)  220.34%

52505 Maintenance‐Buildings/Improvem 25,000  ‐  25,000  ‐  699  699  24,301  0.00%

52515 Maintenance‐Software 105,500  ‐  105,500  ‐  148,987  148,987  (43,487)  0.00%

52520 Maintenance‐Vehicles 55,000  ‐  55,000  12,232  19,623  31,855  23,145  57.92%

52605 Rents and Leases ‐ Bldg/Land 8,000  ‐  8,000  ‐  ‐  ‐  8,000  0.00%

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums 400,300  ‐  400,300  ‐  ‐  ‐  400,300  0.00%

52800 Communications/Telephone 12,100  ‐  12,100  3,717  3,394  7,111  4,989  58.77%

52810 Advertising/Marketing 74,500  ‐  74,500  ‐  424  424  74,076  0.57%

52820 Printing & Binding 16,000  ‐  16,000  12,346  5,671  18,017  (2,017)  112.61%

52825 Bank Charges 3,700  ‐  3,700  71  2,890  2,961  739  80.03%

52830 Publications & Legal Notices 700  ‐  700  ‐  811  811  (111)  115.86%

52905 Business Travel/Mileage 12,500  ‐  12,500  ‐  ‐  ‐  12,500 

53100 Office Supplies ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  268  268  (268)  0.00%

53110 Freight/Postage ‐  ‐  ‐  825  193  1,018  (1,018)  #DIV/0!

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric 6,000  ‐  6,000  2,001  2,072  4,073  1,927  67.88%

53220 Utilities ‐ Water 13,000  ‐  13,000  1,123  1,123  2,246  10,754  17.28%

53250 Fuel 1,000,000  ‐  1,000,000  205,393  309,097  514,490  485,510  51.45%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 11,460,800                ‐  11,460,800                1,040,806  3,791,885                4,832,691  6,628,109                  42.17%

0.833  83%

54315 Interest on Debt ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

57900 Intrafund Expenditures 251,000  ‐  251,000  ‐  91,629  91,629  159,371  36.51%

>='54  Total for: Other Expenses 251,000  ‐  251,000  ‐  91,629  91,629  159,371  36.51%

5* Total Expenditures 11,711,800                ‐  11,711,800                1,040,806  3,883,514                4,924,320  6,787,480                 42.05%

Net Surplus (Deficit) ‐  ‐  ‐  997,171  698,614  1,695,785  (1,695,785)               

54600 Depreciation Expense ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

213



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.7 

 Continued From:  New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Swainson Hawk Foraging Habitat Credits for Soscol Junction 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director, or designee, to execute and make minor modifications to the Muzzy Ranch 
Conservation Bank contract (Attachments 1) to acquire 17.34 acres of Swainson Hawk 
foraging habitat credits in order to fulfill mitigation requirements by the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) for the construction of Soscol Junction. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife requires mitigation for endangered and 
threatened species as outlined in the Incidental Take Permit (ITP) for Soscol Junction. 
NVTA, as the project sponsor, is required to obtain all resource agency permits and meet 
mitigation requirements for the project. The ITP requires NVTA to mitigate the loss of 
17.34 acres of Swainson Hawk foraging habitat. NVTA has been working with the 
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) to identify eligible mitigation credits for 
both the foraging habitat and the nesting tree (brought to the Board last month) and has 
confirmed Muzzy Ranch has 17.34 acres that will satisfy the foraging habitat credit 
outlined in the ITP.  CDFW has confirmed that the purchase of the Muzzy Ranch credits 
will meet the conditions of approval for the Soscol Junction ITP.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Yes. The Purchase of the foraging habitat credit will cost $433,500 and is covered under 
the PS&E and Construction cooperative agreements No. 04-2783 and No. 04-2840 with 
Caltrans.  

214



Febraury 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.7 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Director, Capital Development & Planning 

(707) 259-5968 / Email: dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT:      Swainson Hawk Foraging Habitat for Soscol Junction 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director, or designee, to execute and make minor modifications to the Muzzy Ranch 
Conservation Bank contract (Attachments 1) to acquire 17.34 acres of Swainson Hawk 
foraging habitat credits in order to fulfill mitigation requirements by the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) for the construction of Soscol Junction. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND 

The Soscol Junction Project will provide safety, access, and operational improvements 
for traffic, pedestrian and bicycle operations at Soscol Junction in Napa County.  This 
project is located at the intersection of State Route (SR) 29 and SR 221, near the City of 
Napa, in Napa County.  It ranges from post mile (PM) R6.04 to R6.48, along SR 29 and 
PM 0.00 to 0.12, along SR 221. The project will replace the current at-grade, signal 
controlled intersection with a grade separated interchange.  It will consist of elevating SR 
29 above SR 221 with an undercrossing structure and constructing three ramps.  An 
existing feature of the current intersection will satisfy the northbound SR 29 to northbound 
SR 221 movement. The SR 221 undercrossing will consist of two, modern, single lane-
multilane hybrid roundabouts. Soscol Junction is ready to construct and is currently in the 
bidding process. The project is scheduled to begin construction in May 2022.  

NVTA has been working with California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) to meet the conditions of approval 

215

mailto:dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 12.7 
February 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

identified in the Incidental Take Permit (ITP) for Soscol Junction.  The ITP covers 
California Endangered Species and outlines the conditions to “take” species or wildlife 
designated by CDFW as endangered, threatened or designated candidate species.  The 
construction of Soscol Junction may result in activities that could threaten Swainson Hawk 
species or habitat.  Therefore, NVTA must mitigate construction impacts to the Swainson 
Hawk in the project area.  Last month the NVTA Board approved the purchase of a 
Swainson Hawk nesting credit. In addition to the nesting credit, NVTA must mitigate for 
17.34 acres of Swainson Hawk foraging habitat. Muzzy Ranch Conservation Bank has 
17.34 acres of habitat that meet the specifications for upland foraging and dispersal 
habitat detailed in the ITP. The purchase of these credits must proceed any construction 
activities including staging.   

ALTERNATIVES 

1) The NVTA Board could decide not to execute contracts with Muzzy Ranch
Conservation Bank and staff would have to work with Caltrans and CDFW to
secure other acreage that is suitable habitat for the Swainson Hawk. This will likely
result in delay of project and loss of construction days.

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goals 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently  

Purchase from the mitigation banks will be less expensive and timelier than other 
alternatives to meet the conditions of approval outline in the Soscol Junction ITP.  

Goal 4: Promote Napa County’s economic sustainability 

The construction of Soscol Junction will create jobs and once completed will result in 
travel times savings for workers, goods, and services.  

ATTACHMENT(S) 

(1) Muzzy Ranch Conservation Bank Contract for Swainson Hawk Foraging Habitat
(2) Soscol Junction Incidental Take Permit

216



Version 2014 

ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 12.7 
FEBRUARY 16, 2022 

AGREEMENT FOR SALE OF CONSERVATION CREDITS 
ITP # 2081-2021-020-03 

Soscol Junction Improvement Project, Napa County 
Muzzy Ranch Contract # 2022-0001 

This Agreement is entered into this _____ day of ___________ 2022, by and between Canon Station, 
LLC, with offices at 2121 N California Blvd., Suite 1010, Walnut Creek, CA 94596 (“Bank Owner”) 
and Napa Valley Transportation Authority with offices at 625 Burnell St, Napa, CA 94559 
(“Applicant”), jointly referred to as the (“Parties”)  as follows: 

RECITALS 
A. The Bank Owner has developed the Muzzy Ranch Conservation Bank (Bank) located in

Solano County, California; and 

B. The Bank was approved by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service on December 30, 2015
(USFWS FILE NO. 81420-2009-B-0001) and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife on January 
8, 2016 (Tracking No. 1798-2013-02-R3), and is currently in good standing with these agencies; and 

C. The Bank has received approval from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service) to
offer vernal pool, playa pool, and upland credits for sale as compensation for the loss of vernal fairy 
shrimp, vernal pool tadpole shrimp, Conservancy fairy shrimp, California tiger salamander, San Joaquin 
Valley Orcutt grass, and (potentially) Delta green ground beetle habitat through the Muzzy Ranch 
Conservation Bank Agreement (Bank Agreement); and 

D. Project Applicant is seeking to implement the project described on Exhibit “A” attached
hereto (Project), which would unavoidably and adversely impact 17.340 acres of Swainson’s hawk 
foraging habitat.  The project applicant seeks to fulfill the total mitigation requirement through the 
purchase of 17.340 Swainson’s hawk foraging habitat credits   (Conservation Credits) by purchasing 
Conservation Credits from Bank; and 

E. Project Applicant has been authorized by ITP 2081-2021-020-03 to purchase the
Conservation Credits from the Bank; and 

F. Project Applicant desires to purchase from Bank and Bank desires to sell to Project
Applicant the Conservation Credits; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Bank hereby sells to Project Applicant and Project Applicant hereby purchases from
Bank the Conservation Credits for the purchase price of Four Hundred Thirty Three Thousand Five 
Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($433,500.00) (Purchase Price).  The Bank will then deliver to Project 
Applicant an executed Bill of Sale in the manner and form as attached hereto and marked Exhibit “B”. 
The purchase price for said credits shall be paid by cashier’s check, business check or, at the option of 
Bank, wire transfer of funds according to written instructions by Bank to Project Applicant.  Following 
receipt of the Purchase Price, Bank Owner shall complete the payment receipt in the form attached hereto 

217



Version 2014 

2 
as Exhibit “C” (Payment Receipt) and deliver the receipt to Project Applicant together with the executed 
Bill of Sale. 

2. The sale and transfer herein is not intended as a sale or transfer to Project Applicant of a
security, license, lease, easement, or possessory or non-possessory interest in real property, nor the 
granting of any interest of the foregoing. 

3. Project Applicant shall have no obligation whatsoever by reason of the purchase of the
Conservation Credits, to support, pay for, monitor, report on, sustain, continue in perpetuity, or otherwise 
be obligated or liable for the success or continued expense or maintenance in perpetuity of the credits 
sold, or the Bank or Bank Owner.  Pursuant to the Bank Agreement and any amendments thereto, Bank 
shall monitor and make reports to the appropriate agency or agencies on the status of any Conservation 
Credits sold to Project Applicant.  Bank and Bank Owner, jointly and severally, shall be fully and 
completely responsible for satisfying any and all current and future conditions placed on the Bank or the 
Conservation Credits by all state or federal jurisdictional agencies.  Bank and Bank Owner, jointly and 
severally, shall indemnify, defend and hold Project Applicant, including its directors, officers, agents, 
employees, affiliates, parents and subsidiaries, harmless from and against any and all claims, including 
demands, actions, damages, loss, costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees arising out of or resulting from any 
of Bank’s and/or Bank Owner’s obligations under the terms of this Agreement and/or pertaining to the 
Conservation Credits. 

4. The Conservation Credits sold and transferred to Project Applicant shall be non-
transferable and non-assignable, and shall not be used as compensatory mitigation for any other project or 
purpose, except as set forth herein. 

5. The prices quoted in this contract are good for 60 days from the date written above.
Project Applicant must exercise his/her/its right to purchase the Conservation Credits within 60 days of 
the date contained in this Agreement.  After the 60-day period this Agreement will be considered null and 
void. 

6. Upon purchase of the Conservation Credits, the Bank shall submit to the
parties listed in the Notices section of the Bank Agreement / Bank Enabling Instrument, copies of the: a) 
Agreement for Sale of Conservation Credits; b) Bill of Sale; c) Payment Receipt; and d) an updated 
ledger. The updated inventory / ledger must detail:  i) Project Applicant; ii) Project Name; iii) Status (sale 
complete/sale not complete); iv) Credit Sale Date; v) Service File Number; vi) U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers File Number (if applicable); vii) Total Number of Credits Authorized to Sell; viii) Total 
Number of Credits Sold to Date (inclusive); and ix) Balance of all Credits Available.  The inventory / 
ledger should include all sales data from bank opening/establishment to the present. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first above 
written. 

(Signatures on the following page) 

218



Version 2014 

3 

BANK OWNER: 

Canon Station, LLC (owner of Muzzy Ranch Conservation Bank) 

By: _______________________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Dan Aguilar, Manager 

PROJECT APPLICANT: 

Project Applicant 

By: _______________________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Kate Miller, Executive Director 

219



Version 2014 

4 

Exhibit “A” 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
TO BE 

MITIGATED 

 ITP 2081-2021-020-03 
State Route 29/State Route 221 Soscol Junction Improvement Project 

EA 04-28120 
Napa County, California 

***** 
The Project includes the construction of a tight diamond interchange with two multi-lane 
roundabouts on either side of SR-29. SR-29 will be rebuilt as an overcrossing north of the 
intersection with SR-221, providing separation between SR-29 and the SR-221 northbound 
ramp and the adjacent roundabout entry (Figure 7, 95% Design Plans, Sheet K-1). SR-29 will 
continue to operate with two lanes in each direction. SR-221 will include two roundabouts 
with two lanes southbound and connecting to eastbound SR-29 and one lane northbound 
traveling from Soscol Ferry Road transitioning to SR-221 and single-lane ramp connectors 
from southbound SR-221 to westbound SR-29, and eastbound SR-29 to southbound on 
Soscol Ferry Road. The existing ramp connector from westbound SR-29 to northbound SR- 
221 will remain in place. The Project will include standard shoulders, curbs, gutters, and 
existing signage would remain in place. New signage will also be located within the Caltrans 
Right of Way (ROW). The Project will also include pedestrian and bicycle circulation, 
drainage work, landscaping, utilities, ground disturbance, earthwork and restoration. The 
Project will occur in six stages over the course of three construction seasons from 2022 to 
2024 (Figure 2, Staging, Phasing and Timeline Plan). 

The Project is expected to cause the permanent loss of 7.25 acres, the temporary loss of 
10.09 acres of foraging habitat for Swainson’s Hawk (“Covered Species”) (Figure 2, Staging, 
Phasing and Timeline Map), for a total of 17.34 acres of impact. This Project is also expected to 
cause the loss of one (1) known nesting occurrences within the Project Area. 

The Permittee shall also purchase 17.34 acres of Covered Species credit for 
suitable foraging habitat from a CDFW-approved mitigation or conservation bank 
(Condition of Approval 7.2). 

220



Version 2014 

5 
Exhibit “B” 

BILL OF SALE 

Contract # 2022-0001 
ITP 2081-2021-020-03 

State Route 29/State Route 221 Soscol Junction Improvement Project 
EA 04-28120 

Napa County, California 

In consideration of Four Hundred Thirty-Three Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 
Dollars ($433,500.00) receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Canon Station, LLC (owner of 
Muzzy Ranch Conservation Bank) (Bank Owner) does hereby bargain, sell and transfer to 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority (Project Applicant), 17.340 Swainson’s hawk foraging 
habitat credits in the Muzzy Ranch Conservation Bank in Solano County, California, developed, 
and approved by the U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 

Canon Station, LLC (Bank Owner) represents and warrants that it has good title to the 
credits, has good right to sell the same, and that they are free and clear of all claims, liens, or 
encumbrances. 

Canon Station, LLC (Bank Owner) covenants and agrees with the buyer to warrant and 
defend the sale of the credits hereinbefore described against all and every person and persons 
whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same. 

DATED: ______________________________________ 

Canon Station, LLC (owner of Muzzy Ranch Conservation Bank) 

By: ___________________________________________ 
Dan Aguilar, Manager 

221



 

  Version 2014 

6 
Exhibit “C” 

Muzzy Ranch Conservation Bank 
17.340 Swainson’s Hawk Foraging Habitat 

CREDITS: PAYMENT RECEIPT 
 
PARTICIPANT INFORMATION 
 
Name:  Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 
Address: 625 Burnell Street 
 
Telephone 707 259-5968 
 
Contact: Danielle Schmitz 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
Project Description:    State Route 29/State Route 221 Soscol Junction Improvement Project 
       EA 04-28120 
  
Service File Number:        N/A 
 
Permit Type and #:    CDFW ITP  2081-2021-020-03 
 
Species/Habitat Affected: Swainson’s Hawk Foraging Habitat 
 
Credits to be Purchased:  17.340 
 
Payment Amount:   $433,500.00   
 
Project Location:   State Route 29/State Route 221   
    
County/Address:   Napa, CA  
 
PAYMENT INFORMATION 
 
Payee:  Canon Station LLC (owner of Muzzy Ranch Conservation Bank)  
 
Payer:  Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 
Amount: $433,500.00  
 
Method of payment: Cash ___  Check No. __________  Money Order No. _________ 
 
Received by: ____________________________________________ Date: ________________ 
    (Signature) 
Name: _______________________________________ Title:____________________________ 

 

222



State of California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife

M e m o r a n d u m 

Date:   August 20, 2021 

To: Rui Gao 
California Department of Transportation 
111 Grand Avenue 
Oakland, CA 94912 
Rui.Gao@dot.ca.gov  

From: Stacy Sherman, Acting Regional Manager 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife-Bay Delta Region, 2825 Cordelia Road, Suite 100, Fairfield, CA 94534 

Subject: Incidental Take Permit for 2081-2021-020-03 State Route 29/State Route 221 Soscol 
Junction Improvement Project, Napa County 

Enclosed you will find an electronic copy of the Incidental Take Permit for the above 
referenced Project, which has been digitally signed by the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (CDFW). Please read the permit carefully and sign the acknowledgement 
on the permit no later than 30 days from CDFW signature and prior to initiation of 
ground-disturbing activities. You may return an electronic copy of the permit with digital 
signature to CESA@wildlife.ca.gov. Digital signatures shall comply with Government 
Code section 16.5. Alternatively, you may return a hard copy of the permit via mail to: 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
Habitat Conservation Planning Branch, CESA Permitting 

Post Office Box 944209 
Sacramento, CA 94244-2090 

You are advised to keep the permit in a secure location and distribute copies to 
appropriate project staff responsible for ensuring compliance with the conditions of 
approval of the permit. Note that you are required to comply with certain conditions of 
approval prior to initiation of ground-disturbing activities. Additionally, a copy of the 
permit must be maintained at the project work site and made available for inspection by 
CDFW staff when requested. 

The permit will not take effect until the signed acknowledgement is received by CDFW. 
If you wish to discuss these instructions or have questions regarding the permit, please 
contact Mr. Robert Stanley, Senior Environmental Scientist (Specialist), at 
Robert.Stanley@wildlife.ca.gov; or Mr. Wes Stokes, Senior Environmental Scientist 
(Supervisory), at Wesley.Stokes@wildlife.ca.gov. 

Enclosures 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

ATTACHMENT 2
AGENDA ITEM 12.7
FEBRUARY 16, 2022

223

mailto:Rui.Gao@dot.ca.gov
mailto:CESA@wildlife.ca.gov
mailto:Robert.Stanley@wildlife.ca.gov
mailto:Wesley.Stokes@wildlife.ca.gov


 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
Bay Delta Region 

2825 CORDELIA ROAD, SUITE 100 
FAIRFIELD, CA 94534 

California Endangered Species Act 
Incidental Take Permit No. 2081-2021-020-03

STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
EA 04-28120 

Authority:  

This California Endangered Species Act (CESA) Incidental Take Permit (ITP) is issued by the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) pursuant to Fish and Game Code section 
2081, subdivisions (b) and (c), and California Code of Regulations, Title 14, section 783.0 et 
seq. CESA prohibits the take1 of any species of wildlife designated by the California Fish and 
Game Commission as an endangered, threatened, or candidate species.2 CDFW may 
authorize the take of any such species by permit if the conditions set forth in Fish and Game 
Code section 2081, subdivisions (b) and (c) are met. (See Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, § 783.4). 

Permittee:   California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 

Principal Officer:   Rui Gao  

Contact Person:  Robert Blizard, (510) 715-8585 

Mailing Address:  111 Grand Avenue, Oakland, CA 94612 

Effective Date and Expiration Date of this ITP: 

This ITP shall be executed in duplicate original form and shall become effective once a 
duplicate original is acknowledged by signature of the Permittee on the last page of this ITP 
and returned to CDFW’s Habitat Conservation Planning Branch at the address listed in the 
Notices section of this ITP. Unless renewed by CDFW, this ITP’s authorization to take the 
Covered Species shall expire on December 31, 2024. 

Notwithstanding the expiration date on the take authorization provided by this ITP, Permittee’s 
obligations pursuant to this ITP do not end until CDFW accepts as complete the Permittee’s 
Final Mitigation Report required by Condition of Approval 5.6 (Annual and Final Construction 
Report) of this ITP. 

                                                 
1Pursuant to Fish and Game Code section 86, “‘take’ means hunt, pursue, catch, capture, or kill, or attempt to hunt, pursue, 
catch, capture, or kill.” (See also Environmental Protection Information Center v. California Department of Forestry and Fire 
Protection (2008) 44 Cal.4th 459, 507 [for purposes of incidental take permitting under Fish and Game Code section 2081, 
subdivision (b), “’take’ … means to catch, capture or kill”). 

2“The definition of an endangered, threatened, and candidate species for purposes of CESA are found in Fish and Game 
Code sections 2062, 2067, and 2068, respectively. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

224



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 2 

Project Location:  

The State Route 29 (SR-29)/State Route 221 (SR-221) Soscol Junction Improvement Project 
(Project) is located on SR-29 from Post Mile (PM) 5.6 to 6.7 and on SR-221 from PM 0.0 to 
0.4. in unincorporated Napa County, California in the Cuttings Wharf, United States 
Geological Survey (USGS) quadrangle (Figure 1, Project Location Map).  

Project Description:  

The Project includes the construction of a tight diamond interchange with two multi-lane 
roundabouts on either side of SR-29. SR-29 will be rebuilt as an overcrossing north of the 
intersection with SR-221, providing separation between SR-29 and the SR-221 northbound 
ramp and the adjacent roundabout entry (Figure 7, 95% Design Plans, Sheet K-1). SR-29 will 
continue to operate with two lanes in each direction. SR-221 will include two roundabouts 
with two lanes southbound and connecting to eastbound SR-29 and one lane northbound 
traveling from Soscol Ferry Road transitioning to SR-221 and single-lane ramp connectors 
from southbound SR-221 to westbound SR-29, and eastbound SR-29 to southbound on 
Soscol Ferry Road. The existing ramp connector from westbound SR-29 to northbound SR-
221 will remain in place. The Project will include standard shoulders, curbs, gutters, and 
existing signage would remain in place. New signage will also be located within the Caltrans 
Right of Way (ROW). The Project will also include pedestrian and bicycle circulation, 
drainage work, landscaping, utilities, ground disturbance, earthwork and restoration. The 
Project will occur in six stages over the course of three construction seasons from 2022 to 
2024 (Figure 2, Staging, Phasing and Timeline Plan). 

Overcrossing Structure 

The proposed SR-29 overcrossing will consist of a cast-in-place prestressed single span box 
girder on spread footings, with see-through bridge rails, and a clearance height of 
approximately 17 feet (Figure 7, 95% Design Plans, Sheet Route 29/221 Separation General 
Plan). The northbound (NB) and southbound (SB) directions will each have two lanes, and 
the outside shoulders will range from 6 to 10 feet wide and from 8 to 13 wide, respectively. 
The NB median will vary from 2 to 15 feet wide, and the SB median will vary from 2 to 5 feet 
wide. The width of the center median for the SR-221 NB and SB 12-foot-wide lanes will vary 
between 12 and 16 feet, and shoulders will vary between 2 to 11 feet wide, with ascending 
side slopes 2:1 or flatter. The SR-221 profile and roundabouts will be lower than the existing 
interchange roadway by as much as 20 feet. This does not include any structural modification 
of the existing Soscol Creek Bridge or extension of the roadway over Soscol Creek Bridge. 

Roundabout Structures 

The new roundabouts will include paved roadway widths of 16 to 20 feet, with an inside 
shoulder width of 4 feet. The roundabout areas will include new signage, street lighting and 
fixtures (Figure 7, 95% Design Plans, Sheet L-7). New street lighting associated with the two 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

225



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 3 

roundabouts and the ramps connecting from eastbound SR-29 to the roundabout and along 
Soscol Ferry Road just before connecting with the roundabout (Figure 5, Proposed Lighting 
Isolux Diagram Map). 

Pedestrian and Bicycle Circulation  

The Project includes the construction of a 10-foot-wide minimum, Class I, shared use, 
pedestrian and bicycle path along the northern side of SR-221/Soscol Ferry Road. The 
shared use path will be separated from vehicular traffic by placing a minimum 5-foot-wide 
non-traversable buffer made of inert material/rocks. Pedestrian crossings would be located a 
minimum of one car length from the circulatory roadway. Shared-use path would convey both 
pedestrian and bicycle traffic through the intersection. The path will provide the opportunity 
for bicyclists to exit the bicycle lane or shoulder via a bicycle ramp and navigate the 
intersection on the shared-use path and through the crosswalks. As an alternative to taking 
the shared-use path, bicyclists will also be able to exit the bicycle lane or shoulder and enter 
the roadway to ride with vehicle traffic through the roundabout. At two-lane approaches, 
crosswalks will be split into two separate crossings through pedestrian refuges at the splitter 
islands (Figure 7, 95% Design Plans, Sheet C-74 and C-75).  

Drainage Work  

Multiple irrigation, drainage systems and bio-swale filtration and retention systems will be 
installed as specified in Design Sheets D1 to D6 (Figure 7, 95% Design Plans). These areas 
of drainage install are covered under the temporary and permanent impacts to Covered 
Species habitat. Systems that connect or outfall into Suscol Creek are not covered under the 
terms of this ITP.  

Project Lighting 

The Project will retain some currently existing lighting features on the SR-29/SR-221 corridor 
(Figure 4, Existing Lighting Isolux Analysis Map). The Project will also construct new street 
lighting associated with the junction interchange within the new approaches, two 
roundabouts, pedestrian/cyclist crossings and the ramps connecting from eastbound SR-29 
to the roundabout and along Soscol Ferry Road just before connecting with the roundabout 
(Figure 5, Proposed Lighting Isolux Diagram Map). Two existing overhead lights will be 
removed from the vicinity of the Soscol Creek Bridge as specified in Figure 4 (Existing 
Lighting Isolux Analysis Map) and Figure 5 (Proposed Lighting Isolux Diagram Map). New 
overhead lights, luminaires and roundabout accent lights will also be installed within the 
Project (Figure 5, Proposed Lighting Isolux Diagram Map). All artificial light source outputs 
shall be programmed at 2700 kelvin (K) or less.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

226



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 4 

Ground Disturbance and Earthwork 

Grading and earthwork will be required to construct the SR-221 roundabouts and SR-29 
overcrossing. Excavation will also be required throughout the Project to construct the new SR-
221 profile up to 16 feet lower than existing grade at the lowest point, with the profile 8 feet 
lower. Landscaping, utilities and drainage facilities, will require trenching, placement of pipe, 
drainage structures, landscaping, irrigation, utilities, and backfill totaling up to 6 feet in depth at 
the proposed element locations. Construction of the SR-29/SR-221 overcrossing will require 
an excavation depth of 20 feet for spread footing foundations, as well as general excavation for 
abutments. A maximum excavation depth of 20 feet will be required to install overhead signing 
associate with on and off ramps and at the roundabout approach for better traffic flow and 
safety. There will be 190,000 cubic yards of cut and 17,000 to 20,000 cubic yards of import, for 
a maximum total of 210,000 cubic yards of fill. Stockpiling would be located within the ROW at 
the staging areas, within active work areas, and away from any sensitive biological areas. 
Excavated soils would be reused as fill material to minimize wastes and costs. Requirements 
for engineering controls based on regulated lead levels or the restrictions on reused soils will 
be determined and confirmed prior to reuse. To minimize and avoid runoff from the stockpiles, 
temporary hydro-mulch and or cover/tarps will be used and anchored. 

Landscaping 

Upland trees removed in the course of construction will be replaced with native trees. Native 
vegetation will also be placed in a scattered layout to reduce the visual appearance of new 
highway facilities while preserving existing views to hills and distant trees. Additional 
revegetation will also include grasses and forbs that are native to the region.  

Site Cleanup and Restoration 

Construction-related materials, including the wildlife exclusion fencing (WEF) and 
environmentally sensitive area (ESA) fencing will be removed as necessary after the 
completion of construction activities for each stage of the Project or upon final completion of 
construction, as applicable. The temporarily disturbed areas will be revegetated with 
appropriate native species. Permanent erosion control, including soil stabilization measures 
such as hydroseeding, coir netting, and non-filament mesh fiber rolls, will be applied to 
affected areas to minimize erosion after construction has been completed for each applicable 
phase. 

Equipment 

Equipment necessary to complete the Project may include but is not limited to; excavators, 
graders, cranes, loaders, telescoping forklifts, backhoe loaders, concrete pumps, concrete 
trucks, pavers, rollers, compactors, air compressors, portable generators, temporary signals 
and portable lighting. Asphalt-concrete paving will be conducted with pavers and rollers. 
Pavement grinding will be conducted with a grinder, and a street sweeper would be used to 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

227



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 5 

collect leftover grindings and debris. Clearing and grubbing will be done by hand, chainsaws, 
excavators, and/or loaders. Earthwork will be done by excavators, bulldozers, and graders. 
Equipment used to construct slopes will be excavators, bulldozers, graders, rollers, and 
cement pouring equipment. Equipment used for the removal of old pavement will be 
jackhammers, concrete saw cutters, excavators, and hand tools. Other equipment will include 
forklifts, front end loaders, a hydroseeding truck, and various trucks and trailers. 

Covered Species Subject to Take Authorization Provided by this ITP:  

This ITP covers the following species: 

 Name        CESA Status 

1. Swainson’s hawk (Buteo swainsoni)  Threatened3 

This species and only this species is the “Covered Species” for the purposes of this ITP.  

Impacts of the Taking on Covered Species: 

Project activities and their resulting impacts are expected to result in the incidental take of 
individuals of the Covered Species. The activities described above expected to result in 
incidental take of individuals of the Covered Species include initial site setup, equipment and 
material delivery, clearing and grubbing, site preparation, exclusionary fencing installations, 
environmentally sensitive area fencing installations, pavement and concrete removal, concrete 
pump truck activities, soil excavation, soil compaction, grading work, pavement installation, 
heavy equipment operation, trenching, artificial light source installation, construction vehicle 
traffic, general vehicle traffic and personnel on foot (collectively, Covered Activities).  

Incidental take of individuals of the Covered Species in the form of mortality (“kill”) may occur 
as a result of Covered Activities include; direct take from collision with equipment, excessive 
noise from the operation of heavy equipment, encroachment from individuals on foot into 
Covered Species nesting areas that results in nest abandonment and the loss of Covered 
Species eggs or juvenile Covered Species. Incidental take of individuals of the Covered 
Species may also occur from the Covered Activities in the form of capture of the Covered 
Species from transport of injured Covered Species to wildlife care facilities. The areas where 
authorized take of the Covered Species is expected to occur include: The 87.87-acre 
Biological Study Area (BSA) that encompasses the proposed SR-29/SR-221 Soscol Junction 
Interchange and all of the Caltrans ROW, as identified in Figure 1, (collectively the Project 
Area).  

The Project is expected to cause the permanent loss of 7.25 acres, the temporary loss of 
10.09 acres of foraging habitat for the Covered Species (Figure 2, Staging, Phasing and 

                                                 
3See Cal. Code Regs. tit. 14 § 670.5, subd. (b)(5)(A). 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

228



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 6 

Timeline Map), for a total of 17.34 acres of impact. This Project is also expected to cause the 
loss of one (1) known nesting occurrences within the Project Area. If more than one (1) nest 
site is found within 0.25 miles of the Project Area an amendment to this ITP is required to 
address changed biological circumstances. Impacts of the authorized taking also include 
adverse impacts to the Covered Species related to temporal losses of foraging habitat, 
increased habitat fragmentation and edge effects, and the Project’s incremental contribution to 
cumulative impacts (indirect impacts). These impacts include: stress resulting from increased 
noise and vibrations from heavy equipment operation, long-term effects due to foraging habitat 
degradation, displacement from preferred habitat, increased competition for food and space, 
and long-term effects due to increased anthropogenic activities such as increased noise levels 
from increased anthropogenic activity within the vicinity of nesting habitat from the bicycle and 
pedestrian path and its design features such as lighting and crossing signals, as well as visual 
related impacts from the same elements of the multi-use path. 

Incidental Take Authorization of Covered Species: 

This ITP authorizes incidental take of the Covered Species and only the Covered Species. With 
respect to incidental take of the Covered Species, CDFW authorizes the Permittee, its 
employees, contractors, and agents to take Covered Species incidentally in carrying out the 
Covered Activities, subject to the limitations described in this section and the Conditions of 
Approval identified below. This ITP does not authorize take of Covered Species from activities 
outside the scope of the Covered Activities, take of Covered Species outside of the Project 
Area, take of Covered Species resulting from violation of this ITP, or intentional take of Covered 
Species except for capture and relocation of Covered Species as authorized by this ITP.  

Conditions of Approval: 

Unless specified otherwise, the following measures apply to all Covered Activities within the 
Project Area, including areas used for vehicular ingress and egress, staging parking, and 
noise and vibration generating activities that may cause take. CDFW’s issuance of this ITP 
and Permittee’s authorization to take the Covered Species are subject to Permittee’s 
compliance with and implementation of the following Conditions of Approval: 

1. Legal Compliance: Permittee shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 
laws in existence on the effective date of this ITP or adopted thereafter. 

2. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Compliance: Permittee shall 
implement and adhere to the mitigation measures related to the Covered Species in the 
Biological Resources section of the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the State Route 
29/State Route 221 Soscol Junction Improvement Project (SCH No.: 2019099072) 
certified by the California Department of Transportation on February 13, 2020 as lead 
agency for the Project pursuant to CEQA (Pub. Resources Code, § 21000 et seq.). 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

229



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 7 

3. ITP Time Frame Compliance: Permittee shall fully implement and adhere to the 
conditions of this ITP within the time frames set forth below and as set forth in the 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP), which is included as Attachment 1 
to this ITP. 

4. General Provisions: 

4.1. Designated Representative. Before starting Covered Activities, Permittee shall 
designate a representative (Designated Representative) responsible for 
communications with CDFW and overseeing compliance with this ITP. Permittee 
shall notify CDFW in writing before starting Covered Activities of the Designated 
Representative’s name, business address, and contact information, and shall notify 
CDFW in writing if a substitute Designated Representative is selected or identified at 
any time during the term of this ITP. 

4.2. Designated Biologist. Permittee shall submit to CDFW in writing the name, 
qualifications, business address, and contact information of a biological monitor 
(Designated Biologist) at least 30 days before starting Covered Activities. Permittee 
shall ensure that the Designated Biologist is knowledgeable and experienced in the 
biology, natural history and the collecting and handling of the Covered Species. The 
Designated Biologist shall be responsible for monitoring Covered Activities to help 
minimize and fully mitigate or avoid the incidental take of individual Covered Species 
and to minimize disturbance of Covered Species’ habitat. Permittee shall obtain 
CDFW approval of the Designated Biologist in writing before starting Covered 
Activities, and shall also obtain approval in advance in writing if the Designated 
Biologist must be changed. 

4.3. Designated Biologist Authority. To ensure compliance with the Conditions of 
Approval of this ITP, the Designated Biologist shall have authority to immediately 
stop any activity, in consultation with the Resident Engineer, that does not comply 
with this ITP, and/or to order any reasonable measure to avoid the unauthorized take 
of an individual of the Covered Species.  

4.3.1. Permittee shall accommodate the Designated Biologist in the performance of 
his/her duties. If the Designated Biologist is unable to comply with the ITP due 
to a conflict with Project construction, then the Designated Biologist shall notify 
the CDFW representative immediately. 

4.4. Education Program. Permittee shall conduct an education program for all persons 
employed or otherwise working in the Project Area before performing any work. The 
program shall consist of a presentation from the Designated Biologist that includes a 
discussion of the biology and general behavior of the Covered Species, information 
about the distribution and habitat needs of the Covered Species, sensitivity of the 
Covered Species to human activities, its status pursuant to CESA including legal 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

230



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 8 

protection, recovery efforts, penalties for violations and Project-specific protective 
measures described in this ITP. Permittee shall provide interpretation for non-English 
speaking workers, and the same instruction shall be provided to any new workers 
before they are authorized to perform work in the Project Area. Permittee shall 
prepare and distribute wallet-sized cards or a fact sheet handout containing this 
information for workers to carry in the Project Area. Upon completion of the program, 
employees shall sign a form stating they attended the program and understand all 
protection measures. This training shall be repeated at least once annually for long-
term and/or permanent employees that will be conducting work in the Project Area. 

4.5. Design Plan Review. All final design plan sets shall be submitted to CDFW a 
minimum of 30 days prior to the initiation of construction for written review and 
acceptance. Work may not proceed without acceptance in writing on the final design 
plan set from CDFW. At the discretion of CDFW, any proposed design plan 
modifications may require an amendment to this Incidental Take Permit. Design plans 
may be subject to change dependent upon submission and consultation with CDFW. 

4.6. Construction Monitoring Notebook. The Designated Biologist shall maintain a 
construction-monitoring notebook on-site throughout the construction period, which 
shall include a copy of this ITP with attachments and a list of signatures of all 
personnel who have successfully completed the education program. Permittee shall 
ensure a copy of the construction-monitoring notebook is available for review at the 
Project site upon request by CDFW. 

4.7. Trash Abatement. Permittee shall initiate a trash abatement program before starting 
Covered Activities and shall continue the program for the duration of the Project. 
Permittee shall ensure that trash and food items are contained in animal-proof 
containers and removed at least once a week to avoid attracting opportunistic 
predators such as ravens, coyotes, and feral dogs.  

4.8. Dust Control. Permittee shall implement dust control measures during Covered 
Activities to facilitate visibility for monitoring of the Covered Species by the 
Designated Biologist. Permittee shall adhere to Caltrans Standard Specification 10-5 
for dust control strategies.  

4.9. Erosion Control Materials. Permittee shall prohibit use of erosion control materials 
potentially harmful to Covered Species, such as monofilament netting (erosion 
control matting), filter-fabric, geo-textile fabric or similar plastic-based material in 
potential Covered Species’ habitat.  

4.10. Delineation of Property Boundaries. Before starting Covered Activities along each part 
of the route in active construction, Permittee shall clearly delineate the boundaries of 
the Project Area with fencing, stakes, or flags and discuss the boundaries in the 
Education Program with all on-sit personnel. Permittee shall restrict all Covered 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

231



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 9 

Activities to within the fenced, staked, or flagged areas. Permittee shall maintain all 
fencing, stakes, and flags until the completion of Covered Activities in that area. 

4.11. Delineation of Habitat. Before the initiation of Covered Activities the Permittee shall 
clearly delineate habitat of the Covered Species within the Project Area beyond 
those areas within the immediate project constriction footprint with posted signs, 
posting stakes, flags, and/or rope or cord, and place fencing as necessary to 
minimize the disturbance of Covered Species’ nesting activities. 

4.12. Project Access. Project-related personnel shall access the Project Area using the 
staging and access routes identified in Figure 2, Staging, Phasing and Timeline Plan 
and shall not cross Covered Species’ habitat outside of or en route to the Project 
Area. Permittee shall restrict Project-related vehicle traffic to established roads, 
staging, and parking areas. Permittee shall ensure that vehicle speeds do not 
exceed 15 miles per hour when driving the staging area, access routes or Project 
Area. If Permittee determines construction of routes for travel are necessary outside 
of the Project Area, the Designated Representative shall contact CDFW for written 
approval before carrying out such an activity. CDFW may require an amendment to 
this ITP, among other reasons, if additional take of Covered Species will occur as a 
result of the Project modification.  

4.13. Hazardous Waste. Permittee shall immediately stop and pursuant to pertinent state 
and federal statutes and regulations, arrange for repair and clean up by qualified 
individuals of any fuel or hazardous waste leaks or spills at the time of occurrence, or 
as soon as it is safe to do so. Permittee shall exclude the storage and handling of 
hazardous materials from the Project Area and shall properly contain and dispose of 
any unused or leftover hazardous products off-site. 

4.14. CDFW Access. Permittee shall provide CDFW staff with reasonable access to the 
Project and mitigation lands under Permittee control and shall otherwise fully 
cooperate with CDFW efforts to verify compliance with or effectiveness of mitigation 
measures set forth in this ITP.  

4.15. Refuse Removal. Upon completion of Covered Activities, Permittee shall remove from 
the Project Area and properly dispose of all temporary fill and construction refuse, 
including, but not limited to, broken equipment parts, wrapping material, cords, cables, 
wire, rope, strapping, twine, buckets, metal or plastic containers, and boxes. 

5. Monitoring, Notification and Reporting Provisions: 

5.1. Notification before Commencement. The Designated Representative shall notify 
CDFW 5 calendar days before starting Covered Activities and shall document 
compliance with all pre-Project Conditions of Approval before starting Covered 
Activities. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

232



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 10 

5.2. Notification of Non-compliance. The Designated Representative shall immediately 
notify CDFW in writing if it determines that the Permittee is not in compliance with 
any Condition of Approval of this ITP, including but not limited to any actual or 
anticipated failure to implement measures within the time periods indicated in this 
ITP and/or the MMRP. The Designated Representative shall report any non-
compliance with this ITP to CDFW within 24 hours. 

5.3. Compliance Monitoring. The Designated Biologist shall be required on-site during 
Covered Activities, refer to Condition of Approval 6.2 for guidance in regard to 
compliance monitoring schedule requirements. The Designated Biologist shall 
conduct compliance inspections to (1) minimize incidental take of the Covered 
Species, as feasible; (2) prevent unlawful take of species; (3) check for compliance 
with all measures of this ITP; (4) establish and maintain nest buffer zones, as 
applicable (See Condition of Approval 6.3); (5) ensure that signs, stakes, and fencing 
are intact, and (6) capture photos of Project Area conditions and Covered Activities 
and to ensure that Covered Activities are only occurring in the Project Area. The 
Designated Representative or Designated Biologist shall prepare written observation 
and inspection records as specified in Condition of Approval 6.3; summarizing: 
oversight activities and compliance inspections, observations of Covered Species 
and their sign, survey results, and monitoring activities required by this ITP. 

5.4. Monthly Compliance Report. The Designated Representative or Designated Biologist 
shall compile the observation and inspection records identified in Condition of 
Approval 5.3 (Compliance Monitoring) into a Monthly Compliance Reports and 
submit it to CDFW along with a copy of the MMRP table with notes showing the 
current implementation status of each mitigation measure. Monthly Compliance 
Reports shall be submitted to the CDFW offices listed in the Notices section of this 
ITP and via e-mail to CDFW’s Regional Representative and Headquarters CESA 
Program. At the time of this ITP’s approval, the CDFW Regional Representative is 
Robert Stanley (Robert.Stanley@wildlife.ca.gov) and Headquarters CESA Program 
email is CESA@wildlife.ca.gov. CDFW may at any time increase the timing and 
number of compliance inspections and reports required under this provision 
depending upon the results of previous compliance inspections. If CDFW determines 
the reporting schedule must be changed, CDFW will notify Permittee in writing of the 
new reporting schedule. 

5.5. CNDDB Observations. The Designated Biologist shall submit all observations of 
Covered Species to CDFW’s California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB) within 
60 calendar days of the observation and the Designated Biologist shall include 
copies of the submitted forms with the next Monthly Compliance Report, whichever is 
submitted first relative to the observation.  

5.6. Annual and Final Construction Reports. No later than 60 days after completion of 
construction for each year of Covered Activities the Permittee shall provide CDFW 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

233

mailto:Robert.Stanley@wildlife.ca.gov
mailto:CESA@wildlife.ca.gov


    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 11 

with an Annual or Final Construction Report. The Designated Biologist shall prepare 
the Final Construction Report which shall include, at a minimum: (1) a summary of all 
Monthly Compliance Reports; (2) a copy of the table in the MMRP with notes 
showing when each of the mitigation measures was implemented; (3) all available 
information about Project-related incidental take of the Covered Species; (4) 
information about the Projects annual impacts on the Covered Species; (5) beginning 
and ending dates of Covered Activities; (6) an assessment of the effectiveness of 
this ITP’s Conditions of Approval in minimizing and fully mitigating Project impacts of 
the taking on Covered Species; (7) recommendations on how mitigation measures 
might be changed to more effectively minimize take and mitigate the impacts of 
future Projects on the Covered Species; and (8) any other pertinent information.  

5.7. Notification of Take or Injury. Permittee shall immediately notify the Designated 
Biologist if a Covered Species is taken or injured by a Project-related activity, or if a 
Covered Species is otherwise found dead or injured within the vicinity of the Project. 
The Designated Biologist or Designated Representative shall provide initial 
notification to CDFW by calling the Regional Office at (707) 428-2002 and the 
regional representative within 24 hours. The initial notification to CDFW shall include 
information regarding the location, species, and number of animals taken or injured 
and the ITP Number. Following initial notification, Permittee shall send CDFW a 
written report within two business days. The report shall include the date and time of 
the finding or incident, location of the animal or carcass, and if possible provide a 
photograph, explanation as to cause of take or injury, and any other pertinent 
information. The report and notification shall also be submitted to CDFW’s Regional 
Representative Robert Stanley (Robert.Stanley@wildlife.ca.gov). 

6. Take Minimization Measures: 

The following requirements are intended to ensure the minimization of incidental take of 
Covered Species in the Project Area during Covered Activities. Permittee shall 
implement and adhere to the following conditions to minimize take of Covered Species: 

Covered Species Avoidance and Minimization  

6.1. Pre-Construction Surveys. Prior to initiating Covered Activities and at the onset of 
nesting season (beginning in March) during each year the Project is in active 
construction, the Designated Biologist(s) shall conduct reconnaissance surveys to 
identify all potential nesting habitat within 0.25 miles of the Project Area and identify  
any potential Covered Species active nests. Surveys shall follow methods outlined in 
the Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Surveys in 
California’s Central Valley (https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-
Protocols#377281284-birds). The survey shall include all potential staging areas, 
storage areas, stockpile areas, and vehicle access routes. All results shall be submitted 
to CDFW a minimum of 7 days prior to initiating Covered Activities for review. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

234

mailto:Robert.Stanley@wildlife.ca.gov
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols#377281284-birds
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols#377281284-birds


    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 12 

6.2. Daily Construction Surveys. A Designated Biologist(s) shall be on-site daily for all 
Covered Activities occurring during the Covered Species nesting season from  
March 15 to September 15. If a Covered Species nest within 0.25 miles of the 
Project Area is active beyond the nesting season, monitoring shall continue each day 
until the young have fledged. Outside of the Covered Species nesting season, if no 
nests are active within a 0.25-mile radius, the Designated Biologist may develop an 
alternate monitoring schedule in coordination with the CDFW representative. 
Surveys shall follow methods outlined in the Recommended Timing and 
Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Surveys in California’s Central Valley 
(https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols#377281284-birds). 
Survey requirements and buffer limits may be modified with written request to and 
approval from CDFW. If a lapse in Covered Activities of 7 days or longer occurs, 
additional surveys shall be performed prior to resuming Covered Activities during the 
nesting season (March 15 to September 15) and the results sent to CDFW 48 hours 
prior to the re-initiation of work. All daily construction survey results should be 
submitted weekly to CDFW when an active nest is present and monthly when no 
active nest is present.  

6.3. Active Nest Buffer Zones. If active Covered Species nests are found, no Covered 
Activities shall occur within 0.25 miles of an active Covered Species nest unless a 
smaller buffer is established in consultation with CDFW. If Covered Species do not 
exhibit signs of disturbance, as specified in Condition of Approval 6.4, the buffer 
distance can be incrementally reduced based on monitoring the response of Covered 
Species to Covered Activities. With written approval from CDFW, the Designated 
Biologist(s) may increase, reduce or remove the buffer based on the monitoring 
responses of Covered Species. If more than one (1) nest site is found within 0.25 
miles of the Project Area an amendment to this ITP is required to address changed 
biological circumstances. 

The Permittee shall clearly delineate the buffer zone around an active nest within the 
Project Area with posted signs demarcating the area to avoid and using stakes, 
fencing, flags, and/or rope or cord to minimize the disturbance of Covered Species 
nesting behaviors. All construction personnel shall be notified of the existence and 
location of the known active Covered Species nest site and any active Covered 
Species nest sites detected during pre-construction surveys. Construction Personnel 
shall be instructed to minimize disturbances to these sites to the maximum extent 
feasible during nesting season. Trees or other features containing active nests shall 
be flagged or otherwise marked in the field. The marking should be readily visible at 
a distance of at least 100 feet. If a nest is located on an off-site property, signage 
and/or flagging shall be placed at the property boundary near where the nest is 
located. The sign shall indicate the direction and approximate distance of the nest 
from the property line.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

235

https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols#377281284-birds


    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 13 

6.4. Stop Work for Abnormal Nesting Behavior. A Designated Biologist(s), who is 
experienced in raptor behavior and approved by CDFW, shall be assigned to monitor 
the behavior of actively nesting Covered Species within 0.25 miles of the Project 
Area. The Designated Biologist(s) shall have the authority to stop all Covered Activity 
determined to cause abnormal nesting behavior in Covered Species, which may 
cause nest abandonment and loss of eggs/young. Abnormal nesting behaviors 
include, but are not limited to, swooping/stooping excessive vocalization (distress 
calls), agitation, standing up from a brooding position, failure to remain on the nest, 
and failure to deliver prey items for an extended time-period. Project activities 
resulting in abnormal nesting behavior shall not resume until the Designated 
Biologist(s) has consulted with CDFW and both the Designated Biologist and CDFW 
confirm that the bird's behavior has normalized, or the young have left the nest. On a 
weekly basis, the Designated Biologist shall report directly to CDFW the status of 
each Covered Species active nest. Reports shall include observations of abnormal 
nesting behaviors and any significant changes in ambient conditions due to Covered 
Activities. Significant changes would include noise levels and visual conditions such 
as an increase in the number of personnel walking around the Project Area or 
mobilization of large equipment into the Project Area. 

6.5. Nest Abandonment and Hacking. If the Project results in nest abandonment and 
nestling(s) are still alive, the Designated Biologist(s) shall recover the hatchling(s) or 
egg(s) and immediately take it to a CDFW-approved wildlife rehabilitation or veterinary 
facility. Permittee shall bear any cost associated with recovery of nestling(s) and 
hacking (controlled release of captive reared young) of the nestling(s). 

6.6. Removal of Nest Trees. No active nest trees, or trees know to have active nests in 
the last five years are authorized for removal under the conditions of this ITP.  

6.7. Project Access and Staging. The Permittee shall establish and maintain all Project 
Areas, Staging Areas and Access Routes within areas of previously identified 
impacts as described in this Incidental Take Permit and shall not traverse Covered 
Species Habitat outside specified areas of impact for any purpose including 
personnel on foot (Figure 3, Project Habitat Impacts Map). Staging areas and 
laydown areas shall not occur within the active nest buffer as specified in Condition 
of Approval 6.3. No night delivery of material is authorized to occur within the active 
nest buffer as specified in Condition of Approval 6.3. 

6.8. Signs and Fence Post Restrictions. Any fencing posts or signposts installed 
temporarily or permanently throughout the course of the Project will prevent the 
entrapment of wildlife, specifically birds of prey. If open-ended pipes or bollards are 
used for posts, they shall be capped. If metal posts with post holes are used 
(including, but not limited to U-channel posts and T-posts), the posts shall have the 
top three post holes or any post holes above an affixed sign capped, covered, or 
filled. The Designated Biologist will be responsible for ensuring compliance with this 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

236



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 14 

measure throughout the course of the Project and will inspect each post for 
compliance when at the Project Site. 

6.9. Temporary Artificial Lighting Restrictions and Nightwork. All temporary lighting shall 
be required to have shielding and shall be focused to the Project Area to avoid to the 
maximum extent feasible scattering of artificial light into natural lands. When not in 
use all temporary lighting shall be shut down upon the completion of work each day. 
No nightwork is authorized to occur within the active nest buffer as specified in 
Condition of Approval 6.3. 

6.10. Permanent Artificial Lighting Restrictions. All new installations and replacements of 
previously existing light emitters, luminaires or bulb types for permanent use within 
the Project Area shall have a maximum output programmed at 2700 kelvin or less. 
All new installations or replacements of lighting shall be fitted with back-shielding, 
and the surface area of the light shall be directed so that it does not project into 
natural lands. The Isolux Analysis baseline of current artificial lighting conditions 
(Figure 4, Existing Lighting Isolux Analysis Map) establishes the baseline of existing 
conditions and the proposed lighting output of new and replacement emitters over 
the surface area of natural lands. An updated Isolux analysis shall be required within 
60 days of completion of Covered Activity completion to determine real-world light 
levels. All permanent lighting shall be directed towards the surface of the road and 
employ adjusted mast height and adjusted reach arm lengths to reduce light pollution 
into natural lands. Additional avoidance and minimization conditions may be required 
in consultation with CDFW if an increase in lighting output is determined to occur 
onto natural lands greater than the initial projections when compared to the Final 
Isolux Diagram that measures the real-world artificial lighting outputs. 

6.11. Construction Survey and Monitoring. Throughout the course of Covered Activities, 
the Designated Biologist(s) shall conduct reconnaissance surveys to identify all 
potential nesting habitat within 0.25 miles of the Project Area and identify any 
potential Covered Species active nests. Surveys shall follow methods outlined in the 
Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Surveys in 
California’s Central Valley (https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-
Protocols#377281284-birds). All results shall be submitted to CDFW as part of the 
On-Site Restoration Plan, as specified in Condition of Approval 7.5. 

7. Habitat Management Land Acquisition and Restoration: 

CDFW has determined that permanent protection and perpetual management of 
compensatory habitat is necessary and required pursuant to CESA to fully mitigate 
Project-related impacts of the taking on the Covered Species that will result with 
implementation of the Covered Activities. This determination is based on factors 
including an assessment of the importance of the habitat in the Project Area, the extent  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

237

https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols#377281284-birds
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols#377281284-birds


    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 15 

to which the Covered Activities will impact the habitat, and CDFW’s estimate of the 
acreage required to provide for adequate compensation. 

To meet this requirement, the Permittee shall purchase one (1) Covered Species credit 
for suitable nesting habitat from a CDFW-approved mitigation or conservation bank 
(Condition of Approval 7.2) to cover the loss or abandonment of one Covered Species 
nest. The Permittee shall also purchase 17.34 acres of Covered Species credit for 
suitable foraging habitat from a CDFW-approved mitigation or conservation bank 
(Condition of Approval 7.2). OR shall provide for both the permanent protection and 
management of 17.34 acres of Habitat Management (HM) lands, pursuant to Condition 
of Approval 7.3 below and the calculation and deposit of the management funds 
pursuant to Condition of Approval 7.4 below. Compensatory habitat shall include upland 
foraging and dispersal habitat for Covered Species through preservation, restoration, 
enhancement, and/or creation of habitat that is the same or better quality as upland 
habitat that will be impacted. Permanent protection and funding for perpetual 
management of compensatory habitat must be complete before starting Covered 
Activities, or within 18 months of the effective date of this ITP if Security is provided 
pursuant to Condition of Approval 8 below for all uncompleted obligations. The 
Permittee shall also restore on-site 10.09 acres of temporarily impacted Covered 
Species habitat pursuant to Condition of Approval 7.5 below. 

7.1. Cost Estimates. CDFW has estimated the cost of purchasing credits from a from a 
CDFW-approved mitigation or conservation bank and restoration of temporarily 
disturbed habitat as follows: 

7.1.1. Purchase of one Covered Species nesting habitat credits identified in Condition 
of Approval 7, estimated at $160,000.00; 

7.1.2. Purchase of 17.34 credits of Covered Species foraging habitat credit identified 
in Condition of Approval 7, estimated at $150,000.00/acre; $2,601,000.00; 

7.1.3. Restoration of on-site temporary effects to Covered Species habitat as 
described in Condition of Approval 7.5 (Habitat Restoration), calculated at 
$3,900.00/acre for 10.09 acres: $39,351.00. 

7.2. Habitat Acquisition and Protection. To provide for the acquisition and perpetual 
protection and management of the HM lands, the Permittee shall: 

7.2.1. Fee Title/Conservation Easement. Transfer fee title to the HM lands to CDFW 
pursuant to terms approved in writing by CDFW. Alternatively, CDFW, in its sole 
discretion, may authorize a governmental entity, special district, non-profit 
organization, for-profit entity, person, or another entity to hold title to and 
manage the property provided that the district, organization, entity, or person 
meets the requirements of Government Code sections 65965-65968, as 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

238



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 16 

amended. If CDFW does not hold fee title to the HM lands, CDFW shall act as 
grantee for a conservation easement over the HM lands or shall, in its sole 
discretion, approve a non-profit entity, public agency, or Native American tribe 
to act as grantee for a conservation easement over the HM lands provided that 
the entity, agency, or tribe meets the requirements of Civil Code section 815.3. 
If CDFW does not hold the conservation easement, CDFW shall be expressly 
named in the conservation easement as a third-party beneficiary. The Permittee 
shall obtain CDFW written approval of any conservation easement before its 
execution or recordation. No conservation easement shall be approved by 
CDFW unless it complies with Government Code sections 65965-65968, as 
amended and includes provisions expressly addressing Government Code 
sections 65966(j) and 65967(e); 

7.2.2. HM Lands Approval. Obtain CDFW written approval of the HM lands before 
acquisition and/or transfer of the land by submitting, at least three months 
before acquisition and/or transfer of the HM lands, a formal Proposed Lands for 
Acquisition Form (see Attachment 2B) identifying the land to be purchased or 
property interest conveyed to an approved entity as mitigation for the Project’s 
impacts on Covered Species; 

7.2.3. HM Lands Documentation. Provide a recent preliminary title report, initial 
hazardous materials survey report, and other necessary documents (see 
Attachment 2A). All documents conveying the HM lands and all conditions of 
title are subject to the approval of CDFW, and if applicable, the Wildlife 
Conservation Board and the Department of General Services; 

7.2.4. Land Manager. Designate both an interim and long-term land manager 
approved by CDFW. The interim and long-term land managers may, but need 
not, be the same. The interim and/or long-term land managers may be the 
landowner or another party. Documents related to land management shall 
identify both the interim and long-term land managers. Permittee shall notify 
CDFW of any subsequent changes in the land manager within 30 days of the 
change. If CDFW will hold fee title to the mitigation land, CDFW will also act as 
both the interim and long-term land manager unless otherwise specified. 

7.2.5. Start-up Activities. Provide for the implementation of start-up activities, including 
the initial site protection and enhancement of HM lands, once the HM lands 
have been approved by CDFW. Start-up activities include, at a minimum:  
(1) preparing a final management plan for CDFW approval (see 
https://wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Planning/Banking); (2) conducting a 
baseline biological assessment and land survey report within four months of 
recording or transfer; (3) developing and transferring Geographic Information 
Systems (GIS) data if applicable; (4) establishing initial fencing; (5) conducting 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

239

https://wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Planning/Banking


    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 17 

litter removal; (6) conducting initial habitat restoration or enhancement, if 
applicable; and (7) installing signage; 

7.2.6. Interim Management (Initial and Capital). Provide for the interim management of 
the HM lands. The Permittee shall ensure that the interim land manager 
implements the interim management of the HM lands as described in the final 
management plan and conservation easement approved by CDFW. The interim 
management period shall be a minimum of three years from the date of HM land 
acquisition and protection and full funding of the Endowment and includes 
expected management following start-up activities. Interim management period 
activities described in the final management plan shall include fence repair, 
continuing trash removal, site monitoring, and vegetation and invasive species 
management, and restoration of disturbed habitat. Permittee shall either (1) 
provide a security to CDFW for the minimum of three years of interim 
management that the land owner, Permittee, or land manager agrees to manage 
and pay for at their own expense, (2) establish an escrow account with written 
instructions approved in advance in writing by CDFW to pay the land manager 
annually in advance, or (3) establish a short-term enhancement account with 
CDFW or a CDFW-approved entity for payment to the land manager. 

7.3. Endowment Fund. The Permittee shall ensure that the HM lands are perpetually 
managed, maintained, and monitored by the long-term land manager as described in 
this ITP, the conservation easement, and the final management plan approved by 
CDFW. After obtaining CDFW approval of the HM lands, Permittee shall provide 
long-term management funding for the perpetual management of the HM lands by 
establishing a long-term management fund (Endowment). The Endowment is a sum 
of money, held in a CDFW-approved fund that provides funds for the perpetual 
management, maintenance, monitoring, and other activities on the HM lands 
consistent with the management plan(s) required by Condition of Approval 7.2.5 
(Start Up Activities). Endowment as used in this ITP shall refer to the endowment 
deposit and all interest, dividends, other earnings, additions and appreciation 
thereon. The Endowment shall be governed by this ITP, Government Code sections 
65965-65968, as amended, and Probate Code sections 18501-18510, as amended. 

After the interim management period, Permittee shall ensure that the designated 
long-term land manager implements the management and monitoring of the HM 
lands according to the final management plan. The long-term land manager shall be 
obligated to manage and monitor the HM lands in perpetuity to preserve their 
conservation values in accordance with this ITP, the conservation easement, and the 
final management plan. Such activities shall be funded through the Endowment.  

7.3.1. Identify an Endowment Manager. The Endowment shall be held by the 
Endowment Manager, which shall be either CDFW or another entity qualified 
pursuant to Government Code sections 65965-65968, as amended. Permittee 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

240



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 18 

shall submit to CDFW a written proposal that includes: (i) the name of the 
proposed Endowment Manager; (ii) whether the proposed Endowment Manager 
is a governmental entity, special district, nonprofit organization, community 
foundation, or congressionally chartered foundation; (iii) whether the proposed 
Endowment Manager holds the property or an interest in the property for 
conservation purposes as required by Government Code section 65968(b)(1) 
or, in the alternative, the basis for finding that the Project qualifies for an 
exception pursuant to Government Code section 65968(b)(2); and (iv) a copy of 
the proposed Endowment Manager’s certification pursuant to Government 
Code section 65968(e). Within thirty days of CDFW’s receipt of Permittee’s 
written proposal, CDFW shall inform Permittee in writing if it determines the 
proposal does not satisfy the requirements of Fish and Game Code section 
2081(b)(4) and, if so, shall provide Permittee with a written explanation of the 
reasons for its determination. If CDFW does not provide Permittee with a written 
determination within the thirty-day period, the proposal shall be deemed 
consistent with Section 2081(b)(4).; 

7.3.2. Calculate the Endowment Funds Deposit. After obtaining CDFW written 
approval of the HM lands, long-term management plan, and Endowment 
Manager, Permittee shall prepare a Property Analysis Record (PAR) or PAR-
equivalent analysis (hereinafter “PAR”) to calculate the amount of funding 
necessary to ensure the long-term management of the HM lands (Endowment 
Deposit Amount). The Permittee shall submit to CDFW for review and approval 
the results of the PAR before transferring funds to the Endowment Manager.  

7.3.2.1. Capitalization Rate and Fees. Permittee shall obtain the capitalization rate 
from the selected Endowment Manager for use in calculating the PAR and 
adjust for any additional administrative, periodic, or annual fees. 

7.3.2.2. Endowment Buffers/Assumptions. Permittee shall include in PAR 
assumptions the following buffers for endowment establishment and use 
that will substantially ensure long-term viability and security of the 
Endowment: 

7.3.2.2.1. 10 Percent Contingency. A 10 percent contingency shall be added to 
each endowment calculation to hedge against underestimation of the 
fund, unanticipated expenditures, inflation, or catastrophic events. 

7.3.2.2.2. Three Years Delayed Spending. The endowment shall be established 
assuming spending will not occur for the first three years after full 
funding.  

7.3.2.2.3. Non-annualized Expenses. For all large capital expenses to occur 
periodically but not annually such as fence replacement or well 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

241



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 19 

replacement, payments shall be withheld from the annual 
disbursement until the year of anticipated need or upon request to 
Endowment Manager and CDFW. 

7.3.3. Transfer Long-term Endowment Funds. Permittee shall transfer the long-term 
endowment funds to the Endowment Manager upon CDFW approval of the 
Endowment Deposit Amount identified above. The approved Endowment 
Manager may pool the Endowment with other endowments for the operation, 
management, and protection of HM lands for local populations of the Covered 
Species but shall maintain separate accounting for each Endowment. The 
Endowment Manager shall, at all times, hold and manage the Endowment in 
compliance with this ITP, Government Code sections 65965-65968, as 
amended, and Probate Code sections 18501-18510, as amended. 

7.4. Reimburse CDFW. Permittee shall reimburse CDFW for all reasonable expenses 
incurred by CDFW such as transaction fees, account set-up fees, administrative fees, 
title and documentation review and related title transactions, expenses incurred from 
other state agency reviews, and overhead related to transfer of HM lands to CDFW.  

7.5. On-Site Habitat Restoration. Permittee shall submit an On-Site Restoration Plan a 
minimum of 60 days prior to the initiation of construction for CDFW approval. All 
plantings within the entire Project Area shall consist of regionally native species. The 
On-Site Restoration Plan success criteria shall be applicable to an area of at least 
10.09 acres of Covered Species habitat within the Project Area. All plantings will be 
subject to a survivorship criteria developed in consultation with CDFW and identified 
in the Habitat Restoration Plan. All Impacted areas shall be seeded with an erosion 
control seed mix consisting of regionally native species to the area approved in 
advance by CDFW. The seed mix shall also include native milkweed (Asclepias 
fascicularis) or other regionally native milkweed species approved in advance by 
CDFW. If seed mix fails, additional efforts shall be required. All irrigation systems 
shall be removed prior to CDFW final approval for on-site restoration. Failure to meet 
any of the success criteria noted in this condition shall result in additional seeding, 
plantings and years of additional monitoring until the success criteria are achieved as 
specified in this condition. All monitoring reports shall be submitted by December 31 
to CDFW for review and acceptance, until milestones are achieved. The monitoring 
reports shall include photographs from five pre-determined stations that illustrate 
before, during and after construction activity as well as the restoration efforts over 
the course of the agreed upon monitoring timeframe and any additional years of 
monitoring, as applicable. 

7.5.1. Invasive Species Removal. Invasive species removal and control specification 
shall be included in the Habitat Restoration Plan and shall focus on those 
invasive species rated as “High” by the California Invasive Plant Council 
(https://www.cal-ipc.org/plants/inventory/). Species removal shall occur over the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

242

https://www.cal-ipc.org/plants/inventory/


    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 20 

course of Covered Activities and throughout the 10.09-acre restoration area. At 
the end of the monitoring period noted in the Habitat Restoration Plan, the 
Permittee shall ensure that invasive species rated as “High” by the California 
Invasive Plant Council are maintained at 10% or less ground cover. 

7.5.2. Covered Species Prey Monitoring. Over the course of Covered Activities, the 
Permittee shall develop and implement a Covered Species prey monitoring plan 
to monitor prey items selected by the Covered Species and to determine the 
activity levels of those prey items in the temporarily impacted areas noted in the 
Project Impacts section of this ITP. 

8. Performance Security: 

The Permittee may proceed with Covered Activities only after the Permittee has ensured 
funding (Security) to complete any activity required by Condition of Approval 7 (Habitat 
Management Land Acquisition and Restoration) that has not been completed before 
Covered Activities begin. Permittee shall provide Security as follows:  

8.1. Security Amount. The Security shall be in the amount of $2,800,351.00. This amount 
is based on the cost estimates identified in Condition of Approval 7.1 (Cost 
Estimates) above. 

8.2. Security Form. The Security shall be in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit (see 
Attachment 3) or another form of Security approved in advance in writing by CDFW’s 
Office of the General Counsel.  

8.3. Security Timeline. The Security shall be provided to CDFW before Covered Activities 
begin or within 6 months after the effective date of this ITP, whichever occurs first. 

8.4. Security Holder. The Security shall be held by CDFW or in a manner approved in 
advance in writing by CDFW. 

8.5. Security Transmittal. If CDFW holds the Security, Permittee shall transmit it to CDFW 
with a completed Mitigation Payment Transmittal Form (see Attachment 4) or by way 
of an approved instrument such as escrow, irrevocable letter of credit, or other.  

8.6. Security Drawing. The Security shall allow CDFW to draw on the principal sum if 
CDFW, in its sole discretion, determines that the Permittee has failed to comply with 
the Conditions of Approval of this ITP. 

8.7. Security Release. The Security (or any portion of the Security then remaining) shall 
be released to the Permittee after CDFW has conducted an on-site inspection and 
received confirmation that all secured requirements have been satisfied, as 
evidenced by: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

243



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 21 

 Submission of Bill of Sale from a CDFW approved Bank; 

 Written documentation of the acquisition of the HM lands; 

 Copies of all executed and recorded conservation easements; 

 Written confirmation from the approved Endowment Manager of its receipt of 
the full Endowment; and 

 Timely submission of all required reports 

 All milestones are achieved as specified in Condition of Approval 7.5 

Even if Security is provided, the Permittee must complete the required acquisition, 
protection and transfer of all HM lands and record any required conservation easements 
no later than 18 months from the effective date of this ITP. CDFW may require the 
Permittee to provide additional HM lands and/or additional funding to ensure the impacts 
of the taking are minimized and fully mitigated, as required by law, if the Permittee does 
not complete these requirements within the specified timeframe.  

Amendment: 

This ITP may be amended as provided by California Code of Regulations, Title 14, section 
783.6, subdivision (c), and other applicable law. This ITP may be amended without the 
concurrence of the Permittee as required by law, including if CDFW determines that 
continued implementation of the Project as authorized under this ITP would jeopardize the 
continued existence of the Covered Species or where Project changes or changed biological 
conditions necessitate an ITP amendment to ensure that all Project-related impacts of the 
taking to the Covered Species are minimized and fully mitigated. 

Stop-Work Order: 

CDFW may issue Permittee a written stop-work order requiring Permittee to suspend any 
Covered Activity for an initial period of up to 25 days to prevent or remedy a violation of this 
ITP, including but not limited to the failure to comply with reporting or monitoring obligations, 
or to prevent the unauthorized take of any CESA endangered, threatened, or candidate 
species. Permittee shall stop work immediately as directed by CDFW upon receipt of any 
such stop-work order. Upon written notice to Permittee, CDFW may extend any stop-work 
order issued to Permittee for a period not to exceed 25 additional days. Suspension and 
revocation of this ITP shall be governed by California Code of Regulations, Title 14, section 
783.7, and any other applicable law. Neither the Designated Biologist nor CDFW shall be 
liable for any costs incurred in complying with stop-work orders. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

244



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 22 

Compliance with Other Laws: 

This ITP sets forth CDFW’s requirements for the Permittee to implement the Project pursuant 
to CESA. This ITP does not necessarily create an entitlement to proceed with the Project. 
Permittee is responsible for complying with all other applicable federal, state, and local law. 

Notices: 

The Permittee shall deliver a fully executed duplicate original ITP by registered first class mail 
or overnight delivery to the following address: 

Habitat Conservation Planning Branch 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
Attention: CESA Permitting Program 
Post Office Box 944209 
Sacramento, CA 94244-2090 

Alternatively, the Permittee shall email the digitally signed ITP to CESA@wildlife.ca.gov. 
Digital signatures shall comply with Government Code section 16.5. 

Written notices, reports and other communications relating to this ITP shall be delivered to 
CDFW by registered first class mail at the following address, or at addresses CDFW may 
subsequently provide the Permittee. Notices, reports, and other communications shall 
reference the Project name, Permittee, and ITP Number (2081-2021-020-03) in a cover letter 
and on any other associated documents. 

Original cover with attachment(s) to: 

Stacy Sherman, Acting Regional Manager 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife – Bay Delta Region 
2825 Cordelia Road, Suite 100 
Fairfield, CA 94534 
Telephone: (707) 428-2002 
R3CESA@wildlife.ca.gov  

and a copy to: 

Habitat Conservation Planning Branch 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
Attention: CESA Permitting Program 
Post Office Box 944209 
Sacramento, CA 94244-2090 
CESA@wildlife.ca.gov  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

245

mailto:CESA@wildlife.ca.gov
mailto:R3CESA@wildlife.ca.gov
mailto:CESA@wildlife.ca.gov


    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 23 

Unless Permittee is notified otherwise, CDFW’s Regional Representative for purposes of 
addressing issues that arise during implementation of this ITP is:  

Robert Stanley, Senior Environmental Scientist (Specialist) 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Bay Delta Region – 3  
2825 Cordelia Road, Suite 100, Fairfield, CA 94534 
Telephone (707) 339-6534 
Robert.Stanley@wildlife.ca.gov  

Compliance with CEQA:  

CDFW’s issuance of this ITP is subject to CEQA. CDFW is a responsible agency pursuant to 
CEQA with respect to this ITP because of prior environmental review of the Project by the 
lead agency, California Department of Transportation (See generally Pub. Resources Code, 
§§ 21067, 21069). The lead agency’s prior environmental review of the Project is set forth in 
Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the State Route 29/State Route 221 Soscol 
Junction Improvement Project, (SCH No. 2019099072) dated February 2020 that the 
California Department of Transportation certified on February 13, 2020. At the time the lead 
agency certified the MND and approved the Project it also adopted various mitigation 
measures for the Covered Species as conditions of Project approval. 

This ITP, along with CDFW’s related CEQA findings, which are available as a separate 
document, provide evidence of CDFW’s consideration of the lead agency’s MND for the 
Project and the environmental effects related to issuance of this ITP [CEQA Guidelines, § 
15096, subd. (f)]. CDFW finds that issuance of this ITP will not result in any previously 
undisclosed potentially significant effects on the environment or a substantial increase in the 
severity of any potentially significant environmental effects previously disclosed by the lead 
agency. Furthermore, to the extent the potential for such effects exists, CDFW finds 
adherence to and implementation of the Conditions of Project Approval adopted by the lead 
agency, and that adherence to and implementation of the Conditions of Approval imposed by 
CDFW through the issuance of this ITP, will avoid or reduce to below a level of significance 
any such potential effects. CDFW consequently finds that issuance of this ITP will not result 
in any significant, adverse impacts on the environment. 

Findings Pursuant to CESA: 

These findings are intended to document CDFW’s compliance with the specific findings 
requirements set forth in CESA and related regulations. [Fish and Game Code § 2081, subs. 
(b)-(c); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, §§ 783.4, subds, (a)-(b), 783.5, subd. (c)(2)]. 

CDFW finds based on substantial evidence in the ITP application for the Napa SR-29/SR-221 
Soscol Junction Improvement Project and consultations, and the administrative record of 
proceedings, that issuance of this ITP complies and is consistent with the criteria governing 
the issuance of ITPs pursuant to CESA: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

246

mailto:Robert.Stanley@wildlife.ca.gov


    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 24 

(1) Take of Covered Species as defined in this ITP will be incidental to the otherwise 
lawful activities covered under this ITP; 

(2) Impacts of the taking on Covered Species will be minimized and fully mitigated 
through the implementation of measures required by this ITP and as described in the 
MMRP. Measures include: (1) permanent habitat protection; (2) establishment of 
avoidance zones; (3) worker education; and (4) Monthly Compliance Reports. CDFW 
evaluated factors including an assessment of the importance of the habitat in the 
Project Area, the extent to which the Covered Activities will impact the habitat, and 
CDFW’s estimate of the acreage required to provide for adequate compensation. 
Based on this evaluation, CDFW determined that the purchase of one (1) Covered 
Species Nesting Credit, 17.34 acres of Covered Species Foraging Credits, on-site 
restoration of 10.09 acres of foraging habitat minimizes and fully mitigates the impacts 
of the taking caused by the Project; 

(3) The take avoidance and mitigation measures required pursuant to the conditions of 
this ITP and its attachments are roughly proportional in extent to the impacts of the 
taking authorized by this ITP; 

(4) The measures required by this ITP maintain Permittee’s objectives to the greatest 
extent possible;  

(5) All required measures are capable of successful implementation; 

(6) This ITP is consistent with any regulations adopted pursuant to Fish and Game Code 
sections 2112 and 2114; 

(7) Permittee has ensured adequate funding to implement the measures required by this 
ITP as well as for monitoring compliance with, and the effectiveness of, those 
measures for the Project; and 

(8) Issuance of this ITP will not jeopardize the continued existence of the Covered 
Species based on the best scientific and other information reasonably available, and 
this finding includes consideration of the species’ capability to survive and reproduce, 
and any adverse impacts of the taking on those abilities in light of (1) known 
population trends; (2) known threats to the species; and (3) reasonably foreseeable 
impacts on the species from other related Projects and activities. Moreover, CDFW’s 
finding is based, in part, on CDFW’s express authority to amend the terms and 
conditions of this ITP without concurrence of the Permittee as necessary to avoid 
jeopardy and as required by law. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

247



    
Incidental Take Permit 
No. 2081-2021-020-03 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
STATE ROUTE 29/STATE ROUTE 221 SOSCOL JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; EA 04-28120 

Page 25 

Attachments:   

 FIGURE 1   Project Location Map 

 FIGURE 2   Staging, Phasing and Timeline Plan  

 FIGURE 3   Project Habitat Impacts Map  

 FIGURE 4   Existing Isolux Lighting Analysis Map 

 FIGURE 5   Proposed Isolux Lighting Analysis Map  

 FIGURE 6   Covered Species Nest Location and Lighting Map  

 FIGURE 7   95% Engineered Design Plans for Soscol Junction 

ATTACHMENT 1  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  

 ATTACHMENT 2A, 2B Habitat Management Lands Checklist; Proposed Lands for 
Acquisition Form 

 ATTACHMENT 3  Letter of Credit Form 

 ATTACHMENT 4  Mitigation Payment Transmittal Form 

ISSUED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE 

on  . 

  
Stacy Sherman, Acting Regional Manager 
Bay Delta Region 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

The undersigned: (1) warrants that he or she is acting as a duly authorized representative of 
the Permittee, (2) acknowledges receipt of this ITP, and (3) agrees on behalf of the Permittee 
to comply with all terms and conditions. 

By: Date:  

Printed Name: Title:  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

8/20/2021

Regional Project ManagerRui Gao

8/21/2021

248



FIGURE 1
Project Location
State Route 29/State Route 221 Soscol 
Junction Improvement Project
EA 28120, 04-NAPA-29 PM R5.6/R6.7; 
221 PM 0.0/0.4
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP\MAR\FIG1_PROJECT_LOCATION_8X11_EA28120.MXD  GMOON 3/8/2021 1:59:47 PM

Suscol Creek

Na
pa

 R
ive

r

·|}þ12

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

·|}þ12

$

LEGEND
Project Footprint (42.33 acre)

Highways/Major Roads
Lakes, Ponds, Rivers and
Streams

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the
GIS User Community
Sources: Esri, USGS, NOAA
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC,
USGS, NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA,
increment P Corp.

0 0.25 0.5

Miles

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

249



DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

250



STAGE 1: FEB, 2022 - MAY, 2022
MAP 1 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

251



STAGE 1: FEB, 2022 - MAY, 2022
MAP 2 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Soscol Creek Rd

Soscol Creek Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

S
u

s
c
o
l

C
re

ek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Cr eek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Temporary Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

252



STAGE 1: FEB, 2022 - MAY, 2022
MAP 3 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

N
a

p
a

 V
a

ll
e

y
N

a
p

a
 V

a
ll

e
y

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

Soscol Ferry Rd

Soscol Ferry Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

ScenicScenic

OverlookOverlook

Soscol
Creek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Temporary Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

253



STAGE 2: MAY, 2022 - APR, 2023
MAP 1 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Revegitation

Temporary Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

254



STAGE 2: MAY, 2022 - APR, 2023
MAP 2 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Soscol Creek Rd

Soscol Creek Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

S
u

s
c
o
l

C
re

ek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Cr eek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Revegitation

Temporary Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland)

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

255



STAGE 2: MAY, 2022 - APR, 2023
MAP 3 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

N
a

p
a

 V
a

ll
e

y
N

a
p

a
 V

a
ll

e
y

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

Soscol Ferry Rd

Soscol Ferry Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

ScenicScenic

OverlookOverlook

Soscol
Creek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Revegitation

Temporary Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland)

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

256



STAGE 3: APR, 2023 - JUL, 2023
MAP 1 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

257



STAGE 3: APR, 2023 - JUL, 2023
MAP 2 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Soscol Creek Rd

Soscol Creek Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

S
u

s
c
o
l

C
re

ek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Cr eek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

258



STAGE 3: APR, 2023 - JUL, 2023
MAP 3 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

N
a

p
a

 V
a

ll
e

y
N

a
p

a
 V

a
ll

e
y

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

Soscol Ferry Rd

Soscol Ferry Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

ScenicScenic

OverlookOverlook

Soscol
Creek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

259



STAGE 4: JUL, 2023 - AUG, 2023
MAP 1 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

260



STAGE 4: JUL, 2023 - AUG, 2023
MAP 2 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Soscol Creek Rd

Soscol Creek Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

S
u

s
c
o
l

C
re

ek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Cr eek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

261



STAGE 4: JUL, 2023 - AUG, 2023
MAP 3 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

N
a

p
a

 V
a

ll
e

y
N

a
p

a
 V

a
ll

e
y

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

Soscol Ferry Rd

Soscol Ferry Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

ScenicScenic

OverlookOverlook

Soscol
Creek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

262



STAGE 5: AUG, 2023 - JAN, 2024
MAP 1 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Revegitation

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

263



STAGE 5: AUG, 2023 - JAN, 2024
MAP 2 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Soscol Creek Rd

Soscol Creek Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

S
u

s
c
o
l

C
re

ek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Cr eek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Revegitation

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

264



STAGE 5: AUG, 2023 - JAN, 2024
MAP 3 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

N
a

p
a

 V
a

ll
e

y
N

a
p

a
 V

a
ll

e
y

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

Soscol Ferry Rd

Soscol Ferry Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

ScenicScenic

OverlookOverlook

Soscol
Creek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Revegitation

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

265



STAGE 6: JAN, 2024 - FEB, 2024
MAP 1 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

266



STAGE 6: JAN, 2024 - FEB, 2024
MAP 2 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

S
o
sco

l C
reek R

d

Soscol Creek Rd

Soscol Creek Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

S
u

s
c
o
l

C
re

ek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Cr eek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

267



STAGE 6: JAN, 2024 - FEB, 2024
MAP 3 OF 3
PROJECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION
State Route 29/221 Soscol Junction

Improvement Project
EA 28120, NAP-29 Post Mile 5.12 / 7.05
NAP-221 Post Mile 0 / 0.55
Napa County, California

 \\DC1VS01\GISPROJ\C\CALTRANS\28120_NAP29_SOSCOL_INTERCHANGE\GIS\MAPS\REPORT\2021\ITP_RESPONSE\JUL\FIGX_HABITAT_IMPACTS_STAGES.MXD  GMOON 7/9/2021 8:41:37 AM

·|}þ29

·|}þ221

Soscol Ferry RdSoscol Ferry Rd

N
a

p
a

 V
a

ll
e

y
N

a
p

a
 V

a
ll

e
y

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

C
o

r p
o

r a
t e

 D
r

D
evlin R

d

D
evlin R

d

Soscol Ferry Rd

Soscol Ferry Rd

Meritage ResortMeritage Resort

and Spaand Spa

ScenicScenic

OverlookOverlook

Soscol
Creek

Suscol Creek

Sus col Creek

0 250 500

Feet

LEGEND

Biological Study Area (87.87

Project Footprint (41.23 acres)

Existing Pavement (13.28 acres)

Proposed Paved Surfaces (18.35 acres)

Caltrans Right of Way

$

Service Layer Credits:
Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS
User Community
National Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS,
NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Habitat Impacts within the Project
Footprint

Permanent Impacts

Annual Grassland

Annual Grassland - Highly Degraded

Mixed Oak Woodland

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

268



DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

269



DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

270



DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

271



DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

272



STATE HIGHWAY

PM 4.7

Begin Work

PM 0.6

End Work
ROUTE 2

21

R
O

U
T

E
 
2
9

R
O

U
T

E
 
1
2

S
O

S
C

O
L
 

F
E

R
R

Y
 

R
d

S
O
S
C

O
L
 
C
R
E
E

K
 
R
d

N
 

K
E
L
L

Y
 
R
d

A
I
R

P
O

R
T
 

B
l
v
d

Sta "G1" 67+68 PM 5.5

BEGIN CONSTRUCTION (ROUTE 29)

Sta "A1" 44+38 PM 0.0

BEGIN CONSTRUCTION (ROUTE 221)

Sta "G1" 131+27 PM R6.7

END CONSTRUCTION (ROUTE 29)

ELECTRICAL PLANS, DETAILS, AND QUANTITIES

EROSION CONTROL PLANS AND QUANTITIES

PLANTING LEGEND, PLANS, DETAILS, AND QUANTITIES

IRRIGATION SCHEDULE, PLANS, DETAILS, AND QUANTITIES

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES

SIGN PLANS, DETAILS, AND QUANTITIES

PAVEMENT DELINEATION PLANS, DETAILS, AND QUANTITIES

DETOUR PLANS AND QUANTITIES

TRAFFIC HANDLING PLANS, DETAILS, AND QUANTITIES

STAGE CONSTRUCTION PLANS

MOTORIST INFORMATION PLANS

CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGNS

UTILITY PLANS, DETAILS AND QUANTITIES

DRAINAGE PLANS, PROFILES, DETAILS, AND QUANTITIES

CONTOUR GRADING

WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN AND DETAILS

TEMPORARY WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PLANS

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

PROFILE AND SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAMS

LAYOUTS

PROJECT CONTROL AND MONUMENTATION

KEY MAP AND LINE INDEX

TYPICAL CROSS SECTIONS

TITLE SHEET AND LOCATION MAP

 

DESCRIPTION

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 

W
A

Y

N
A

P
A
 

V
A

L
L

E
Y
 

04 Nap 29, 221
0.0/0.2

5.5/R6.7,
1 --

LOCATION CODE

x

x

x

x

x

L
A

S
T

 R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N

0
0

-
0

0
-
0

0

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R

SHEET

DEL NORTE
SISKIYOU MODOC

HUMBOLDT

TRINITY SHASTA LASSEN

TEHAMA

MENDOCINO
GLENN BUTTE

PLUMAS

SIERRA

NEVADA

PLACER
Y

U
B

A
COLUSA

LAKE

YOLO

NAPASONOMA

EL DORADO

MARIN

AMADOR
ALPINE

C
A
L

A
V
E
R

A
S

CONTRA
COSTA

TUOLUMNE
MONO

SANTA
CLARA

SANTA CRUZ

S
T

A
N
IS

L
A

U
S

MARIPOSA

MERCED

M
A

D
E
R

A

FRESNO

MONTEREY

INYO

TULARE

KINGS

OBISPO KERN

SANTA

BARBARA

VENTURA

LOS ANGELES

SAN BERNARDINO

RIVERSIDE

IMPERIALSAN DIEGO

ORANGE

SOLANO

ALAMEDA

M
E

N
T

O

S
A

C
R

A
-

J
O

A
Q

U
INS

A
N

SAN

BENITO

SAN 

LUIS

S
U

T
T

E
R

SAN FRANCISCO

SAN MATEO

Dist COUNTY
TOTAL

SHEETSTOTAL PROJECT

LOCATION MAP

POST MILES
No.

INDEX OF PLANS

PROJECT PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION ON

T
I
M

E
 P

L
O

T
T

E
D

 =
>

D
A

T
E

 P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 =

>

1
0
:
1
8

1
0
-
M

A
R

-
2
0
2
1

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

No.

Exp.

CIVIL

PROJECT ENGINEER

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

DATE

COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ACCURACY OR 

OFFICERS OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE

THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ITS

CONTRACT No.

PROJECT ID

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE

0400000769

04-281204

UNIT
0400000769ab001.dgn

mpitcockUSERNAME =>

DGN FILE =>

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 2 31
CALTRANS WEB SITE IS: HTTP//WWW.DOT.CA.GOV/ 0741 0400007691

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL POSSESS THE CLASS (OR CLASSES)

OF LICENSE AS SPECIFIED IN THE "NOTICE TO BIDDERS."

TO BE SUPPLEMENTED BY STANDARD PLANS DATED 2018

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T

 D
E

S
IG

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

BORDER LAST REVISED 8/1/2016

IN THE NOTICE TO BIDDERS AND SPECIAL PROVIVIONS BOOK.

THE STANDARD PLANS LIST APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT IS INCLUDED 

ROUTE 29/221 SEPARATION STRUCTURE, Br No. 21-0119

SUSCOL CREEK BRIDGE WIDENING, Br No. 21-0071L

STRUCTURE PLANS

NO SCALE

ROSEVILLE, CA 95678

943 RESERVE Dr

GHD Inc.

NAPA, CA 94559

625 BURNELL STREET

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

1
2
0

1
1
0

1
0
0

9
5

9
0

8
5

8
0

7
0

Sta "A1" 65+96 PM 0.2

END CONSTRUCTION (ROUTE 221)

60

50

ROUTE 29 TO ROUTE 29

ON ROUTE 221 FROM 0.2 MILES NORTH OF

TO 0.5 MILE NORTH OF ROUTE 221 AND

ON ROUTE 29 FROM 0.7 MILE SOUTH

IN NAPA COUNTY NEAR NAPA

D
E

V
L
IN
 
R
d

"G
1
"

"A1"

FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY, NOT ANDERSON

HEATHER A.

85522

9-30-22

T
o
 

C
a
l
i
s
t
o
g
a

To Napa

NAPA COUNTY

To Vallej
o

Sta "A1" 41+00

Begin Work

PM 12.8

End Work

Br No 21-0071L

BRIDGE WIDENING

SUSCOL CREEK 

S
u
s
c
o
l
 
C
r
e
e
k

FIFTH Ave U/C

CORPORATE Dr

NAPA VALLEY

FIFTH Ave U/C

SHEET No.

Br No 21-O119

SEPARATION

ROUTE 221 

Sta "G1" 101+68.94

Sta "A1" 50+64.83=

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

273



Attachment 1 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE 
MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM (MMRP) 

CALIFORNIA ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT 

INCIDENTAL TAKE PERMIT NO. 2081-2021-020-03 

PERMITTEE: California Department of Transportation 

PROJECT:  State Route 29/State Route 221 Soscol Junction Improvement 
Project; EA 04-21120 

PURPOSE OF THE MMRP 
The purpose of the MMRP is to ensure that the impact minimization and mitigation 
measures required by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) for the 
above-referenced Project are properly implemented, and thereby to ensure compliance 
with section 2081(b) of the Fish and Game Code and section 21081.6 of the Public 
Resources Code. A table summarizing the mitigation measures required by CDFW is 
attached. This table is a tool for use in monitoring and reporting on implementation of 
mitigation measures, but the descriptions in the table do not supersede the mitigation 
measures set forth in the California Incidental Take Permit (ITP) and in attachments to 
the ITP, and the omission of a permit requirement from the attached table does not 
relieve the Permittee of the obligation to ensure the requirement is performed. 

OBLIGATIONS OF PERMITTEE 
Mitigation measures must be implemented within the time periods indicated in the table 
that appears below. Permittee has the primary responsibility for monitoring compliance 
with all mitigation measures and for reporting to CDFW on the progress in implementing 
those measures. These monitoring and reporting requirements are set forth in the ITP 
itself and are summarized at the front of the attached table. 

VERIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE, EFFECTIVENESS 
CDFW may, at its sole discretion, verify compliance with any mitigation measure or 
independently assess the effectiveness of any mitigation measure.  

TABLE OF MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following items are identified for each mitigation measure: Mitigation Measure, 
Source, Implementation Schedule, Responsible Party, and Status/Date/Initials. The 
Mitigation Measure column summarizes the mitigation requirements of the ITP. The 
Source column identifies the ITP condition that sets forth the mitigation measure. The 
Implementation Schedule column shows the date or phase when each mitigation 
measure will be implemented. The Responsible Party column identifies the person or 
agency that is primarily responsible for implementing the mitigation measure. The 
Status/Date/Initials column shall be completed by the Permittee during preparation of 
each Status Report and the Final Mitigation Report, and must identify the 
implementation status of each mitigation measure, the date that status was determined, 
and the initials of the person determining the status.

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

274



1 

 Mitigation Measure Source 
Implementation 
Schedule 

Responsible 
Party 

Status / Date / Initials 

 BEFORE DISTURBING SOIL OR VEGETATION     

1 Designated Representative. Before starting Covered Activities, Permittee shall designate a 
representative (Designated Representative) responsible for communications with CDFW and 
overseeing compliance with this ITP. Permittee shall notify CDFW in writing before starting 
Covered Activities of the Designated Representative’s name, business address, and contact 
information, and shall notify CDFW in writing if a substitute Designated Representative is 
selected or identified at any time during the term of this ITP. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.1 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Entire Project 

Permittee  

2 Designated Biologist. Permittee shall submit to CDFW in writing the name, qualifications, 
business address, and contact information of a biological monitor (Designated Biologist) at least 
30 days before starting Covered Activities. Permittee shall ensure that the Designated Biologist 
is knowledgeable and experienced in the biology, natural history and the collecting and handling 
of the Covered Species. The Designated Biologist shall be responsible for monitoring Covered 
Activities to help minimize and fully mitigate or avoid the incidental take of individual Covered 
Species and to minimize disturbance of Covered Species’ habitat. Permittee shall obtain CDFW 
approval of the Designated Biologist in writing before starting Covered Activities, and shall also 
obtain approval in advance in writing if the Designated Biologist must be changed. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.2 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities 

Permittee  

3 Designated Biologist Authority. To ensure compliance with the Conditions of Approval of this 
ITP, the Designated Biologist shall have authority to immediately stop any activity, in 
consultation with the Resident Engineer, that does not comply with this ITP, and/or to order any 
reasonable measure to avoid the unauthorized take of an individual of the Covered Species.  

Permittee shall accommodate the Designated Biologist in the performance of his/her duties. If 
the Designated Biologist is unable to comply with the ITP due to a conflict with Project 
construction, then the Designated Biologist shall notify the CDFW representative immediately. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.3 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Entire Project 

Permittee  

4 Education Program. Permittee shall conduct an education program for all persons employed or 
otherwise working in the Project Area before performing any work. The program shall consist of 
a presentation from the Designated Biologist that includes a discussion of the biology and 
general behavior of the Covered Species, information about the distribution and habitat needs 
of the Covered Species, sensitivity of the Covered Species to human activities, its status 
pursuant to CESA including legal protection, recovery efforts, penalties for violations and 
Project-specific protective measures described in this ITP. Permittee shall provide interpretation 
for non-English speaking workers, and the same instruction shall be provided to any new 
workers before they are authorized to perform work in the Project Area. Permittee shall prepare 
and distribute wallet-sized cards or a fact sheet handout containing this information for workers 
to carry in the Project Area. Upon completion of the program, employees shall sign a form 
stating they attended the program and understand all protection measures. This training shall 
be repeated at least once annually for long-term and/or permanent employees that will be 
conducting work in the Project Area. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.4 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Entire Project 

Permittee  

5 Design Plan Review. All final design plan sets shall be submitted to CDFW a minimum of 30 
days prior to the initiation of construction for written review and acceptance. Work may not 
proceed without acceptance in writing on the final design plan set from CDFW. At the discretion 
of CDFW, any proposed design plan modifications may require an amendment to this Incidental 
Take Permit. Design plans may be subject to change dependent upon submission and 
consultation with CDFW. 

Condition 
# 4.5 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Entire Project 

Permittee  

6 Delineation of Property Boundaries. Before starting Covered Activities along each part of the 
route in active construction, Permittee shall clearly delineate the boundaries of the Project Area 
with fencing, stakes, or flags and discuss the boundaries in the Education Program with all on-

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.10 

Before Commencing 
Covered Activities 

Permittee  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

275



2 

 Mitigation Measure Source 
Implementation 
Schedule 

Responsible 
Party 

Status / Date / Initials 

sit personnel. Permittee shall restrict all Covered Activities to within the fenced, staked, or 
flagged areas. Permittee shall maintain all fencing, stakes, and flags until the completion of 
Covered Activities in that area. 

7 Delineation of Habitat. Before the initiation of Covered Activities the Permittee shall clearly 
delineate habitat of the Covered Species within the Project Area beyond those areas within the 
immediate project constriction footprint with posted signs, posting stakes, flags, and/or rope or 
cord, and place fencing as necessary to minimize the disturbance of Covered Species’ nesting 
activities. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.11 

Before Commencing 
Covered Activities  

Permittee  

8 Notification before Commencement. The Designated Representative shall notify CDFW 5 
calendar days before starting Covered Activities and shall document compliance with all pre-
Project Conditions of Approval before starting Covered Activities. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 5.1 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Entire Project 

Permittee  

9 Pre-Construction Surveys. Prior to initiating Covered Activities and at the onset of nesting 
season (beginning in March) during each year the Project is in active construction, the 
Designated Biologist(s) shall conduct reconnaissance surveys to identify all potential nesting 
habitat within 0.25 miles of the Project Area and identify  

any potential Covered Species active nests. Surveys shall follow methods outlined in the 
Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Surveys in California’s 
Central Valley (https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols#377281284-birds). 
The survey shall include all potential staging areas, storage areas, stockpile areas, and vehicle 
access routes. All results shall be submitted to CDFW a minimum of 7 days prior to initiating 
Covered Activities for review. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 6.1 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Entire Project 

Permittee  

10 Habitat Management Land Acquisition and Restoration: CDFW has determined that permanent 
protection and perpetual management of compensatory habitat is necessary and required 
pursuant to CESA to fully mitigate Project-related impacts of the taking on the Covered Species 
that will result with implementation of the Covered Activities. This determination is based on 
factors including an assessment of the importance of the habitat in the Project Area, the extent 
to which the Covered Activities will impact the habitat, and CDFW’s estimate of the acreage 
required to provide for adequate compensation. 

To meet this requirement, the Permittee shall purchase one (1) Covered Species credit for 
suitable nesting habitat from a CDFW-approved mitigation or conservation bank (Condition of 
Approval 7.2) to cover the loss or abandonment of one Covered Species nest. The Permittee 
shall also purchase 17.34 acres of Covered Species credit for suitable foraging habitat from a 
CDFW-approved mitigation or conservation bank (Condition of Approval 7.2). OR shall provide 
for both the permanent protection and management of 17.34 acres of Habitat Management 
(HM) lands, pursuant to Condition of Approval 7.3 below and the calculation and deposit of the 
management funds pursuant to Condition of Approval 7.4 below. Compensatory habitat shall 
include upland foraging and dispersal habitat for Covered Species through preservation, 
restoration, enhancement, and/or creation of habitat that is the same or better quality as upland 
habitat that will be impacted. Permanent protection and funding for perpetual management of 
compensatory habitat must be complete before starting Covered Activities, or within 18 months 
of the effective date of this ITP if Security is provided pursuant to Condition of Approval 8 below 
for all uncompleted obligations. The Permittee shall also restore on-site 10.09 acres of 
temporarily impacted Covered Species habitat pursuant to Condition of Approval 7.5 below. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 7 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Or within 18 months of 
effective date of ITP if 
CDFW-approved 
security is provided 

Permittee  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

276



3 

 Mitigation Measure Source 
Implementation 
Schedule 

Responsible 
Party 

Status / Date / Initials 

11 Cost Estimates. CDFW has estimated the cost of purchasing credits from a from a CDFW-
approved mitigation or conservation bank and restoration of temporarily disturbed habitat as 
follows: 

Purchase of one Covered Species nesting habitat credits identified in Condition of Approval 7, 
estimated at $160,000.00; 

Purchase of 17.34 credits of Covered Species foraging habitat credit identified in Condition of 
Approval 7, estimated at $150,000.00/acre; $2,601,000.00; 

Restoration of on-site temporary effects to Covered Species habitat as described in Condition of 
Approval 7.5 (Habitat Restoration), calculated at $3,900.00/acre for 10.09 acres: $39,351.00. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 7.1 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Or within 18 months of 
effective date of ITP if 
CDFW-approved 
security is provided 

Permittee  

12 Habitat Acquisition and Protection. To provide for the acquisition and perpetual protection and 
management of the HM lands, the Permittee shall: 

Fee Title/Conservation Easement. Transfer fee title to the HM lands to CDFW pursuant to terms 
approved in writing by CDFW. Alternatively, CDFW, in its sole discretion, may authorize a 
governmental entity, special district, non-profit organization, for-profit entity, person, or another 
entity to hold title to and manage the property provided that the district, organization, entity, or 
person meets the requirements of Government Code sections 65965-65968, as amended. If 
CDFW does not hold fee title to the HM lands, CDFW shall act as grantee for a conservation 
easement over the HM lands or shall, in its sole discretion, approve a non-profit entity, public 
agency, or Native American tribe to act as grantee for a conservation easement over the HM 
lands provided that the entity, agency, or tribe meets the requirements of Civil Code section 
815.3. If CDFW does not hold the conservation easement, CDFW shall be expressly named in 
the conservation easement as a third-party beneficiary. The Permittee shall obtain CDFW 
written approval of any conservation easement before its execution or recordation. No 
conservation easement shall be approved by CDFW unless it complies with Government Code 
sections 65965-65968, as amended and includes provisions expressly addressing Government 
Code sections 65966(j) and 65967(e); 

HM Lands Approval. Obtain CDFW written approval of the HM lands before acquisition and/or 
transfer of the land by submitting, at least three months before acquisition and/or transfer of the 
HM lands, a formal Proposed Lands for Acquisition Form (see Attachment 2B) identifying the 
land to be purchased or property interest conveyed to an approved entity as mitigation for the 
Project’s impacts on Covered Species; 

HM Lands Documentation. Provide a recent preliminary title report, initial hazardous materials 
survey report, and other necessary documents (see Attachment 2A). All documents conveying 
the HM lands and all conditions of title are subject to the approval of CDFW, and if applicable, 
the Wildlife Conservation Board and the Department of General Services; 

Land Manager. Designate both an interim and long-term land manager approved by CDFW. 
The interim and long-term land managers may, but need not, be the same. The interim and/or 
long-term land managers may be the landowner or another party. Documents related to land 
management shall identify both the interim and long-term land managers. Permittee shall notify 
CDFW of any subsequent changes in the land manager within 30 days of the change. If CDFW 
will hold fee title to the mitigation land, CDFW will also act as both the interim and long-term 
land manager unless otherwise specified. 

Start-up Activities. Provide for the implementation of start-up activities, including the initial site 
protection and enhancement of HM lands, once the HM lands have been approved by CDFW. 
Start-up activities include, at a minimum: (1) preparing a final management plan for CDFW 
approval (see https://wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Planning/Banking); (2) conducting a baseline 
biological assessment and land survey report within four months of recording or transfer; (3) 

ITP 
Condition 
# 7.2 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Or within 18 months of 
effective date of ITP if 
CDFW-approved 
security is provided 

Permittee  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

277



4 

 Mitigation Measure Source 
Implementation 
Schedule 

Responsible 
Party 

Status / Date / Initials 

developing and transferring Geographic Information Systems (GIS) data if applicable; (4) 
establishing initial fencing; (5) conducting litter removal; (6) conducting initial habitat restoration 
or enhancement, if applicable; and (7) installing signage; 

Interim Management (Initial and Capital). Provide for the interim management of the HM lands. 
The Permittee shall ensure that the interim land manager implements the interim management 
of the HM lands as described in the final management plan and conservation easement 
approved by CDFW. The interim management period shall be a minimum of three years from 
the date of HM land acquisition and protection and full funding of the Endowment and includes 
expected management following start-up activities. Interim management period activities 
described in the final management plan shall include fence repair, continuing trash removal, site 
monitoring, and vegetation and invasive species management, and restoration of disturbed 
habitat. Permittee shall either (1) provide a security to CDFW for the minimum of three years of 
interim management that the land owner, Permittee, or land manager agrees to manage and 
pay for at their own expense, (2) establish an escrow account with written instructions approved 
in advance in writing by CDFW to pay the land manager annually in advance, or (3) establish a 
short-term enhancement account with CDFW or a CDFW-approved entity for payment to the 
land manager. 

13 Endowment Fund. The Permittee shall ensure that the HM lands are perpetually managed, 
maintained, and monitored by the long-term land manager as described in this ITP, the 
conservation easement, and the final management plan approved by CDFW. After obtaining 
CDFW approval of the HM lands, Permittee shall provide long-term management funding for the 
perpetual management of the HM lands by establishing a long-term management fund 
(Endowment). The Endowment is a sum of money, held in a CDFW-approved fund that 
provides funds for the perpetual management, maintenance, monitoring, and other activities on 
the HM lands consistent with the management plan(s) required by Condition of Approval 7.2.5 
(Start Up Activities). Endowment as used in this ITP shall refer to the endowment deposit and 
all interest, dividends, other earnings, additions and appreciation thereon. The Endowment shall 
be governed by this ITP, Government Code sections 65965-65968, as amended, and Probate 
Code sections 18501-18510, as amended. 

After the interim management period, Permittee shall ensure that the designated long-term land 
manager implements the management and monitoring of the HM lands according to the final 
management plan. The long-term land manager shall be obligated to manage and monitor the 
HM lands in perpetuity to preserve their conservation values in accordance with this ITP, the 
conservation easement, and the final management plan. Such activities shall be funded through 
the Endowment.  

Identify an Endowment Manager. The Endowment shall be held by the Endowment Manager, 
which shall be either CDFW or another entity qualified pursuant to Government Code sections 
65965-65968, as amended. Permittee shall submit to CDFW a written proposal that includes: (i) 
the name of the proposed Endowment Manager; (ii) whether the proposed Endowment 
Manager is a governmental entity, special district, nonprofit organization, community foundation, 
or congressionally chartered foundation; (iii) whether the proposed Endowment Manager holds 
the property or an interest in the property for conservation purposes as required by Government 
Code section 65968(b)(1) or, in the alternative, the basis for finding that the Project qualifies for 
an exception pursuant to Government Code section 65968(b)(2); and (iv) a copy of the 
proposed Endowment Manager’s certification pursuant to Government Code section 65968(e). 
Within thirty days of CDFW’s receipt of Permittee’s written proposal, CDFW shall inform 
Permittee in writing if it determines the proposal does not satisfy the requirements of Fish and 
Game Code section 2081(b)(4) and, if so, shall provide Permittee with a written explanation of 
the reasons for its determination. If CDFW does not provide Permittee with a written 

ITP 
Condition 
# 7.3 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Or within 18 months of 
effective date of ITP if 
CDFW-approved 
security is provided 

Permittee  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

278



5 

 Mitigation Measure Source 
Implementation 
Schedule 

Responsible 
Party 

Status / Date / Initials 

determination within the thirty-day period, the proposal shall be deemed consistent with Section 
2081(b)(4).; 

Calculate the Endowment Funds Deposit. After obtaining CDFW written approval of the HM 
lands, long-term management plan, and Endowment Manager, Permittee shall prepare a 
Property Analysis Record (PAR) or PAR-equivalent analysis (hereinafter “PAR”) to calculate the 
amount of funding necessary to ensure the long-term management of the HM lands 
(Endowment Deposit Amount). The Permittee shall submit to CDFW for review and approval the 
results of the PAR before transferring funds to the Endowment Manager.  

Capitalization Rate and Fees. Permittee shall obtain the capitalization rate from the selected 
Endowment Manager for use in calculating the PAR and adjust for any additional administrative, 
periodic, or annual fees. 

Endowment Buffers/Assumptions. Permittee shall include in PAR assumptions the following 
buffers for endowment establishment and use that will substantially ensure long-term viability 
and security of the Endowment: 

10 Percent Contingency. A 10 percent contingency shall be added to each endowment 
calculation to hedge against underestimation of the fund, unanticipated expenditures, inflation, 
or catastrophic events. 

Three Years Delayed Spending. The endowment shall be established assuming spending will 
not occur for the first three years after full funding.  

Non-annualized Expenses. For all large capital expenses to occur periodically but not annually 
such as fence replacement or well replacement, payments shall be withheld from the annual 
disbursement until the year of anticipated need or upon request to Endowment Manager and 
CDFW. 

Transfer Long-term Endowment Funds. Permittee shall transfer the long-term endowment funds 
to the Endowment Manager upon CDFW approval of the Endowment Deposit Amount identified 
above. The approved Endowment Manager may pool the Endowment with other endowments 
for the operation, management, and protection of HM lands for local populations of the Covered 
Species but shall maintain separate accounting for each Endowment. The Endowment Manager 
shall, at all times, hold and manage the Endowment in compliance with this ITP, Government 
Code sections 65965-65968, as amended, and Probate Code sections 18501-18510, as 
amended. 

14 Reimburse CDFW. Permittee shall reimburse CDFW for all reasonable expenses incurred by 
CDFW such as transaction fees, account set-up fees, administrative fees, title and 
documentation review and related title transactions, expenses incurred from other state agency 
reviews, and overhead related to transfer of HM lands to CDFW. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 7.4 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Or within 18 months of 
effective date of ITP if 
CDFW-approved 
security is provided 

Permittee  

15 On-Site Habitat Restoration. Permittee shall submit an On-Site Restoration Plan a minimum of 
60 days prior to the initiation of construction for CDFW approval. All plantings within the entire 
Project Area shall consist of regionally native species. The On-Site Restoration Plan success 
criteria shall be applicable to an area of at least 10.09 acres of Covered Species habitat within 
the Project Area. All plantings will be subject to a survivorship criteria developed in consultation 
with CDFW and identified in the Habitat Restoration Plan. All Impacted areas shall be seeded 
with an erosion control seed mix consisting of regionally native species to the area approved in 
advance by CDFW. The seed mix shall also include native milkweed (Asclepias fascicularis) or 
other regionally native milkweed species approved in advance by CDFW. If seed mix fails, 

ITP 
Condition 
# 7.5 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Or within 18 months of 
effective date of ITP if 
CDFW-approved 
security is provided 

Permittee  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

279



6 

 Mitigation Measure Source 
Implementation 
Schedule 

Responsible 
Party 

Status / Date / Initials 

additional efforts shall be required¬. All irrigation systems shall be removed prior to CDFW final 
approval for on-site restoration. Failure to meet any of the success criteria noted in this 
condition shall result in additional seeding, plantings and years of additional monitoring until the 
success criteria are achieved as specified in this condition. All monitoring reports shall be 
submitted by December 31 to CDFW for review and acceptance, until milestones are achieved. 
The monitoring reports shall include photographs from five pre-determined stations that 
illustrate before, during and after construction activity as well as the restoration efforts over the 
course of the agreed upon monitoring timeframe and any additional years of monitoring, as 
applicable. 

Invasive Species Removal. Invasive species removal and control specification shall be included 
in the Habitat Restoration Plan and shall focus on those invasive species rated as “High” by the 
California Invasive Plant Council (https://www.cal-ipc.org/plants/inventory/). Species removal 
shall occur over the course of Covered Activities and throughout the 10.09-acre restoration 
area. At the end of the monitoring period noted in the Habitat Restoration Plan, the Permittee 
shall ensure that invasive species rated as “High” by the California Invasive Plant Council are 
maintained at 10% or less ground cover. 

Covered Species Prey Monitoring. Over the course of Covered Activities, the Permittee shall 
develop and implement a Covered Species prey monitoring plan to monitor prey items selected 
by the Covered Species and to determine the activity levels of those prey items in the 
temporarily impacted areas noted in the Project Impacts section of this ITP. 

16 The Permittee may proceed with Covered Activities only after the Permittee has ensured 
funding (Security) to complete any activity required by Condition of Approval 7 (Habitat 
Management Land Acquisition and Restoration) that has not been completed before Covered 
Activities begin. Permittee shall provide Security as follows:  

Security Amount. The Security shall be in the amount of $2,800,351.00. This amount is based 
on the cost estimates identified in Condition of Approval 7.1 (Cost Estimates) above. 

Security Form. The Security shall be in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit (see 
Attachment 3) or another form of Security approved in advance in writing by CDFW’s Office of 
the General Counsel.  

Security Timeline. The Security shall be provided to CDFW before Covered Activities begin or 
within 6 months after the effective date of this ITP, whichever occurs first. 

Security Holder. The Security shall be held by CDFW or in a manner approved in advance in 
writing by CDFW. 

Security Transmittal. If CDFW holds the Security, Permittee shall transmit it to CDFW with a 
completed Mitigation Payment Transmittal Form (see Attachment 4) or by way of an approved 
instrument such as escrow, irrevocable letter of credit, or other.  

Security Drawing. The Security shall allow CDFW to draw on the principal sum if CDFW, in its 
sole discretion, determines that the Permittee has failed to comply with the Conditions of 
Approval of this ITP. 

Security Release. The Security (or any portion of the Security then remaining) shall be released 
to the Permittee after CDFW has conducted an on-site inspection and received confirmation 
that all secured requirements have been satisfied, as evidenced by: 

Submission of Bill of Sale from a CDFW approved Bank; 

Written documentation of the acquisition of the HM lands; 

Copies of all executed and recorded conservation easements; 

Written confirmation from the approved Endowment Manager of its receipt of the full 

ITP 
Condition 
# 8 to 8.7 

Before commencing 
ground- or vegetation-
disturbing activities/ 
Or within 18 months of 
effective date of ITP if 
CDFW-approved 
security is provided 

Permittee  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

280



7 

 Mitigation Measure Source 
Implementation 
Schedule 

Responsible 
Party 

Status / Date / Initials 

Endowment; and 

Timely submission of all required reports 

All milestones are achieved as specified in Condition of Approval 7.5 

Even if Security is provided, the Permittee must complete the required acquisition, protection 
and transfer of all HM lands and record any required conservation easements no later than 18 
months from the effective date of this ITP. CDFW may require the Permittee to provide 
additional HM lands and/or additional funding to ensure the impacts of the taking are minimized 
and fully mitigated, as required by law, if the Permittee does not complete these requirements 
within the specified timeframe.  

 DURING CONSTRUCTION     

17 Construction Monitoring Notebook. The Designated Biologist shall maintain a construction-
monitoring notebook on-site throughout the construction period, which shall include a copy of 
this ITP with attachments and a list of signatures of all personnel who have successfully 
completed the education program. Permittee shall ensure a copy of the construction-monitoring 
notebook is available for review at the Project site upon request by CDFW. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.6 

Entire Project Permittee  

18 Trash Abatement. Permittee shall initiate a trash abatement program before starting Covered 
Activities and shall continue the program for the duration of the Project. Permittee shall ensure 
that trash and food items are contained in animal-proof containers and removed at least once a 
week to avoid attracting opportunistic predators such as ravens, coyotes, and feral dogs. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.7 

Entire Project Permittee  

19 Dust Control. Permittee shall implement dust control measures during Covered Activities to 
facilitate visibility for monitoring of the Covered Species by the Designated Biologist. Permittee 
shall adhere to Caltrans Standard Specification 10-5 for dust control strategies. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.8 

Entire Project Permittee  

20 Erosion Control Materials. Permittee shall prohibit use of erosion control materials potentially 
harmful to Covered Species, such as monofilament netting (erosion control matting), filter-fabric, 
geo-textile fabric or similar plastic-based material in potential Covered Species’ habitat. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.9 

Entire Project Permittee  

21 Project Access. Project-related personnel shall access the Project Area using the staging and 
access routes identified in Figure 2, Staging, Phasing and Timeline Plan and shall not cross 
Covered Species’ habitat outside of or en route to the Project Area. Permittee shall restrict 
Project-related vehicle traffic to established roads, staging, and parking areas. Permittee shall 
ensure that vehicle speeds do not exceed 15 miles per hour when driving the staging area, 
access routes or Project Area. If Permittee determines construction of routes for travel are 
necessary outside of the Project Area, the Designated Representative shall contact CDFW for 
written approval before carrying out such an activity. CDFW may require an amendment to this 
ITP, among other reasons, if additional take of Covered Species will occur as a result of the 
Project modification. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.12 

Entire Project Permittee  

22 Hazardous Waste. Permittee shall immediately stop and pursuant to pertinent state and federal 
statutes and regulations, arrange for repair and clean up by qualified individuals of any fuel or 
hazardous waste leaks or spills at the time of occurrence, or as soon as it is safe to do so. 
Permittee shall exclude the storage and handling of hazardous materials from the Project Area 
and shall properly contain and dispose of any unused or leftover hazardous products off-site. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.13 

Entire Project Permittee  

23 CDFW Access. Permittee shall provide CDFW staff with reasonable access to the Project and 
mitigation lands under Permittee control and shall otherwise fully cooperate with CDFW efforts 
to verify compliance with or effectiveness of mitigation measures set forth in this ITP. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.14 

Entire Project Permittee  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

281



8 

 Mitigation Measure Source 
Implementation 
Schedule 

Responsible 
Party 

Status / Date / Initials 

24 Notification of Non-compliance. The Designated Representative shall immediately notify CDFW 
in writing if it determines that the Permittee is not in compliance with any Condition of Approval 
of this ITP, including but not limited to any actual or anticipated failure to implement measures 
within the time periods indicated in this ITP and/or the MMRP. The Designated Representative 
shall report any non-compliance with this ITP to CDFW within 24 hours. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 5.2 

Entire Project Permittee  

25 Compliance Monitoring. The Designated Biologist shall be required on-site during Covered 
Activities, refer to Condition of Approval 6.2 for guidance in regard to compliance monitoring 
schedule requirements. The Designated Biologist shall conduct compliance inspections to (1) 
minimize incidental take of the Covered Species, as feasible; (2) prevent unlawful take of 
species; (3) check for compliance with all measures of this ITP; (4) establish and maintain nest 
buffer zones, as applicable (See Condition of Approval 6.3); (5) ensure that signs, stakes, and 
fencing are intact, and (6) capture photos of Project Area conditions and Covered Activities and 
to ensure that Covered Activities are only occurring in the Project Area. The Designated 
Representative or Designated Biologist shall prepare written observation and inspection records 
as specified in Condition of Approval 6.3; summarizing: oversight activities and compliance 
inspections, observations of Covered Species and their sign, survey results, and monitoring 
activities required by this ITP. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 5.3 

Entire Project Permittee  

26 Monthly Compliance Report. The Designated Representative or Designated Biologist shall 
compile the observation and inspection records identified in Condition of Approval 5.3 
(Compliance Monitoring) into a Monthly Compliance Reports and submit it to CDFW along with 
a copy of the MMRP table with notes showing the current implementation status of each 
mitigation measure. Monthly Compliance Reports shall be submitted to the CDFW offices listed 
in the Notices section of this ITP and via e-mail to CDFW’s Regional Representative and 
Headquarters CESA Program. At the time of this ITP’s approval, the CDFW Regional 
Representative is Robert Stanley (Robert.Stanley@wildlife.ca.gov) and Headquarters CESA 
Program email is CESA@wildlife.ca.gov. CDFW may at any time increase the timing and 
number of compliance inspections and reports required under this provision depending upon the 
results of previous compliance inspections. If CDFW determines the reporting schedule must be 
changed, CDFW will notify Permittee in writing of the new reporting schedule. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 5.4 

Entire Project Permittee  

27 Daily Construction Surveys. A Designated Biologist(s) shall be on-site daily for all Covered 
Activities occurring during the Covered Species nesting season from March 15 to September 
15. If a Covered Species nest within 0.25 miles of the Project Area is active beyond the nesting 
season, monitoring shall continue each day until the young have fledged. Outside of the 
Covered Species nesting season, if no nests are active within a 0.25-mile radius, the 
Designated Biologist may develop an alternate monitoring schedule in coordination with the 
CDFW representative. Surveys shall follow methods outlined in the Recommended Timing and 
Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Surveys in California’s Central Valley 
(https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols#377281284-birds). Survey 
requirements and buffer limits may be modified with written request to and approval from 
CDFW. If a lapse in Covered Activities of 7 days or longer occurs, additional surveys shall be 
performed prior to resuming Covered Activities during the nesting season (March 15 to 
September 15) and the results sent to CDFW 48 hours prior to the re-initiation of work. All daily 
construction survey results should be submitted weekly to CDFW when an active nest is 
present and monthly when no active nest is present. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 6.2 

Entire Project Permittee  

28 Active Nest Buffer Zones. If active Covered Species nests are found, no Covered Activities shall 
occur within 0.25 miles of an active Covered Species nest unless a smaller buffer is established 
in consultation with CDFW. If Covered Species do not exhibit signs of disturbance, as specified 
in Condition of Approval 6.4, the buffer distance can be incrementally reduced based on 

ITP 
Condition 
# 6.3 

Entire Project Permittee   

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

282



9 

 Mitigation Measure Source 
Implementation 
Schedule 

Responsible 
Party 

Status / Date / Initials 

monitoring the response of Covered Species to Covered Activities. With written approval from 
CDFW, the Designated Biologist(s) may increase, reduce or remove the buffer based on the 
monitoring responses of Covered Species. If more than one (1) nest site is found within 0.25 
miles of the Project Area an amendment to this ITP is required to address changed biological 
circumstances. 

The Permittee shall clearly delineate the buffer zone around an active nest within the Project 
Area with posted signs demarcating the area to avoid and using stakes, fencing, flags, and/or 
rope or cord to minimize the disturbance of Covered Species nesting behaviors. All construction 
personnel shall be notified of the existence and location of the known active Covered Species 
nest site and any active Covered Species nest sites detected during pre-construction surveys. 
Construction Personnel shall be instructed to minimize disturbances to these sites to the 
maximum extent feasible during nesting season. Trees or other features containing active nests 
shall be flagged or otherwise marked in the field. The marking should be readily visible at a 
distance of at least 100 feet. If a nest is located on an off-site property, signage and/or flagging 
shall be placed at the property boundary near where the nest is located. The sign shall indicate 
the direction and approximate distance of the nest from the property line.  

29 CNDDB Observations. The Designated Biologist shall submit all observations of Covered 
Species to CDFW’s California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB) within 60 calendar days of 
the observation and the Designated Biologist shall include copies of the submitted forms with 
the next Monthly Compliance Report, whichever is submitted first relative to the observation. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 5.5 

Entire Project Permittee  

30 Notification of Take or Injury. Permittee shall immediately notify the Designated Biologist if a 
Covered Species is taken or injured by a Project-related activity, or if a Covered Species is 
otherwise found dead or injured within the vicinity of the Project. The Designated Biologist or 
Designated Representative shall provide initial notification to CDFW by calling the Regional 
Office at (707) 428-2002 and the regional representative within 24 hours. The initial notification 
to CDFW shall include information regarding the location, species, and number of animals taken 
or injured and the ITP Number. Following initial notification, Permittee shall send CDFW a 
written report within two business days. The report shall include the date and time of the finding 
or incident, location of the animal or carcass, and if possible provide a photograph, explanation 
as to cause of take or injury, and any other pertinent information. The report and notification 
shall also be submitted to CDFW’s Regional Representative Robert Stanley 
(Robert.Stanley@wildlife.ca.gov). 

ITP 
Condition 
# 5.7 

Entire Project Permittee  

31 Stop Work for Abnormal Nesting Behavior. A Designated Biologist(s), who is experienced in 
raptor behavior and approved by CDFW, shall be assigned to monitor the behavior of actively 
nesting Covered Species within 0.25 miles of the Project Area. The Designated Biologist(s) 
shall have the authority to stop all Covered Activity determined to cause abnormal nesting 
behavior in Covered Species, which may cause nest abandonment and loss of eggs/young. 
Abnormal nesting behaviors include, but are not limited to, swooping/stooping excessive 
vocalization (distress calls), agitation, standing up from a brooding position, failure to remain on 
the nest, and failure to deliver prey items for an extended time-period. Project activities resulting 
in abnormal nesting behavior shall not resume until the Designated Biologist(s) has consulted 
with CDFW and both the Designated Biologist and CDFW confirm that the bird's behavior has 
normalized, or the young have left the nest. On a weekly basis, the Designated Biologist shall 
report directly to CDFW the status of each Covered Species active nest. Reports shall include 
observations of abnormal nesting behaviors and any significant changes in ambient conditions 
due to Covered Activities. Significant changes would include noise levels and visual conditions 
such as an increase in the number of personnel walking around the Project Area or mobilization 
of large equipment into the Project Area. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 6.4 

Entire Project Permittee  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

283



10 

 Mitigation Measure Source 
Implementation 
Schedule 

Responsible 
Party 

Status / Date / Initials 

32 Nest Abandonment and Hacking. If the Project results in nest abandonment and nestling(s) are 
still alive, the Designated Biologist(s) shall recover the hatchling(s) or egg(s) and immediately 
take it to a CDFW-approved wildlife rehabilitation or veterinary facility. Permittee shall bear any 
cost associated with recovery of nestling(s) and hacking (controlled release of captive reared 
young) of the nestling(s). 

ITP 
Condition 
# 6.5 

Entire Project Permittee  

33 Removal of Nest Trees. No active nest trees, or trees know to have active nests in the last five 
years are authorized for removal under the conditions of this ITP. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 6.6 

Entire Project Permittee  

34 Project Access and Staging. The Permittee shall establish and maintain all Project Areas, 
Staging Areas and Access Routes within areas of previously identified impacts as described in 
this Incidental Take Permit and shall not traverse Covered Species Habitat outside specified 
areas of impact for any purpose including personnel on foot (Figure 3, Project Habitat Impacts 
Map). Staging areas and laydown areas shall not occur within the active nest buffer as specified 
in Condition of Approval 6.3. No night delivery of material is authorized to occur within the active 
nest buffer as specified in Condition of Approval 6.3. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 6.7 

Entire Project Permittee   

35 Signs and Fence Post Restrictions. Any fencing posts or signposts installed temporarily or 
permanently throughout the course of the Project will prevent the entrapment of wildlife, 
specifically birds of prey. If open-ended pipes or bollards are used for posts, they shall be 
capped. If metal posts with post holes are used (including, but not limited to U-channel posts 
and T-posts), the posts shall have the top three post holes or any post holes above an affixed 
sign capped, covered, or filled. The Designated Biologist will be responsible for ensuring 
compliance with this measure throughout the course of the Project and will inspect each post for 
compliance when at the Project Site. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 6.8 

Entire Project Permittee  

36 Temporary Artificial Lighting Restrictions and Nightwork. All temporary lighting shall be required to 
have shielding and shall be focused to the Project Area to avoid to the maximum extent feasible 
scattering of artificial light into natural lands. When not in use all temporary lighting shall be shut 
down upon the completion of work each day. No nightwork is authorized to occur within the active 
nest buffer as specified in Condition of Approval 6.3. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 6.9 

Entire Project Permittee  

37 Permanent Artificial Lighting Restrictions. All new installations and replacements of previously 
existing light emitters, luminaires or bulb types for permanent use within the Project Area shall 
have a maximum output programmed at 2700 kelvin or less. All new installations or 
replacements of lighting shall be fitted with back-shielding, and the surface area of the light shall 
be directed so that it does not project into natural lands. The Isolux Analysis baseline of current 
artificial lighting conditions (Figure 4, Existing Lighting Isolux Analysis Map) establishes the 
baseline of existing conditions and the proposed lighting output of new and replacement 
emitters over the surface area of natural lands. An updated Isolux analysis shall be required 
within 60 days of completion of Covered Activity completion to determine real-world light levels. 
All permanent lighting shall be directed towards the surface of the road and employ adjusted 
mast height and adjusted reach arm lengths to reduce light pollution into natural lands. 
Additional avoidance and minimization conditions may be required in consultation with CDFW if 
an increase in lighting output is determined to occur onto natural lands greater than the initial 
projections when compared to the Final Isolux Diagram that measures the real-world artificial 
lighting outputs. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 6.10 

Before and After 
Construction 

Permittee  

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

284



11 

 Mitigation Measure Source 
Implementation 
Schedule 

Responsible 
Party 

Status / Date / Initials 

 POST CONSTRUCTION     

38 Refuse Removal. Upon completion of Covered Activities, Permittee shall remove from the 
Project Area and properly dispose of all temporary fill and construction refuse, including, but not 
limited to, broken equipment parts, wrapping material, cords, cables, wire, rope, strapping, 
twine, buckets, metal or plastic containers, and boxes. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 4.15 

Post-construction Permittee  

39 Construction Survey and Monitoring. Throughout the course of Covered Activities, the 
Designated Biologist(s) shall conduct reconnaissance surveys to identify all potential nesting 
habitat within 0.25 miles of the Project Area and identify any potential Covered Species active 
nests. Surveys shall follow methods outlined in the Recommended Timing and Methodology for 
Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Surveys in California’s Central Valley 
(https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Survey-Protocols#377281284-birds). All results shall 
be submitted to CDFW as part of the On-Site Restoration Plan, as specified in Condition of 
Approval 7.5. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 6.11 

Post Construction Permittee  

40 Annual and Final Construction Reports. No later than 60 days after completion of construction 
for each year of Covered Activities the Permittee shall provide CDFW with an Annual or Final 
Construction Report. The Designated Biologist shall prepare the Final Construction Report 
which shall include, at a minimum: (1) a summary of all Monthly Compliance Reports; (2) a copy 
of the table in the MMRP with notes showing when each of the mitigation measures was 
implemented; (3) all available information about Project-related incidental take of the Covered 
Species; (4) information about the Projects annual impacts on the Covered Species; (5) 
beginning and ending dates of Covered Activities; (6) an assessment of the effectiveness of this 
ITP’s Conditions of Approval in minimizing and fully mitigating Project impacts of the taking on 
Covered Species; (7) recommendations on how mitigation measures might be changed to more 
effectively minimize take and mitigate the impacts of future Projects on the Covered Species; 
and (8) any other pertinent information. 

ITP 
Condition 
# 5.6 

During and Post 
Construction 

Permittee  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

285



ATTACHMENT 2A 
DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE 

HABITAT MANAGEMENT LAND ACQUISITION PACKAGE CHECKLIST FOR PROJECT APPLICANTS 
 
The following checklist is provided to inform you of what documents are necessary to expedite the Department of 
Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) processing of your Habitat Management Land acquisition proposal. Any land acquisition 
processing requests which are incomplete when received, will be returned. The Region contact will review and 
approve the document package and forward it to the Habitat Conservation Planning Branch Senior Land Agent with 
a request to process the land acquisition for formal acceptance.   

 
To:     __________________________________ 
  Regional Manager, Region Name 
From: _______________________________ 
  Project Applicant 

Phone: __________________________________ 
 
Tracking #:  _________________________________ 
  CDFW assigned permit or agreement # 
 
Project Name: _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Enclosed is the complete package for the   Conservation Easement   OR    Grant Deed 

Documents in this package include: 

 Fully executed, approved as to form Conservation Easement Deed or Grant Deed with legal description stamped 
by a licensed surveyor.  Date executed: __________________ 

 Proposed Lands for Acquisition Form (PLFAF) 

 Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report     Date on report: _________________________ 
 (An existing report may be used, but it must be less than two years old.) 

 Preliminary Title Report(s) for subject property is enclosed and has been reviewed for Encumbrances, including 
severed mineral estates, and other easements.  The title report must be less than six months old when final 
processing is conducted. 

 Included are additional documents: 

  document(s) to support title exceptions 

  document(s) to explain title encumbrances 

  a plot or map of easements/encumbrances on the property 

 Policy of Title Insurance (an existing title policy is not acceptable) 

 County Assessor Parcel Map(s) for subject property 

 Site Location Map (Site location with property boundaries outline on a USGS 1:24,000 scale topo) 

 Final Permit or Agreement (or other appropriate instrument) 
 Type of agreement:  Bank Agreement        Mitigation Agreement 

  Permit ____________________________      Other: __________________________ 
     (write in type of permit) 

 Final Management Plan (if required prior to finalizing permit or agreement or if this package is 

  for a Grant Deed) 

 Biological Resources Report 

 Draft Summary of Transactions  hard copy       electronic copy   (both are required) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

286



ATTACHMENT 2B 

Rev. December 8, 2014 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE 
PROPOSED LANDS FOR ACQUISITION FORM ("PLFAF") 

  
 

Date: ___________________ 
 
TO:  Regional Representative 

 ___________________________ 
 ___________________________ 
 ___________________________ 
 Facsimile:  

 
FROM: __________________________ 

 __________________________ 
 __________________________ 
 __________________________ 

 
 
Applicant proposes that the following parcel(s) of land be considered for approval by the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife as suitable for purposes of habitat management 
lands to compensate the adverse environmental impacts of the Project: 
 
Section(s)  Township  Range  County  Acres 
 
__________  __________  ________ ________ _____ 
 
Current Legal Owner(s), of the surface and mineral estates, include Assessor’s Parcel 
Number(s): 

_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
General Description of Location of Parcel(s): 
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Land Value: $ 
 

For Region Use Only 

 
APPROVED ___ By: ______________________ DATE:_______________ 
    Regional Manager’s Signature 

REJECTED ___ 
Region: ______________________ 

 
Explanation:_______________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

287



 

LOC Template for CESA Security - No Reduction  
Rev. 3/9/20 

 

[Financial institution letterhead] 

 

IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT 

  NO. [number issued by financial institution] 
 

 
Issue Date: [date] 
 
Beneficiary: 
 
Department of Fish and Wildlife 
Habitat Conservation Planning Branch  
Post Office Box 944209 
Sacramento, CA 94244-2090 
Attn: HCPB Contract Coordinator 
 
Amount:  U.S. $[dollar number] [(dollar amount)] 
 
Expiry:  [Date] at our counters 
 
Dear Sirs: 
 

1. At the request and on the instruction of our customer, [name of applicant] 
(“Applicant”), we, [name of financial institution] (“Issuer”), hereby establish in 
favor of the beneficiary, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (“CDFW”), 
this irrevocable standby letter of credit (“Credit”) in the principal sum of U.S. 
$[dollar number] [(dollar amount)] (“Principal Sum”).   

2. We are informed this Credit is and has been established for the benefit of CDFW 
pursuant to the terms of the incidental take permit for the [name of project] 
issued by CDFW to the Applicant on [date] (No. [number]) (“Permit”). 

3. We are further informed that pursuant to the Permit, the Applicant has agreed to 
complete certain mitigation requirements, as set forth in Conditions [numbers] in 
the Permit (“Mitigation Requirements”).  

4. We are finally informed that this Credit is intended by CDFW and the Applicant to 
serve as a security device for the performance by the Applicant of the Mitigation 
Requirements.  

5. CDFW shall be entitled to draw upon this Credit only by presentation of a duly 
executed Certificate for Drawing (“Certificate”) in the same form as Attachment A, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

288



 

 
LOC Template for CESA Security - No Reduction  

Rev. 3/9/20 

 

which is attached hereto, at our office located at [name and address of 
financial institution].   

6. The Certificate shall be completed and signed by an “Authorized Representative” 
of CDFW as defined in paragraph 12 below.  Presentation by CDFW of a 
completed Certificate may be made in person or by registered mail, return receipt 
requested, or by overnight courier.  

7. Upon presentation of a duly executed Certificate as above provided, payment 
shall be made to CDFW, or to the account of CDFW, in immediately available 
funds, as CDFW shall specify. 

8. If a demand for payment does not conform to the terms and conditions of this 
Credit, we shall give CDFW prompt notice that the demand for payment was not 
effected in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Credit, state the 
reasons therefore, and await further instruction. 

9. Upon being notified that the demand for payment was not effected in conformity 
with the Credit, CDFW may correct any such non-conforming demand for 
payment under the terms and conditions stated herein. 

10. All drawings under this Credit shall be paid with our funds.  Each drawing 
honored by us hereunder shall reduce, pro tanto, the Principal Sum.  By paying 
to CDFW an amount demanded in accordance herewith, we make no 
representations as to the correctness of the amount demanded.  

11. This Credit will be cancelled upon receipt by us of Certificate of Cancellation, 
which: (i) shall be in the form of Attachment B, which is attached hereto, and (ii) 
shall be completed and signed by an Authorized Representative of CDFW, as 
defined in paragraph 12 below. 

12. An “Authorized Representative” shall mean the Director of CDFW; the General 
Counsel of CDFW; a Regional Manager of CDFW; or the Branch Chief of 
CDFW’s Habitat Conservation Planning Branch.   

13. This Credit shall be automatically extended without amendment for additional 
periods of one year from the present or any future expiration date hereof, unless 
at least sixty (60) days prior to any such date, we notify CDFW in writing by 
registered mail, return receipt requested, or by overnight courier that we elect not 
to consider this Credit extended for any such period.   

14. Communications with respect to this Credit shall be in writing and addressed to 
us at [name and address of financial institution], specifically referring upon 
such writing to this credit by number.  The address for notices with respect to this 
Credit shall be: (i) for CDFW: Department of Fish and Wildlife, Habitat 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

289



 

 
LOC Template for CESA Security - No Reduction  

Rev. 3/9/20 

 

Conservation Planning Branch, Post Office Box 944209, Sacramento, CA 94244-
2090, Attn: HCPB Contract Coordinator; and (ii) for the Applicant: [name and 
address of applicant].  

 
15. This Credit may not be transferred. 

16. This Credit is subject to the International Standby Practices 1998 (“ISP 98”).  As 
to matters not covered by the ISP 98 and to the extent not inconsistent with the 
ISP 98, this credit shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
Uniform Commercial Code, Article 5 of the State of California.   

17. This Credit shall, if not canceled, expire on [expiration date], or any extended 
expiration date. 

18. We hereby agree with CDFW that documents presented in compliance with the 
terms of this Credit will be duly honored upon presentation, as specified herein.  

19. This Credit sets forth in full the terms of our undertaking.  Such undertaking shall 
not in any way be modified, amended or amplified by reference to any document 
or instrument referred to herein or in which this Credit is referred to or to which 
this Credit relates and any such reference shall not be deemed to incorporate 
herein by reference any document or instrument. 

[Name of financial institution] 
 
By: _____________________________ 
Name: ___________________________ 
Title: ____________________________ 
Telephone: __________________________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

290



 

 
LOC Template for CESA Security - No Reduction  

Rev. 3/9/20 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT NO. [number issued by financial 
institution] 

CERTIFICATE FOR DRAWING 

 

To: 

[Name and address of financial institution]  
 

Re: [Insert: “Lake” or “Streambed”] Alteration Agreement (No. [permit number]) 
 
The undersigned, a duly Authorized Representative of the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (“CDFW”), as defined in paragraph 12 in the above-referenced Irrevocable 
Standby Letter of Credit (“Credit”), hereby certifies to the Issuer that: 
 

1. [Insert one of the following statements: “In the opinion of CDFW, the Applicant 
has failed to complete the Mitigation Requirements referenced in paragraph 3 of 
the Credit.” or “As set forth in paragraph 13, the Issuer has informed CDFW that 
the Credit will not be extended and the Applicant has not provided CDFW with an 
equivalent security approved by CDFW to replace the Credit.”]  

2. The undersigned is authorized under the terms of the Credit to present this 
Certificate as the sole means of demanding payment on the Credit. 

3. CDFW is therefore making a drawing under the Credit in amount of U.S. 
$_____________. 

4. The amount demanded does not exceed the Principal Sum of the Credit. 

Therefore, CDFW has executed and delivered this Certificate as of the ___day of 
[month], [year].  
 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE 
 
BY: ___________________________________________ 
[Insert one of the following: “DIRECTOR” or “GENERAL COUNSEL” or “REGIONAL 
MANAGER, [NAME OF REGIONAL OFFICE]” or “BRANCH CHIEF, HABITAT 
CONSERVATION PLANNING BRANCH”] 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

291



 

 
LOC Template for CESA Security - No Reduction  

Rev. 3/9/20 

 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. [number issued by financial institution] 
CERTIFICATE FOR CANCELLATION 

 

To:  
 
[Name of financial institution and address] 

Re: [Insert: “Lake” or “Streambed”] Alteration Agreement (No. [permit number]) 
 
The undersigned, a duly Authorized Representative of the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (“CDFW”), as defined in the paragraph 12 in the above-referenced 
Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit (“Credit”), hereby certifies to the Issuer that: 
 

1. [Insert one of the following statements: “The Applicant has presented 
documentary evidence of full compliance with the Mitigation Requirements 
referenced in paragraph 3 of the Credit.” or “The Applicant has provided CDFW 
with an equivalent security approved by CDFW to replace the Credit.”]  

2. CDFW therefore requests the cancellation of the Credit.  

Therefore, CDFW has executed and delivered this Certificate for Cancellation as of the 
____ day of [month], [year]. 
 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE 
 
BY: ___________________________________________ 
[Insert one of the following: “DIRECTOR” or “GENERAL COUNSEL” or “REGIONAL 
MANAGER, [NAME OF REGIONAL OFFICE]” or “BRANCH CHIEF, HABITAT 
CONSERVATION PLANNING BRANCH”] 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

292



State of California - Department of Fish and Wildlife 

MITIGATION PAYMENT TRANSMITTAL FORM 
DFW 1057 (NEW 07/28/17) 

Project Applicant Instructions: Please fill out and attach this form to payment. For conservation banks, also attach the Bill(s) of Sale 
for credits sold. One form may be used for multiple transactions, BUT YOU MUST USE A SEPARATE FORM FOR EACH CHECK YOU 
TRANSMIT.  Make sure to include Project Name, Project Tracking Number, and ASB Mitigation Tracking Number (if available) on the 

attached payment type. 

1. DATE: ________________________________

TO:    ________________________________________ 

Regional Manager 

    _________________________________________ 
Region Office Address 

2. FROM:  _______________________________________

Name  

_______________________________________ 
Mailing Address 

_____________________________________ 
City, State, Zip 

_____________________________________ 
Telephone Number/FAX Number 

3. RE: _________________________________________________

Project Name as appears on permit/agreement 

4. AGREEMENT/ACCOUNT INFORMATION: (check the applicable type)

□ 2081 Permit      □  Conservation Bank      □  2835 NCCP     1802 Agreement      1600 Agreement  □  Other _______________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 
Project Tracking Number 

5. PAYMENT TYPE (One check per form only): The following funds are being remitted in connection with the above referenced project:

Check information:

Total $_________________________ Check No. ________________________ 

Account No. ____________________  Bank Routing No. __________________ 

a. Endowment: for Long-Term Management Subtotal  $_________________ 

b. Habitat Enhancement Subtotal  $_________________ 

c. Security:
1. Cash Refundable Security Deposit Subtotal  $_________________ 

2. Letter of Credit Subtotal  $_________________ 

1. Financial Institution: ______________________________

2. Letter of Credit Number: __________________________

3. Date of Expiration: _______________________________

ACCOUNTING OFFICE USE ONLY 

Description FI$Cal Coding 

Speedchart  
(Project, Program, Reference, Fund) 

Reporting Structure 

Category 

Date Established: _____________________________     By: ______________________________________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B6F47E42-D689-4566-B087-D6CD923BDACA

293



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.8 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Federal and State Legislative Update 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the Federal 
Legislative update prepared by K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors and the State 
Legislative update prepared by Platinum Advisors and the State Bill Matrix. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The attached memos from Platinum Advisor/K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors 
summarize the federal and state legislative activities respectively.     

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

294



February 16, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.8 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Kate Miller, Executive Director 

(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Federal and State Legislative Update 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the Federal 
Legislative update prepared by K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors (Attachment 1) and the 
State Legislative update prepared by Platinum Advisors (Attachment 2) and the State Bill 
Matrix (Attachment 3). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Federal Update:  

Since the President signed the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) which is 
more popularly referred to as the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL), the administration 
has announced several programs including the EV Charging Action Plan from Vice 
President Kamala Harris, a $52.5 billion Federal Highway Apportionment for FY 2022 and 
$260 million for highway safety programs.  The Biden Administration has also issued the 
Building a Better America Guidebook for State, Local, Tribal, and Territorial Governments 
on the BIL which provides a detailed look at anticipated programs and funding.   

Department of Transportation Secretary Pete Buttigieg announced the National Roadway 
Safety Strategy (NRSS) intended to address roadway fatalities and injuries.  The BIL 
includes a total of $10 billion for infrastructure to address safety issues and $4 billion to 
improve crash data and truck safety programs.   

The Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) was released for the 2022 Rebuilding 
American Infrastructure and Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) grant program which will 
provide $1.5 billion nationwide to improve transportation infrastructure.   

295

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority              Agenda Item 12.8 
February 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
______________________________________________________________________ 

State Update:  
The Legislative Analyst’s Office released its preliminary overview of the governor’s FY 
2022-23 budget and is estimating a $29 billion surplus - $8 billion more than the 
governor’s budget.  The discrepancy is largely due to how funds are being counted; the 
governor is not counting discretionary funding as part of the budget surplus.  As reported 
last month, $9.1 billion in the governor’s budget proposal is earmarked for various 
programs to improve transportation infrastructure.   

Several new bills have been introduced, including SB 878 which would create a home to 
school transportation program and public transit operators would be eligible to receive the 
funding.  Funding, however, would need to occur through a budget appropriation.  Two 
bills introduced by Assembly Member Chiu last year have been taken up by other 
legislators.  These include AB 629 (Becker) which is intended to improve coordination 
among Bay Area transit operators and AB 550 (Friedman) authorizing specified cities to 
test automated speed enforcement cameras. 

ATTACHMENTS 

(1) January 31, 2022 Federal Update (K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors)
(2) February 1, 2022 State Budget Update (Platinum Advisors)
(3) February 1, 2022 State Bill Matrix (Platinum Advisors)

296



  

 ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 12.8 

FEBRUARY 16, 2022 
 

 
   

 

 MEMO 
 

TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 

FROM: George Riccardo, K&L Gates 
Jess Aune, Platinum Advisors 

DATE: January 31, 2021 

RE: January Monthly Report  

State of Play and Congressional Update 
 
January has been a busy month in Washington, D.C. as lawmakers returned from the 
holidays to hit the ground running. With the Build Back Better Act currently stalled in 
Congress, focus shifted to voting rights and the filibuster. The White House and Majority 
Leader Schumer mounted a significant campaign including a speech by President Biden 
and Vice President Harris in Georgia and having President Biden travel to Capitol Hill to 
meet with the Democratic Senate Caucus. However as expected, there were not 60 votes 
to advance this legislation and Senators Manchin and Sinema voted against changing the 
filibuster rules to include a carve out for voting rights reform. Leader Schumer has vowed 
to continue this fight, but he faces a difficult path with no clear route to victory unless 
Senators Manchin and Sinema change their mind regarding the filibuster.   
 
In need of a legislative win before the State of the Union, the House turned their attention 
to crafting their version of the anti-china competitiveness package and released the 
America Creating Opportunities for Manufacturing, Pre-Eminence in Technology, and 
Economic Strength Act of 2022 (America COMPETES Act). A floor vote is expected as 
early as the week of January 31 and then the legislation is expected to go to conference 
with the Senate’s version, United States Innovation and Competition Act (USICA) of 2021. 
This legislation would increase investments in high tech research and manufacturing 
especially regarding the semiconductor industry.   
 
While negotiations have been stalled this month for the Build Back Better Act, President 
Biden remains confident that the Senate will be able to pass some aspect of his economic 
agenda. Senator Wyden has said they will have a new package soon that will focus on 
expanding access to healthcare, lowering prescription drug costs and tax incentives for 
clean energy which are areas that Senator Manchin has indicated he is supportive of. The 
bill has a long way to go with limited legislative days before the Midterm elections.   
 

297



2 

The government is currently funded until February 18, 2022, leaving just a few weeks for 
Congress to come to an agreement on a long-term funding plan. Many remain optimistic 
that an agreement can be reached, but only time will tell.  

Pending Legislation of Interest 

S.3011 - State, Local, Tribal, and Territorial Fiscal Recovery, Infrastructure,
and Disaster Relief Flexibility Act
Sponsor: Senator John Cornyn (R-TX) 
Cosponsors: 11 
Status: Passed Senate 
Summary: This bill allows states, tribes, territories, and localities to use certain 
COVID-19 relief funds for new categories of spending, including for natural 
disasters and infrastructure projects. Specifically, recipients may use funds for 
emergency relief from natural disasters and associated negative economic 
impacts of natural disasters. In addition, recipients may use a portion of their 
COVID-19 relief funds for designated infrastructure projects, such as nationally 
significant freight and highway projects. Furthermore, the bill allows recipients to 
expend COVID-19 relief funds on these types of infrastructure projects until 
September 30, 2026.  
Outlook: The House companion (H.R.5735) has been introduced and is gaining 
cosponsors, though there has not been any movement. 

Biden Administration Update 

Mid-January marked 60 days since President Joe Biden signed the Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Law (BIL) and the Administration has made significant progress towards 
implementation. A few recent highlights are outlined below:  

Roads, Bridges, and Transportation Infrastructure 

• Vice President Kamala Harris announced an EV Charging Action Plan to achieve
the President’s goal of building a national network of 500,000 electric vehicle
chargers.

• Department of Transportation (DOT) Secretary Pete Buttigieg and Energy
Secretary Jennifer Granholm formed a Joint Office of Energy &
Transportation  focused on building out the national network of EV chargers.

• The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) at the DOT announced $52.5
billion in Federal Highway Apportionment for fiscal year 2022 the largest in
decades for all 50 states and DC. 

• The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) announced $260
million for highway safety programs to reduce traffic crashes.

298

https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/senate-bill/3011?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22State%2C+Local%2C+Tribal%2C+and+Territorial+Fiscal+Recovery%2C+Infrastructure%2C+and+Disaster+Relief+Flexibility+Act%22%2C%22State%2C%22%2C%22Local%2C%22%2C%22Tribal%2C%22%2C%22and%22%2C%22Territorial%22%2C%22Fiscal%22%2C%22Recovery%2C%22%2C%22Infrastructure%2C%22%2C%22Disaster%22%2C%22Relief%22%2C%22Flexibility%22%2C%22Act%22%5D%7D&s=1&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/5735?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22State%2C+Local%2C+Tribal%2C+and+Territorial+Fiscal+Recovery%2C+Infrastructure%2C+and+Disaster+Relief+Flexibility+Act%22%2C%22State%2C%22%2C%22Local%2C%22%2C%22Tribal%2C%22%2C%22and%22%2C%22Territorial%22%2C%22Fiscal%22%2C%22Recovery%2C%22%2C%22Infrastructure%2C%22%2C%22Disaster%22%2C%22Relief%22%2C%22Flexibility%22%2C%22Act%22%5D%7D&s=1&r=2
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=19c3c7643c&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=4280ea2abf&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=4280ea2abf&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=0d5924719f&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=0d5924719f&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=9a9c450349&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=9a9c450349&e=3e8de9a970


3 

• The Maritime Administration announced $230 million in Port Infrastructure
Development grants to improve ports, strengthen the nation’s supply chains to
meet demand resulting from the rapid economic recovery over the past year, and
help ease inflationary pressures.

Clean Energy and Environmental Remediation 

• Department of Energy (DOE) established the new Office of Clean Energy
Demonstrations, which will oversee $20 billion of infrastructure funding to scale
up clean energy, create new, good-paying jobs for American families and
workers, and reduce pollution while benefiting underserved communities.

• DOE released a request for information on deployment and demonstration
opportunities for carbon reduction and removal technologies, representing $10
billion in infrastructure programs.

Additionally, earlier this month, President Biden’s Infrastructure Implementation 
Coordinator, Mitch Landrieu, joined a press briefing to discuss his role in overseeing 
implementation of the BIL. Landrieu highlighted his team’s recent efforts, which have 
included: convening the Infrastructure Implementation Task Force for 7 meetings; 
reaching out to all 50 governors and key staff, as well as hundreds of local officials; asking 
states to appoint infrastructure coordinators; and convening the inspectors general of 
federal agencies involved in implementation of the BIL.  

John Porcari, Port Envoy to the White House Supply Chain Task Force, also participated 
in a White House press briefing, where he provided updates on how the Task Force was 
addressing near-term port disruptions related to the pandemic. During the discussion, 
Porcari highlighted recent successes, including inflation-adjusted retail inventories rising 
to not only exceed pre-pandemic levels, but also hit the highest monthly level recorded 
since 1992, as well as consumers receiving 97 to 99 percent of their packages on time or 
with minimal delays from the U.S. Postal Service, FedEx, and UPS. Porcari also detailed 
ongoing efforts to address port congestion, including a new fee on long-dwelling empty 
containers at the Ports of Los Angeles and Long Beach; new actions to improve U.S. 
exports, particularly agricultural exports, at the Port of Oakland; and prioritization of the 
movement of medical supplies at the nation’s ports, working closely with the Biden-Harris 
COVID Response Team.  

Department of Transportation (DOT) Updates 

The DOT has launched the historic Bridge Replacement, Rehabilitation, Preservation, 
Protection, and Construction Program (Bridge Formula Program). The program, to be 
administered by the Federal Highway Administration, represents the single largest 
dedicated bridge investment since the construction of the interstate highway system – 
providing $26.5 billion to states, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico over five years 
and $825 million for Tribal transportation facilities. The FHWA also published initial 
guidance on the new program. More information on this program can be found here. 

299

https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=5ff62fd620&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=5ff62fd620&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=29b2348d7e&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=29b2348d7e&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=9602f5adf9&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=91c4410cfa&e=3e8de9a970


4 

Additionally, the DOT, alongside the DOL, have announced the Biden-Harris Trucking 
Action Plan, which includes several new initiatives that will support drivers and improve 
driver retention, while expanding access to quality driving jobs now and in the years 
ahead. The plan includes: expanding registered apprenticeship programs; creating the 
Women of Trucking Advisory Board; creating a new task force to investigate predatory 
truck leasing arrangements; beginning two studies to explore the issues of truck driver 
pay and unpaid detention time; launching the Safe Driver Apprenticeship Pilot; and 
allocating over $32 million in funding to states to improve the CDL licensing process. More 
details on these initiatives can be found here. 

The Build America Bureau issued a second Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) to 
further expand the Regional Infrastructure Accelerator (RIA) Demonstration Program and 
solicit applications for designating and funding for RIA that: (1) serve a defined geographic 
area; (2) act as a resource to qualified entities in the geographic area in accordance with 
the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act; and (3) demonstrate the 
effectiveness of an RIA to expedite the delivery of projects eligible for  
the TIFIA credit program. More details can be found here. 

On Thursday, January 27, DOT Secretary Pete Buttigieg announced the federal 
government’s new comprehensive National Roadway Safety Strategy (NRSS), a 
roadmap for addressing the national crisis in roadway fatalities and serious injuries. As 
part of the NRSS, the DOT is adopting the “Safe System Approach,” which acknowledges 
both human mistakes and human vulnerability, and designs a redundant system to protect 
everyone by preventing crashes and ensuring that if they do occur they do not result in 
serious injury or death. The Department will use a five-pronged model to address safety: 
safer people, safer roads, safer vehicles, safer speeds, and post-crash care. The BIL 
provides $6 billion for the Safe Streets and Roads for All program, $4 billion in additional 
funding for the Highway Safety Improvement Program, and an additional infusion of $4 
billion for improved crash data and vehicle, behavior, and truck safety programs. The 
complete National Roadway Safety Strategy can be found here.  

On Friday, January 28, DOT published a NOFO for $1.5 billion in grant funding through 
the Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) 
discretionary grant program. The popular program helps communities around the country 
carry out projects with significant local or regional impact. The deadline for applications 
is 5 p.m. EST on April 14, 2022, and selections will be announced no later than August 
12, 2022. The NOFO is available here.  

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 

The FTA announced new ratings for six projects seeking funding from the Capital 
Investment Grants (CIG) program, helping them through the process of receiving a grant 
to expand or build new transit systems. Project ratings are required at multiple points 
during the multi-year, multi-step process before a CIG funding commitment can be made. 
The popular CIG program has helped communities build or expand more than 150 transit 

300

https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=f5766f678a&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=f5766f678a&e=3e8de9a970
https://secure-web.cisco.com/1GxZyMbSkSKykJmpDimddmQDR2dafAw1D_pD2j86r7lduofr5ilN-hJISysTMc1u0yFnRl92_fpe3dbfvCaDIDCu7ZfsUQqbK566WU0ip___CXR6ij5uCU1LbvwVlXMwxHgIwLCMPyIo5LzYMfi0g1Dpcl52cdThGe7hYTITXTgnAKLlu9C0cdtY_6LbIHLQ2I6lJI2auSWqTFEzNx-gd8haUA-FVpih4WrQs5E8Ohr4SPian9QL-Q62kSHL_Wbj4XS1YpHZ1m72uuPEJPbTGdg/https%3A%2F%2Fklgates.us10.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3Dcfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6%26id%3D99d6cad897%26e%3D3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=a4c44ba387&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=f6533d84cf&e=3e8de9a970
https://www.transportation.gov/RAISEgrants/raise-nofo


 5  
  
 

projects around the country, including heavy rail, commuter rail, light rail, streetcar, and 
bus rapid transit. More details, including the newly rated and updated projects, can be  
found here. 
  
Additionally, the FTA announced the award of approximately $11 million to 20 projects 
in 12 states to support comprehensive planning efforts to improve access to public 
transportation. FTA's Pilot Program for Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Planning 
supports local planning and strategies to increase transit access and encourage 
ridership through mixed-use and mixed-income development near public transportation 
projects.  
More details, including the list of selected projects, can be found here. 
   
Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA) 
 
DOT Secretary Pete Buttigieg announced that Robin Hutcheson will become the Deputy 
Administrator of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration. As Deputy 
Administrator, Ms. Hutcheson will also serve as the Acting Administrator. Since January 
2021, Hutcheson has served as the Deputy Assistant Secretary for Safety Policy for the 
U.S. Department of Transportation in the Biden-Harris Administration. More details on  
this announcement can be found here. 
  
Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) 
 
On Wednesday, January 12, the Senate voted 68-29 in favor of Amit Bose to be 
Administrator of the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA). Bose has been serving as 
the Acting Administrator since February 2020, and has years of experience serving in the 
public sector. Bose is the first person of South-Asian descent to lead the FRA, and 
previously served two stints as FRA Deputy Administrator, as well as Chief Counsel, DOT 
Associate General Counsel, and DOT Deputy Assistant Secretary for Governmental 
Affairs. More information on his confirmation can be found here. 
 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Updates 
 
On January 26, HUD made available $4 million through their new Radon Testing and 
Mitigation Demonstration Program Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for public 
housing agencies (PHAs). PHAs will use the funds in public housing properties where 
low-income families reside. With this funding, PHAs will be able to conduct testing and, 
when needed, mitigation of radon in the public housing units that they manage. More  
information can be found here.  
 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Updates 
 
DHS announced the availability of 20,000 additional H-2B temporary nonagricultural 
worker visas for the first half of FY22 for employers that are facing irreparable harm and 
are seeking to employ additional workers on or before March 31, 2022.  This supplemental 
cap increase, which comes at a time of record job growth and reduced labor force 

301

https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=a8c81c3c1a&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=b69b015891&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=333a9e00c7&e=3e8de9a970
https://secure-web.cisco.com/16geOFc-I0zsW02YDZ0IuPExCemBLLozhTzCbW_ujs-j5TiqGr0rUVjAM-YrIZ3aziQME_tInQJIsKC8OKp86R6eWdjpp8L5_0rnfUT722nOTswNZvtoiGwU4mH9KUnktAykRTCidREkqzj_jHPMHL4ktZrNRIM-gMAhB0Gk_3XVkFYZl46ZZU3oN4Yw_qwAprWXCllK-uoLSVFX1aZhrtR62KqOaT1IYlO49phOf6W0G1czbQpzdrtjfvw5T2eBFZ2pdY28zmZumo50hx6NBMA/https%3A%2F%2Fklgates.us10.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3Dcfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6%26id%3Df7f3ca3a7b%26e%3D3e8de9a970
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/spm/gmomgmt/grantsinfo/fundingopps/fundingarchive/fy2021radon


 6  
  
 

participation, marks the first time that DHS is making additional H-2B visas available in 
the first half of the fiscal year.  The additional visas will become available to employers 
on January 28, 2022.  The supplemental H-2B visa allocation consists of 13,500 visas 
available to returning workers who received an H-2B visa or were otherwise granted H-
2B status, during one of the last three fiscal years.  The remaining 6,500 visas, which are 
exempt from the returning worker requirement, are reserved for nationals of Haiti, El 
Salvador, Guatemala, and Honduras.  The joint temporary final rule can be found here. 
 
 

302

https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=9fb6b527d0&e=3e8de9a970


1 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.8 

February 16, 2022 

 
 
February 1, 2022 
 
TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 
FR: Steve Wallauch 
 Platinum Advisors 
 
RE: Legislative Update          
 
Leadership Change:  With Senator Bob Hertzberg’s announcement that he will run for 
the Los Angeles Board of Supervisors, Pro Tem Toni Atkins has named Senator Mike 
McGuire to serve as Senate Majority Leader.  Senator Hertzberg will serve as Majority 
Leader Emeritus.  Senator McGuire, who previously served on the Sonoma County Board 
of Supervisors, has been a strong advocate for local governments. 
 
COVID Sick Leave:  Governor Newsom and legislative leadership have reached an 
agreement to extend the availability of supplemental COVID-19 sick leave to September 
30, 2022.  The intent is to approve this extension as part of early budget actions.  Under 
the COVID-19 sick leave agreement, employers with 26 or more employees are required 
to provide up to 40 hours of flexible paid leave to full-time workers who are sick or caring 
for an ill loved one and require proof of a positive test to qualify for an additional 40 hours 
of paid time off.  This agreement does not include funding to offset this cost.  A hearing 
date has not been set yet by the Budget Committees to hear and vote on this agreement. 
 
Preliminary Budget Overview: The Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) released their 
preliminary overview of the governor’s 2022-23 budget proposal in preparation for budget 
committee hearings which began January 19. The Legislature receives advice regarding 
the governor’s proposals from the LAO which is considered a part of budget deliberations. 
The release of the LAO’s report marks the start of the budget subcommittee process.  
High level takeaways from the overview include the following:  
 

● The administration’s overall revenue projections are reasonable.  
● Multiyear estimates reflect negative balances in the Special Fund for Economic 

Uncertainties (SFEU) beginning in 2023-24 and ongoing. This is due to proposed 
spending exceeding estimated resources. The LAO recommends against 
proceeding with a negative SFEU as it will require that in 2023-24 revenues be 
higher or costs be lower than anticipated, taxes be increased, or reductions will be 
necessary. 

● General purpose reserves (non-Prop 98) are below the pre-pandemic level. In 
2019-20 reserves reached 20% of non-school spending. The governor’s proposed 

303

https://lao.ca.gov/reports/2022/4492/2022-budget-overview-011322.pdf


2 
 

budget would result in reserves of 15.5% in non-school spending at the end of 
2022-23.  

● Governor Newsom has delayed action to address the State Appropriations Limit 
(SAL) until the May Revision. Currently, the administration is estimating that the 
SAL will be exceeded by $2.6 billion across 2020-21 and 2021-22 which will 
require lowering tax revenues, allocating additional funding to schools and 
taxpayer rebates, or funding priorities that do not count against the SAL such as 
subventions to local governments, capital outlay projects, debt service, federal and 
court mandates, and certain kinds of emergency spending. Delaying action will 
limit flexibility in the case the Legislature wants to lower tax revenues. 

● The LAO recommends that the Legislature seriously consider utilizing some of the 
$9.4 billion in discretionary spending that counts against the SAL to increase 
general purpose reserves.  

● Oversight of recent augmentations and new programs should be a priority. How 
are programs progressing? Has funding been distributed? Are there performance 
results or implementation barriers?  

● The Legislature should be cautious in creating new programs and expanding the 
scope of existing programs to ensure there is capacity to implement them and they 
are complementary and not duplicative.  

● Consideration of long-term COVID-19 flexibilities such as remote assessments for 
human services programs and targeted cash assistance should be included in 
budget conversations as there is a likelihood that COVID-19 challenges will 
continue.  

 
Surplus: The LAO estimates a $29 billion surplus for 2022-23 versus the $21 billion 
surplus in the administration’s budget. This difference is primarily due to allocations the 
LAO considers discretionary that have not been counted as discretionary by the governor. 
For instance, $3.5 billion for transportation infrastructure is considered discretionary by 
the LAO because funds were allocated in 2021-22 but have now reverted to the General 
Fund. The administration has not counted that funding as part of its surplus.  
 
Of the LAO’s estimated $29 billion surplus, the administration allocates $17.3 billion in 
one-time or temporary (three years or fewer) spending, $6.2 billion in revenue reductions, 
$3.1 billion to the SFEU balance for unanticipated expenditures, $2 billion to ongoing 
expenditures (growing to $5.2 billion annually by 2025-26), and $590 million for debts and 
liabilities.  
 
State Appropriations Limit (SAL): The governor’s budget includes $5.5 billion to restore 
net operating losses, business credits, and other tax credits reducing SAL revenues by 
$6 billion. Additionally, it includes $6 billion in discretionary SAL related exclusions - $1.3 
billion for the School Facilities Aid Program and $545 million for clean energy and building 
decarbonization. To maintain appropriations below the SAL in the budget year, excluded 
spending or tax reductions rejected by the Legislature must be repurposed for an 
expenditure also meeting SAL requirements.  
 

304



3 
 

Early Actions:  As previously reported the Governor’s budget includes $9.1 billion for 
various transportation programs.  Since an agreement was not reached last year on 
transportation spending, CalSTA is requesting almost half of the $9.1 billion be allocated 
as part of early action legislation in the current fiscal year.  The following chart outlines 
the funding CalSTA has requested be approved in the 2021-22 fiscal year versus 
appropriations to be approved as part of the June budget.  Given the negotiations 
regarding the allocation of additional funding for projects in the Bay Area and funding 
requests made for the Inland Empire (San Bernardino and Riverside Counties), this 
request is subject to legislative negotiations which will likely delay consideration of an 
early action appropriation.   
 

Summary of Requested Resources (in millions) 
 2021-22  2022-23  
High-Speed Rail Construction 
(Bond Funds)  

$4,200  $0  

Transit and Rail  
(Includes $2 billion for statewide projects and $1.25 billion 
for LA regional projects) 

$3,250  $0  

Grade Separations  $500  $0  
Active Transportation Program  $250  $250  
Climate Adaptation  $300  $100  
Highways to Boulevards  $0  $150  
Bicycle & Pedestrian Projects  $0  $100  
Clean California local grants 
(The $100 million in the budget would be awarded for 
projects in the 2023-24 fiscal year.)  

$0  $0  

FHWA formula programs  $1,775  $1,872  
 
 
Legislation 
School Transportation:  Senator Skinner introduced SB 878 which would create a 
program to provide free home-to-school transportation to all students.  Public transit 
operators would be an eligible recipient of these funds to provide home-to-school 
transportation services.   
 
The bill is sponsored by the California School Employees Association.  Funding for this 
program is dependent on a budget appropriation, and the allocation formula is not 
specified but would be based on a per mile reimbursement.  Under this bill school 
agencies that do not provide transportation services are directed to collaborate with 
parents, teachers, transit operators, air districts and others on developing a transportation 
plan that ensures all students have free transportation to school.  While this bill is a 
promising resolution to school transportation funding issues, the current version of the bill 
places specified driver licensing requirements that may make it difficult for public transit 
operators to comply with.   
 

305



4 
 

Expected Legislation:  February 18th is the deadline for new legislation to be introduced.  
While new bills are being introduced every day, the deluge of new measures is not 
expected to flow until the days prior to the deadline.  However, the following is a few of 
the new bills we expect to be introduced: 
 

• Sales Tax Exemption:  Assembly member Kevin Mullin is expected to introduce 
legislation that would extend the sunset date on the current state sales tax 
exemption for purchasing zero emission transit vehicles.  Assemblyman Mullin 
authored legislation creating the current exemption which is set to expire on 
January 1,2024.  The new legislation would extend the sunset date to January 1, 
2034. 

 
• Transit Coordination:  Last year Assembly member Chiu introduced AB 629, which 

proposed to make numerous changes to improve the coordination of transit 
operations in the Bay Area.  With the departure of Assembly member Chiu, 
Senator Josh Becker is expected reintroduce this proposal.  It is unclear at this 
time if Senator Becker will start with a spot bill, or if the legislation will reflect the 
goals of the Seamless Bay Area proposal. 
 

• Speed Enforcement:  Last year Assembly member Chiu introduced AB 550 that 
would have authorized specified cities to test the use of automated speed 
enforcement cameras.  Assembly member Laura Friedman has committed to 
reintroducing this measure. 

 

306



1 
 

 
 

February 1, 2022 
 

January 31st was the deadline for all two-year bills to be moved out of their house of origin.  Those measures 
that failed to meet the house of origin deadline are dead bills and will be removed from future reports.   

 

 
BOARD POSITION ITEMS 

 
Bills 

Subject Status Client 
Positions 

AB 117 
(Boerner 
Horvath D) 
Air Quality 
Improvement 
Program: 
electric bicycles. 

AB 117 would require California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) to establish the 
Electric Bicycle Incentive Program (EBIP), 
by July 1, 2022, to provide incentives in the 
form of vouchers to income-eligible 
individuals for the purchase of e-bikes at 
participating retailers. 

The budget included an appropriation to 
CARB in the amount of $10 million to fund 
this program.  AB 117 was intended to 
establish the parameters of how CARB 
would implement this program.  While AB 
117 was held in the Senate Appropriations 
Committee, it can move forward next year.   

However, implementation legislation is not 
needed to move this program forward.  
CARB staff have initiated the workshop 
process for developing the EBIP, with the 
goal of incorporating into the current year 
expenditure plan. 

SENATE APPR 
– Held in 
Appropriations 
Two-Year Bill 

SUPPORT 

AB 550 
(Chiu D) 
Vehicles: speed 
safety system 
pilot program. 
 
 
 

AB 550 establishes a five-year pilot program 
to give local transportation authorities in the 
Cities of San Jose, Oakland, Los Angeles, 
two unspecified southern California cities, 
and the City and County of San Francisco 
the authority to install automated speed 
safety systems. 
 

DEAD SUPPORT 

ATTACHMENT 3 
NVTA Agenda Item 12.8 

February 16, 2022 
 

307

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20117');
https://a76.asmdc.org/
https://a76.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20550');
https://a17.asmdc.org/


2 

AB 550 
(Continued) 

AB 550 specifies the conditions where an 
automated system can be placed, limits the 
amount of the citation, specifies that the 
citation shall count as a point on a license, 
and specifies how the proceeds from citation 
can be spent.  In addition, the bill states that 
the system shall not continue to operate on 
any given street if within the first 18 months 
of installation of a system, specified 
conditions related to a reduction in violations 
are not met.  

AB 629 
(Chiu D) 
San Francisco 
Bay area: public 
transportation. 

AB 629 contains an outline of a proposal to 
improve transit coordination in the Bay Area.  
In short, the provisions in AB 629 generally 
outlines the need for reports on work already 
underway, such as wayfinding, fare 
integration, and real-time route information.  
The controversial content will likely not arise 
until this measure reaches the Senate and 
when the recommendations made by the 
Task Force are complete.   

DEAD WATCH 

AB 703 
(Rubio, 
Blanca D) 
Open meetings: 
local agencies: 
teleconferences. 

AB 703 is a two-year bill that would allow 
local agencies to use teleconference 
services to hold legislative meetings at any 
time.  However, recent amendments added 
language requiring at least a quorum of the 
legislative body be present at a single 
location, which restricts the flexibility of using 
current technology to conduct public 
meetings. 

DEAD WATCH 

AB 1401 
(Friedman D) 
Residential and 
commercial 
development: 
parking 
requirements. 

As amended, AB 1401 prohibits local 
governments in counties with a population of 
600,000 of more from imposing or enforcing 
a minimum automobile parking requirement 
for residential, commercial, and other 
developments if the parcel is located within 
one-half mile walking distance of a “major 
transit stop.” 
In counties with a population less than 
600,000, any city within that county with a 
population of 75,000 of more is also 
prohibited from imposing parking minimums 
on development within one-quarter mile of a 
major transit stop. 

SENATE APPR 
– Held on
Suspense File

WATCH 

308

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20550');
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20629');
https://a17.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20703');
https://a48.asmdc.org/
https://a48.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201401');
https://a43.asmdc.org/


3 

AB 1401 
(Continued) 

As “Major transit stop” is defined in the bill to 
be a site containing any of the following: 

(a) An existing rail or bus rapid transit
station.
(b) A ferry terminal served by either a
bus or rail transit service.
(c) The intersection of two or more
major bus routes with a frequency of
service interval of 15 minutes or less
during the morning and afternoon
peak commute periods.

AB 1401 also adds to the major transit stop 
definition; a major transit stop that is 
included in a regional transportation plan.  
Prior versions of the bill also included “high 
quality transit corridors,” but this reference 
has been removed. 

ACA 1 
(Aguiar-
Curry D) 
Local 
government 
financing: 
affordable 
housing and 
public 
infrastructure: 
voter approval. 

Identical to last session’s proposal, which 
NVTA supported, ACA 1 would lower the 
voter threshold for property tax increases, 
parcel taxes and sales taxes to 55% if the 
funds are used for affordable housing and 
infrastructure projects.  This includes capital 
improvements to transit and streets and 
highways.   
However, ACA 1 does not allow for the 55% 
local measure to use the tax revenue for 
transit operations. 

ASSEMBLY 
LOC GOV 

(Hearing 
deadlines do not 
apply to 
Constitutional 
amendments) 

Support 

SB 674 
(Durazo D) 
Public 
Contracts: 
workforce 
development: 
transportation-
related 
contracts. 

SB 674, until January 1, 2027, requires the 
Labor and Workforce Development Agency 
(LWDA) to create the California Jobs Plan 
Program and the United States Jobs Plan 
Program.  The intent of the bill is to 
incentivize more high-quality transportation, 
manufacturing, and infrastructure jobs 
through the public contracting process. 
The Assembly Appropriations Committee 
amended SB 674 to specify participation by 
local transportation entities would be 
optional.  However, the bill would still apply 
to purchases made by Caltrans.  These 
amendments and concerns likely expressed 
by the Administration resulted in the author 
making it a two-year bill.  Senator Durazo 

ASSEMBLY 
FLOOR 

Inactive File 

WATCH 

309

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201401');
javascript:OpenBillInfo('ACA%201');
https://a04.asmdc.org/
https://a04.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20674');
http://sd24.senate.ca.gov/


4 

SB 674 
(Continued) 

intends to work with opposition during the 
interim to reach a consensus on the bill. 
Previously, the author has accepted several 
amendments to address concerns 
expressed by CalACT and CTA, such as 
requiring FTA approval before the new 
requirements start.  However, significant 
concerns remain regarding how this program 
would be implemented, the ability to verify 
the promises made are achieved, and the 
likelihood of procurement delays due to a 
rise in award protests. 

310

javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20674');

	00_NVTA Agenda Only 02 16 22
	0.0_Glossary of Acronyms Updated 01-2022
	0002_1_Public Hearing Staff Report
	9.1_Public Hearing FTA 5310 Cover- KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION


	9.1_Public Hearing FTA 5310 Memo-KM changes 
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.1_Public Hearing FTA 5310 Attch 1 Resolution 22-04-KM changes
	9.1_ Attch 2 Public_Hearing_Notice_for_5310_Funds 2022-KM no changes

	0003_1_Draft Minutes
	0004_1_Staff Report
	10.2_CAC Member appointment COVER.LS.
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointments
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.2_CAC Member Appointment Memo.ls-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION



	0005_1_Staff Report
	10.3_Marino Quitclaim Deed_Cover-KM
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-05 Authorization to Convey Fee Simple Interest in Real Property Identified as Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 007-082-004 by Quitclaim Deed to the City of Napa and autho...
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.3_Marino Quitclaim Deed_Memo-KM
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-05 (Attachment 1) approving the Amended and Restated Grant of Easement and Easement Agreement and Authorization to Transfer an Easement Interest in Real Property Iden...

	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.3_Marin Quitclaim Attch 1- Resolution 22-05
	11.3_Marino Quitclaim Deed Attch 1 Resolution 22-05
	XX_Marin Quitclaim-Att1-Exhibit A

	10.3_Marino Quitclaim Attch 2 - Easement Agreement
	10.3_Marino QuitClaim Attch 3 - Quitclaim Deed-KM
	NAME City of Napa
	Napa, CA  94559-0660
	QUITCLAIM DEED

	10.3_Marino Quitclaim Attch 4 - Deed Public Notice-KM

	0006_1_Staff Report
	10.4_TFCA Exp Plan FYE 2023_Cover Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-06 (Attachment 1) adopting the Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2023 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan (Attachment 1, Exhibit A).
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	The BAAQMD TFCA policies only allow funds to be retained for two (2) years unless NVTA originally requests additional time or the project is making reasonable progress and is granted a one (1) year extension.  Bicycle Projects must be completed in 2 y...
	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.4_TFCA Exp Plan FYE 2023_Board Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-06 (Attachment 1) adopting the Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2023 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan (Attachment 1, Exhibit A).

	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.4_TFCA Exp Plan Attch 1 - Resolution 22-06
	11.4_Attach 1 Resolution 22-06 TFCA Exp Plan FYE 2023_dm
	RESOLUTION No. 22-06
	Passed and adopted this day of February 16, 2022.


	X.X Attach 1_Exhibit A_TFCA Expenditure Plan FYE 2023
	Summary Info



	0007_1_Staff Report
	10.5_AB 361 Requirements for Remote Meetings_Cover
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.5_AB 361 Requirements for Remote Meetings_Memo DMG
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.5 AB 361 ATTCH 1 Resolution 22-07

	0009_1_Staff Report
	12.1_ Transit Update 2Q FY 22_Cover docx-KM change
	Action Requested: INFORMATION
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	12.1_ Transit Update 2Q FY 22_Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested: INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the NVTA Board receive the second quarter FY 2021-22 Vine Transit update.
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND



	0010_1_Staff Report
	12.2_NVF ROW Consultant Award_COVER_KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	12.2_NVF ROW Consultant Award_Memo-KM changes_
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	12.2_Attach 1 Consultant Agreement

	0011_1_Staff Report
	12.3_SR 29 PID Alt 3 Cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	State Route 29 (SR 29) American Canyon Project Initiation Document (PID) Proposed Alternatives
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	12.3_SR 29 PID Alt 3 Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT: State Route 29 Multimodal Improvements through American Canyon Alternative 3
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	12.3_SR 29 PID Attch 2

	0012_1_Staff Report
	12.4_Amending Salary Range FY 2021-22 Cover ls-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	12.4_Amending Salary Range FY 2021-22 Memo ls_KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	12.4_Amending FY Salary range Attch 1 Resolution 21-22
	12.4_Amending Salary Range FY 2021-22 Attch 2 Resolution 22-08_ls
	RESOLUTION No 22-08


	0013_1_Staff Report
	12.5_Fin Stmts FY21 and FY20_Cover_ao
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	12.5_Fin Stmts FY21 and FY20_Memo_ao
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	12.5_Fiscal Audit Attach 1 - NVTA FY21 Management Letter
	12.5_Fiscal Audit Attach 2 - NVTA FY21 Audit
	12.5_Fiscal Audit Attach 3 - NVTA FY21 Single Audit Report

	0014_1_Staff Report
	12.6_FY22 Midyear Fin Review Cover-KM no changes
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	12.6_FY22 Midyear Fin Review and Delegated Authority Matrix Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	12.6 FY22 NVTA Mid-Year Review - Attachment 1

	0015_1_Staff Report
	12.7_Swainson Hawk Habitat Contract SJ_Cover-KM no changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Swainson Hawk Foraging Habitat Credits for Soscol Junction
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	12.7_Swainson Hawk Habitat Contract SJ Memo-KM no changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT:       Swainson Hawk Foraging Habitat for Soscol Junction
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	12.7_Swainson Hawk  Attch 1Muzzy Ranch Contract-KM
	12.7_ Swainson Hawk Attch 2 Soscol 04-28120 ITP signed 8-21-2021 (2)
	Subject: Incidental Take Permit for 2081-2021-020-03 State Route 29/State Route 221 Soscol Junction Improvement Project, Napa County
	State Route 29/State Route 221 Soscol Junction Improvement Project EA 04-28120
	Authority:
	Effective Date and Expiration Date of this ITP:
	Project Location:
	Project Description:
	Overcrossing Structure
	Roundabout Structures

	Project Description:
	Pedestrian and Bicycle Circulation
	Drainage Work
	Project Lighting

	Project Description:
	Ground Disturbance and Earthwork
	Landscaping
	Site Cleanup and Restoration
	Equipment

	Covered Species Subject to Take Authorization Provided by this ITP:
	Impacts of the Taking on Covered Species:
	Incidental Take Authorization of Covered Species:
	Conditions of Approval:
	Amendment:
	Stop-Work Order:
	Compliance with Other Laws:
	Notices:
	Compliance with CEQA:
	Findings Pursuant to CESA:
	Attachments:
	Attachment 1
	PURPOSE OF THE MMRP The purpose of the MMRP is to ensure that the impact minimization and mitigation measures required by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) for the above-referenced Project are properly implemented, and thereby to e...
	OBLIGATIONS OF PERMITTEE Mitigation measures must be implemented within the time periods indicated in the table that appears below. Permittee has the primary responsibility for monitoring compliance with all mitigation measures and for reporting to CD...
	VERIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE, EFFECTIVENESS CDFW may, at its sole discretion, verify compliance with any mitigation measure or independently assess the effectiveness of any mitigation measure.
	TABLE OF MITIGATION MEASURES The following items are identified for each mitigation measure: Mitigation Measure, Source, Implementation Schedule, Responsible Party, and Status/Date/Initials. The Mitigation Measure column summarizes the mitigation requ...


	0016_1_Staff Report
	12.8_Legislative Update 01_Cover_ka-KM
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	SUBJECT
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	12.8_Legislative Update 02_Memo_ka-KM
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	12.8 Legislative Update - Attach 1 Federal report
	12.8 Legislative Update Attach 2 State Report 2-1
	12.8 Legislative Update Attach 3 State Matrix 2-1




